902-420-9287

. 450 Cowie Hill Road

({({/ Halifax P.O. Box 8388 RPO CSC
Halifax, Nova Scotia

Water Canada B3K 5M1

March 19, 2021

Craig MacMullin, MBA, CPA, CGA, Chair
Halifax Water
Halifax, NS

The regular meeting of the Halifax Water Board will be held virtually on Thursday, March 25, 2021
beginning at 9:00 a.m. Visit www.halifaxwater.ca to register to attend the public portion of the meeting.

AGENDA

In Camera Reports ‘

1C Approval of Minutes of the In-Camera Meeting held on Thursday, January 28, 2021
Motion: That the Halifax Water Board approve the In-Camera minutes of January 28, 2021.

2C Business Arising from Minutes
a)

3C Land Matter (10 minutes)
‘ Motion: That the Halifax Water Board convene to In Camera (private) to discuss the matter. |

4C-1  Land Matter (20 minutes)

‘ Information Item |

5C-I  Legal Matter (10 minutes)

‘ Information Item |

Regular Reports

1. a) Ratification of In-Camera Motions (2 minutes)
Motion: That the Halifax Water Board ratify the In-Camera Motions.

b) Approval of the Order of Business and Approval of Additions and Deletions (2 minutes)
Motion: That the Halifax Water Board approve the order of business and approve additions and deletions.

2. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting held on Thursday, January 28, 2021 (2 minutes)
Motion: That the Halifax Water Board approve the minutes of the January 28, 2021 regular meeting.

3. Business Arising from Minutes
a)

4.1 Operating Results for the Eleven Months Ended February 28, 2021 (10 minutes)

gm,,'-.:_:,:_:,:,:_:_:,:,:,:.:.:,:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:::.. [STRAIGHTfrom
\theSOURCE




Page |2

Capital Approvals

5.1 Capital Expenditures for the Eleven Months Ended February 28, 2021 (10 minutes)

5.2 William’s Lake Road Wastewater Pump Station Rehabilitation (Construction Phase) (10 minutes)
Motion: That the Halifax Water Board approve the construction phase of the Williams Lake Road Wastewater
Pumping Station Rehabilitation project in the amount of $3,190,000, for a revised total project cost of
$3,400,000.

5.3 Cobequid Looping — Windgate Drive Water Transmission Main (10 minutes)

Motion: That the Halifax Water Board approve the construction phase funding for the Cobequid Looping -
Windgate Drive Water Transmission Main Phase 1 (51,500,000) and Phase 2 (§950,000) for an estimated total
project cost of $2,500,000.

Other Business ‘

6. Corporate Governance Manual (15 minutes)

Motion: That the Halifax Water Board approve the revisions to the Corporate Governance Manual, as
attached to the Board Report dated March 1, 2021.

7. Appointment of Board Vice-Chair and Confirmation of Appointments to Board Committees — Verbal
(25 minutes)

Motion: That the Halifax Water Board appoint a Vice-Chair and confirm appointments to the subcommittes of
the Board.

8. Corporate Balanced Scorecard — 2021/22 Program (25 minutes)
Motion: That the Halifax Water Board approve:

1. Corporate Balanced Scorecard targets for the 2020/21 fiscal year as detailed in the attached presentation.

2. The Organizational Award Program tied to the outcomes of 12 Organizational Indicators as detailed in the
attached presentation.

9. Halifax Water Odour Strategy & Service Level (20 minutes)

Motion: That the Halifax Water Board endorse Halifax Water’s established response and level of service to
respond to odour complaints within the wastewater and combined collection systems.

Information Reports

1-1 Financial and Operations Information Report
2- Lake Major Water Supply Plant (WSP) - Clarifier Component Replacement Project — Phase |l
34| Halifax Regional Water Commission Employees’ Pension Plan Financial Report, Fourth Quarter, 2020
4-| Halifax Regional Municipality Master Trust Investment Performance, Fourth Quarter, 2020
5 Update on Wastewater Research Program — Dalhousie University
He|d| ng;::llirsigned by Heidi
Schedler 5% o0
Heidi Schedler
Secretary

%@fmf'.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.:.. 'STRAIGHT from ‘(J(.I/Ilali[’a.\'

Lttt e e e s ete a e v h s [the SOURCE| B 8 Water

Nova Scotia's
Top Employers




‘(J(J/ Halifax ITEM # 4.1

l l Water Halifax Water Board

Halifax Regional Waler Commission March 25, 2021

TO: Craig MacMullin, MBA, CPA, CGA, Chair, and Members of the Halifax

Regional Water Commission Board
Digitally signed by Allan

SUBMITTED BY: jx&&e@wﬁddh Dete, 2021.03.18 On behalf of

16:46:20 -03'00"
Louis de Montbrun, CPA, CA
Director, Corporate Services/CFO

Cathie Digialy signe by Cathie
APPROVED: O'Toole Date: 20210312

Cathie O’Toole, MBA, FCPA, FCGA, ICD.D
General Manager

DATE: March 19, 2021
SUBJECT: Operating Results for the eleven months ended February 28, 2021
ORIGIN

Financial Information Reporting.

BACKGROUND

The Halifax Regional Water Commission (Halifax Water) Board is required to review periodic
financial information throughout the year.

DISCUSSION

Attached are the operating results for the eleven (11) months ending February 28, 2021, with
comparative figures for February 28, 2020 and March 31, 2020.

The following discussion of the operating results reflect direct operating costs by department and
allocations among water, wastewater and stormwater for common costs shared across all the
services provided by Halifax Water.

Statement of Financial Position (NSUARB) - Page 3 of attachment

Key indicators and balances from the Statement of Financial Position are provided in the following
tables. An analysis of assets is as follows:

Page 1 of 11



ITEM # 4.1

Halifax Water Board
March 25, 2021
Table 1:
February 28  February 29 March 31 From Prior Year
2021 2020 2020 $ Change % Change
Assets
Current
Cash and cash equivalents $ 58,565 $ 55,514 $ 49,953 $ 3,051 5.5%
Receivables
Customers charges and contractual 13,290 15,751 18,405 (2,461) (15.6%)
Unbilled senvice revenues 19,234 18,474 17,367 760 4.1%
Halifax Regional Municipality 0 0 3,668 0 0.0%
Inventory 2,120 1,637 1,736 483 29.5%
Prepaids 724 175 1,002 549 313.7%
93,933 91,551 92,131 2,382 2.6%
Capital work in progress 65,357 87,185 18,104 (21,828) (25.0%)
Utility plant in senice 1,287,674 1,236,401 1,330,147 51,273 4.1%
Total assets 1,446,964 1,415,137 1,440,382 31,827 2.2%
Regulatory deferral account 2,637 2,829 2,812 (192) (6.8%)
Total assets and regulatory deferral account $ 1,449,601 $ 1,417,966 $ 1,443,194 $ 31,635 2.2%

e Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and balances held within financial

institutions reduced by outstanding cheques. They have increased $3.1 million from the
prior year due to lower capital expenditures in the current year.

Customer charges and contractual receivables have decreased $2.5 million from the prior
year. The change in receivables is driven by the timing of billing cycles, receipt of funding
for capital projects, and increase in the allowance for doubtful accounts.

Unbilled service revenue has increased $0.8 million due to the annual stormwater site
generated service revenue invoicing commencing in January of the prior year.

Inventory has increased $0.5 million primarily due to a large purchase of meters in the
current year as the vendor indicated their prices were increasing.

The increase in prepaids of $0.5 million is a result of reallocating amounts within balance
sheet accounts and deposit for land purchase to be held until Burnside facility is completed.

The $21.8 million decrease in capital work in progress relates to expenditures during the
current year of $49.5 million offset by projects that were capitalized at March 31, 2020.
The top five projects in capital work in progress at month end are detailed below:

Page 2 of 11



ITEM # 4.1

Halifax Water Board
March 25, 2021
Table 2:
Capital Work in Progress
Cumulative
'000
Port Wallace Transmission Main $ 4,711
Romans & Federal Avenues Sewer Separation 3,310
Bedford South Reservoir 2,559
Payroll Replacement Project 2,025
Fairniew/Clayton Park/Bridgeview
Inflow/Infiltration Reduction 1,983
14,588
All other projects:
Water 26,116
Wastewater 20,766
Stormwater 3,887
50,769
Net capital work in progress $ 65,357

e Utility plant in service assets total $1.3 billion, an increase of $51.3 million from the prior
year. The increase is a result of additions at year end offset by disposals, less current year
depreciation expense.

The changes in liabilities are presented below:

Table 3:
February 28  February 29 March 31 From Prior Year
2021 2020 2020 $ Change % Change
Liabilities
Current
Payables and accruals
Trade 16,021 13,094 28,756 2,927 22.4%
Interest on long term debt 2,122 2,343 2,139 (221) (9.4%)
Halifax Regional Municipality 2,986 4,093 0 (1,107) (27.0%)
Contractor and customer deposits 195 200 197 (5) (2.5%)
Current portion of long term debt 20,559 19,484 21,184 1,075 5.5%
Unearned revenue 1,305 1,735 760 (430) (24.8%)
43,188 40,949 53,036 2,239 5.5%
Long term debt 204,089 199,646 197,962 4,443 2.2%
Deferred contributions 54,965 53,660 42,604 1,305 2.4%
Total liabilities 302,242 294,255 293,602 7,987 2.7%
Equity
Accumulated capital surplus 1,097,644 1,064,484 1,094,580 33,160 3.1%
Accumulated operating surplus 42,572 44,108 52,573 (1,536) (3.5%)
Operating surplus used to fund capital 12,380 12,380 12,380 0 0.0%
Deficiency of revenues over expenditures (5,237) 2,739 (9,941) (7,976) (291.2%)
Total equity 1,147,359 1,123,711 1,149,592 23,648 2.1%
Total liabilities and equity $ 1,449,601 $ 1,417,966 $ 1,443,194 $ 31,635 2.2%

Page 3 of 11



ITEM # 4.1

Halifax Water Board
March 25, 2021

e Trade payables and accruals have increased $2.9 million as a result of trade payables for
work completed on capital projects, including the purchase of large vehicles, and timing of
payment for payroll remittances.

e HRM net receivables and payables were a payable in February, the net payable was lower
by $1.1 million as RDC collected by HRM and not yet paid to Halifax Water was higher
than prior year.

e Current portion of long term debt has increased $1.1 million primarily as a result of
acquiring new debt.

e Long term debt increased $4.4 million. Since March 1, 2020, new debt of $25.0 million
was issued in July 2020 and long term debt repayments have been $19.5 million. Halifax
Water is awaiting receipt of the fall 2020 debenture issue in the amount of $20.0 million.
It is expected to be received in early April 2021.

Debt servicing ratio is a function of total interest and principal payments (including accrued
amounts) plus the amortization of debt issue costs divided by total operating revenue per service.
Debt servicing ratio by service as at February 31, 2021 is as follows:

Table 4:
Debt Servicing Ratio by Service
2020/21 2019/20
Water 13.12% 11.60%
Wastewater 25.00% 23.96%
Stormwater 24.95% 20.44%
Combined 20.11% 18.66%

e The debt servicing ratio for each service has increased from the prior year as a result of the
issuance of new debt.

e The debt servicing ratio of 20.11% is below the maximum 35.0% ratio allowed under the
blanket guarantee agreement with HRM.

Statement of Earnings (NSUARB) - Page 4 of attachment

Key indicators and balances from the Statement of Earnings are provided in the following tables:

Page 4 of 11



ITEM # 4.1

Halifax Water Board
March 25, 2021
Table 5:
Summarized Statement of Earnings
YTD 2020/21 PYTD 2019/20
'000 ‘000 $ Change % Change
Operating revenues $ 126,086 $ 127,428 $ (1,342) (1.1%)
Operating expenditures 101,215 97,294 3,921 4.0%
Earnings (loss) from operations before
financial and other revenues and 24,871 30,134 (5,263) (17.5%)
Financial and other revenues 716 1,082 (366) (33.8%)
Financial and other expenditures 30,824 28,477 2,347 8.2%
Earnings (loss) for the year $ (5,237) $ 2,739 $ (7,976) (291.2%)

e Operating revenues of $126.1 million are $1.3 million lower than the prior year. Details to
be discussed further in the next section.

e Operating expenditures of $101.2 million are $3.9 million higher than the prior year.
Details to be discussed on page 7.

¢ Financial and other revenues of $0.7 million are $0.4 million lower than the prior year.

e Financial and other expenditures of $30.8 million are $2.3 million higher than the prior
year as a result of higher debt servicing costs and an increase in the dividend/grant in lieu

of taxes paid to HRM.
Table 6:
Debt Servicing by Service
YTD 2020/21 PYTD 2019/20
'000 '000 $ Change % Change
Water Services
Interest on long term debt $ 1,855 $ 1,674 181 10.8%
Repayment on long term debt 4,877 4,303 574 13.3%
Amortization of debt discount 68 58 10 17.2%
$ 6,800 $ 6,035 765 12.7%
Wastewater Services
Interest on long term debt $ 4,045 $ 4,313 (268) (6.2%)
Repayment on long term debt 12,110 11,421 689 6.0%
Amortization of debt discount 110 100 10 10.0%
$ 16,265 $ 15,834 431 2.7%
Stormwater Services
Interest on long term debt $ 627 $ 555 72 13.0%
Repayment on long term debt 1,647 1,339 308 23.0%
Amortization of debt discount 17 12 5 41.7%
$ 2291 $ 1,906 385 20.2%

Page 5 of 11



ITEM # 4.1

Halifax Water Board
March 25, 2021

e Water debt servicing costs of $6.8 million have increased $0.8 million from the prior year
as a result of $12.0 million in new debt.

e Wastewater debt servicing costs of $16.3 million have increased $0.4 million from the prior
year as a result of $7.4 million in new debt.

e Stormwater debt servicing costs of $2.3 million have increased $0.4 million from the prior
year as a result of $5.6 million in new debt.

Operating revenues are presented below, broken down by type:

Table 7:
Operating Revenues
YTD 2020/21 PYTD 2019/20
'000 ‘000 $ Change % Change

Consumption revenue $ 77,773 $ 79,272 $ (1,499) (1.9%)
Base charge revenue 30,738 30,550 188 0.6%
Wastewater rebate (836) (952) 116 (12.2%)
Metered sales total 107,675 108,870 (1,195) (1.1%)
Stormwater site generated charge 5,565 5,630 (65) (1.2%)
Stormwater right of way 3,515 3,515 - 0.0%
Public fire protection 6,694 6,485 209 3.2%
Private fire protection 816 804 12 1.5%
Other operating revenue 1,821 2,124 (303) (14.3%)
Operating revenue total $ 126,086 $ 127,428 $ (1,342) (1.1%)

Operating revenues have decreased $1.3 million as compared to the previous year. Key items of
note include:

e Water and wastewater consumption are down 1.9% on a volumetric basis as compared to
the previous year. This is mainly due to commercial customers who have had to close
offices due to COVID-19. Consumption has been budgeted to remain consistent with the
prior year.

e Other operating revenue categories are down $0.3 million. This is a result of not charging
interest on overdue accounts from March 13, 2020 through August 31, 2020 as a COVID-
19 relief measure and a slight decrease in other contract revenue including septage tipping
and airline effluent. Some haulers continue to take their septage outside of HRM for
disposal and there is less airline traffic at the airport.

Page 6 of 11



ITEM # 4.1

Halifax Water Board
March 25, 2021
Operating expenditures are presented below:
Table 8:
Operating Expenditures
YTD 2020/21 PYTD 2019/20
'000 '000 $ Change % Change
Water supply and treatment $ 9,100 $ 8,531 $ 569 6.67%
Water transmission and distribution 10,546 9,989 557 5.58%
Wastewater collection 12,962 12,289 673 5.48%
Stormwater collection 4,434 4,387 47 1.07%
Wastewater treatment 18,624 18,339 285 1.55%
Engineering and information services 8,337 8,819 (482) (5.47%)
Regulatory services 3,582 3,441 141 4.10%
Customer services 4,460 4,675 (215) (4.60%)
Administration services 5,174 5,371 (197) (3.67%)
Depreciation and amortization 23,996 21,453 2,543 11.85%
$ 101,215 $ 97,294 $ 3,921 4.03%

Key items to note:

e Operating expenditures of $101.2 million are $3.9 million higher than the prior year. This
is a result of the following:

o Water supply and treatment has increased due to higher chemical costs for polymer
and alum and major repair work to raw water pump at the Pockwock facility and
higher electricity costs.

o Water transmission and distribution has increased mainly due to higher salaries and
benefits including the creation of a new superintendent position as well as higher
fleet costs.

o Wastewater collection has increased mainly due to higher salaries and benefits
including the creation of two new full time positions and an increase in materials
and supplies purchases.

o Wastewater treatment has increased mainly due to purchase of UV lamps, higher
processing costs, and electricity costs.

o Engineering and information services has decreased relative to higher consulting
costs in the prior year.

o Depreciation and amortization have increased as a result of additions to utility plant
in service at year end.

Page 7 of 11



ITEM # 4.1

Halifax Water Board
March 25, 2021
Table 9:
Summary of Depreciation
YTD 2020/21 PYTD 2019/20
'000 '000 $ Change % Change
Water depreciation $ 9,488 $ 8,293 $ 1,195 14.41%
Wastewater depreciation 13,221 12,216 1,005 8.23%
Stormwater depreciation 1,287 944 343 36.33%
$ 23,996 $ 21,453 $ 2,543 11.85%

e Water depreciation of $9.5 million has increased $1.2 million from the prior year as a result
of §51.1 million in utility plant in service additions at the end of the prior fiscal year.

e Wastewater depreciation of $13.2 million has increased $1.0 million from the prior year as
a result of $30.9 million in utility plant in service additions at the end of the prior fiscal
year.

e Stormwater depreciation of $1.3 million has increased $0.3 million from the prior year as
a result of $17.8 million in utility plant in service additions at the end of the prior fiscal
year.

Pages 5 through 7 of the attachment present the Statement of Earnings by service and the table
below is a summary:

Table 10:
Operating Results by Service
YTD 2020/21 PYTD 2019/20
'000 '000 $ Change % Change
Water $ 1,980 $ 5,534 $ (3,554) (64.2%)
Wastewater (5,912) (2,222) (3,690) 166.1%
Stormwater (1,305) (573) (732) 127.7%
Earnings (loss) $ (5,237) $ 2,739 $ (7,976) (291.2%)

Key items to note:

e Water services earnings of $2.0 million have decreased from the prior year by $3.6
million due to the following factors:

o Decrease in consumption as a result of lower usage by commercial customers.
o Decrease in late payment fees as a result of COVID-19 relief measures.

o Increase in operating expenditures mainly due to depreciation of new assets,
higher chemical costs, major repair work, and higher salaries and benefits.

o Increase in financial and other expenditures due to higher debt servicing costs and
an increase in the dividend/grant in lieu of taxes paid to HRM.

Page 8 of 11



ITEM # 4.1

Halifax Water Board
March 25, 2021

e Wastewater services loss of $5.9 million has increased from the prior year by $3.7
million due to the following factors:

o

o

o

o

Decrease in consumption as a result of lower discharge by commercial customers.
Decrease in late payment fees as a result of COVID-19 relief measures.

Increase in operating expenditures mainly due to depreciation of new assets, an
increase in salaries and benefits, and an increase in materials and equipment
purchases.

Increase in financial and other expenditures due to higher debt servicing costs.

e Stormwater services loss of $1.3 million has increased from the prior year by $0.7 million
due to the following factors:

o

o

Increase in operating expenditures mainly due to depreciation of new assets.

Increase in financial and other expenditures due to higher debt servicing costs.

To fund the deficit for wastewater services, the NSUARB has approved a transfer from special
purpose reserves, to a maximum of $5.0 million, which will be completed in the current fiscal year.

Pages 8 through 9 of the attachment present the Statement of Earnings by activity and the table
below is a summary:

Table 11:
Results by Activity
YTD 2020/21 PYTD 2019/20
'000 '000 $ Change % Change
Regulated activities $ (5,938) $ 2,138 $ (8,076) (377.7%)
Unregulated activities 701 601 100 16.6%
Earnings (loss) $ (5,237) $ 2,739 $ (7,976) (291.2%)

Key items to note:

e Regulated activities loss of $5.9 million has increased from the prior year by $8.1 million
due to the following factors:

o

o

Decrease in consumption as a result of lower usage by commercial customers.

Decrease in interest and late payment fees as a result of COVID-19 relief
measures.

Increase in operating expenditures mainly due to depreciation of new assets and
higher salaries and benefits including the creation of new positions.

Increase in financial and other expenditures due to higher debt servicing costs and
an increase in the dividend/grant in lieu of taxes.

Page 9 of 11



ITEM # 4.1

Halifax Water Board
March 25, 2021

e Unregulated activities earnings of $0.7 million have increased $0.1 million from the prior
year due to a decrease in operating costs for the leachate and dewatering facilities.

Results under International Financial Reporting Standards as compared to NSUARB
Handbook

As noted previously, the AcSB requires Halifax Water, as a rate regulated utility, to report financial
results using IFRS. The NSUARB requires Halifax Water to report in accordance with the
NSUARB Handbook. The table below reconciles the results between IFRS and the NSUARB
Handbook:

Table 12:
Reconcile IFRS to NSUARB
YTD 2020/21 PYTD 2019/20
'000 '000

IFRS comprehensive earnings $ 2,084 $ 10,241
Add non-cash pension expense 9,354 7,345
Subtract debt principal payments (18,634) (17,063)
Add depreciation expense on contributed assets 15,652 15,114
Subtract amortization of contributed capital (15,652) (15,114)
Add various depreciation adjustments 1,959 2,216
Subtract OCI gain - -
NSUARB earnings (loss) $ (5,237) $ 2,739

Operating revenues are the same as operating revenues using IFRS and the NSUARB Handbook.

The main differences relate to reporting requirements surrounding the recognition of various
expenditures as follows:

e Non-cash pension expense represents the accrued portion of contributions to the pension
plan and is not considered an expense for NSUARB Handbook reporting purposes.

e The principle payments on long term debt are recognized as an expense for NSUARB
Handbook reporting purposes but are not an expense in IFRS statements.

e Depreciation expense on contributed assets is not an expense for NSUARB Handbook
purposes, however, it is offset by the removal of the amortization of contributed capital.
IFRS requires contributed capital to be treated as a long term liability and amortized,
resulting in higher long term liabilities and lower equity on the statement of financial
position.

e The various depreciation adjustments include the add back of losses on the disposal of
utility plant in service and IFRS requires componentization of assets and shorter useful
lives resulting in higher depreciation than under NSUARB Handbook reporting.

Statement of Earnings and Comprehensive Earnings (IFRS) - Page 2 of attachment

Page 10 of 11



ITEM #4.1
Halifax Water Board

March 25, 2021

Key indicators and balances from the Statement of Earnings and Comprehensive Earnings are

provided in the table below:

Table 13:
Summarized Comprehensive Earnings
YTD 2020/21 PYTD 2019/20
'000 ‘000 $ Change % Change

Operating revenues $ 126,086 $ 127,428 (1,342) (1.1%)
Operating expenditures 130,070 123,525 6,545 5.3%
Earnings (loss) from operations before

financial and other revenues and (3,984) 3,903 (7,887) (202.1%)
Financial and other revenues 17,932 17,689 243 1.4%
Financial and other expenditures 11,864 11,351 513 4.5%
Total comprehensive earnings for the year  $ 2,084 § 10,241 (8,157) (79.7%)

e Operating revenues of $126.1 million are $1.3 million lower than the prior year. Details

have been discussed in preceding pages.

e Operating expenditures of $130.1 million are $6.5 million higher than the prior year. This

is a result of the following factors:

o Increase in depreciation and amortization expense of $3.2 million as a result of

additions to utility plant in service.

o Increase in accrued pension expense of $2.0 million as a result of the actuarial
extrapolation at year end, resulting in a higher estimate for this current fiscal year.

o Increase in salaries as benefits due to the creation of new positions and wage rate

increases.

¢ Financial and other revenues and expenditures have not changed drastically from the prior
year. The increase is mainly due to the $0.8 million increase of the dividend/grant in lieu
of taxes, which is based on the value of assets at the end of the previous fiscal year. In
previous years, the dividend/grant in lieu of taxes was based only on the value of water
assets. In the current fiscal year, a new agreement was signed with HRM and the
dividend/grant in lieu of taxes is also paid on the value of wastewater and stormwater

assets.

ATTACHMENTS

Unaudited Operating Results for the eleven (11) months ended February 28, 2021.

Digitally signed by Alicia

Report prepared by: Alicia Scallion

H Date: 2021.03.18
Scallion 16:38:24 0300

Alicia Scallion, CPA, CA, Manager, Accounting, (902) 497-9785

Page 11 of 11




ITEM#4.1
Halifax Water Board
March 25, 2021

ATTACHMENT
Page 1 of 9
HALIFAX WATER
UNAUDITED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - IFRS
FEBRUARY 28, 2021 (in thousands)
February 28 February 29 March 31 From Prior Year
2021 2020 2020 $ Change % Change
Assets
Current
Cash and cash equivalents $ 58,565 $ 55,514 § 49,953 $ 3,051 5.5%
Receivables
Customers charges and contractual 13,290 15,751 18,405 (2,461) (15.6%)
Unbilled service revenues 19,234 18,474 17,367 760 4.1%
Halifax Regional Municipality 0 0 3,668 0 0.0%
Inventory 2,120 1,637 1,736 483 29.5%
Prepaids 724 175 1,002 549 313.7%
93,933 91,551 92,131 2,382 2.6%
Intangible assets 17,334 14,171 18,951 3,163 22.3%
Capital work in progress 65,357 87,185 18,104 (21,828) (25.0%)
Utility plant in service 1,238,850 1,193,132 1,281,010 45,718 3.8%
Total assets 1,415,474 1,386,039 1,410,196 29,435 2.1%
Regulatory deferral account 2,637 2,829 2,812 (192) (6.8%)
Total assets and regulatory deferral account $ 1418111 $ 1,388,868 $ 1,413,008 $ 29,243 2.1%
Liabilities
Current
Payables and accruals
Trade 16,021 13,094 28,756 2,927 22.4%
Interest on long term debt 2,122 2,343 2,139 (221) (9.4%)
Halifax Regional Municipality 2,986 4,093 0 (1,107) (27.0%)
Contractor and customer deposits 195 200 197 (5) (2.5%)
Current portion of deferred contributed capital 14,488 13,846 14,488 642 4.6%
Current portion of long term debt 20,559 19,484 21,184 1,075 5.5%
Unearned revenue 1,305 1,735 760 (430) (24.8%)
57,676 54,795 67,524 2,881 5.3%
Deferred contributed capital 877,087 863,453 879,460 13,634 1.6%
Long term debt 204,089 199,646 197,962 4,443 2.2%
Employee benefit obligation 72,660 77,001 63,365 (4,341) (5.6%)
Total liabilities 1,211,512 1,194,895 1,208,311 16,617 1.4%
Equity
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (26,453) (41,209) (26,453) 14,756 (35.8%)
Accumulated surplus 233,052 235,182 231,150 (2,130) (0.9%)
Total equity 206,599 193,973 204,697 12,626 6.5%

Total liabilities and equity $ 1418111 $ 1,388,868 $ 1,413,008 $ 29,243 2.1%




HALIFAX WATER

UNAUDITED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS AND COMPREHENSIVE EARNINGS - ALL SERVICES - IFRS
APRIL 1, 2020 - FEBRUARY 28, 2021 (11 MONTHS)
ACTUAL YEAR TO DATE COMPLETE: 91.67%

Page 2 of 9

ACTUAL APR 1/20 ACTUAL
YEAR TO DATE MAR 31/21 YEAR TO DATE
THIS YEAR LAST YEAR BUDGET as % of From Prior Year
'000 '000 '000 BUDGET $ Change % Change
Operating revenues
Water $ 43,717  $ 44,050 $ 48,083 90.92% $ (333) (0.76%)
Wastewater 63,958 64,820 70,365 90.89% (862) (1.33%)
Stormwater 9,080 9,145 9,882 91.88% (65) (0.71%)
Public fire protection 6,694 6,485 7,074 94.63% 209 3.22%
Private fire protection 816 804 884 92.31% 12 1.49%
Other operating revenue 1,821 2,124 2,327 78.26% (303) (14.27%)
126,086 127,428 138,615 90.96% (1,342) (1.05%)
Operating expenditures
Water supply and treatment 9,100 8,531 10,590 85.93% 569 6.67%
Water transmission and distribution 10,546 9,989 12,311 85.66% 557 5.58%
Wastewater collection 12,962 12,289 13,499 96.02% 673 5.48%
Stormwater collection 4,434 4,387 5,821 76.17% 47 1.07%
Wastewater treatment 18,624 18,339 21,413 86.98% 285 1.55%
Engineering and information services 8,337 8,819 9,204 90.58% (482) (5.47%)
Regulatory services 3,582 3,441 4,359 82.17% 141 4.10%
Customer services 4,460 4,675 5,413 82.39% (215) (4.60%)
Administration services 5174 5,371 8,071 64.11% (197) (3.67%)
Pension services 9,354 7,345 10,204 91.67% 2,009 27.35%
Depreciation and amortization 43,497 40,339 41,357 105.17% 3,158 7.83%
130,070 123,525 142,242 91.44% 6,545 5.30%
Earnings from operations before financial
and other revenues and expenditures (3,984) 3,903 (3,627) 109.84% (7,887) (202.08%)
Financial and other revenues
Interest 202 473 87 232.18% (271) (57.29%)
Amortization of contributed capital 17,216 16,607 13,927 123.62% 609 3.67%
Other 514 609 533 96.44% (95) (15.60%)
17,932 17,689 14,547 123.27% 243 1.37%
Financial and other expenditures
Interest on long term debt 6,527 6,542 8,823 73.98% (15) (0.23%)
Amortization of debt discount 195 170 228 85.53% 25 14.71%
Dividend/grant in lieu of taxes 5,417 4,655 6,114 88.60% 762 16.37%
Other (275) (16) 32 (859.38%) (259) 1618.75%
11,864 11,351 15,197 78.07% 513 4.52%
Total comprehensive earnings for the year $ 2,084 $ 10,241  $ (4,277) (48.73%) $ (8,157) (79.65%)




HALIFAX WATER

UNAUDITED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - NSUARB
FEBRUARY 28, 2021 (in thousands)

Assets
Current
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Customers charges and contractual
Unbilled service revenues
Halifax Regional Municipality
Inventory
Prepaids

Capital work in progress
Utility plant in service
Total assets

Regulatory deferral account
Total assets and regulatory deferral account

Liabilities
Current
Payables and accruals
Trade
Interest on long term debt
Halifax Regional Municipality
Contractor and customer deposits
Current portion of long term debt
Unearned revenue

Long term debt
Deferred contributions
Total liabilities

Equity

Accumulated capital surplus
Accumulated operating surplus
Operating surplus used to fund capital
Deficiency of revenues over expenditures
Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

Page 3 of 9

February 28 February 29 March 31 From Prior Year

2021 2020 2020 $ Change % Change
$ 58,565 $ 55,514 § 49,953 $ 3,051 5.5%
13,290 15,751 18,405 (2,461) (15.6%)
19,234 18,474 17,367 760 4.1%
0 0 3,668 0 0.0%
2,120 1,637 1,736 483 29.5%
724 175 1,002 549 313.7%
93,933 91,551 92,131 2,382 2.6%
65,357 87,185 18,104 (21,828) (25.0%)
1,287,674 1,236,401 1,330,147 51,273 4.1%
1,446,964 1,415,137 1,440,382 31,827 2.2%
2,637 2,829 2,812 (192) (6.8%)
$ 1,449601 $ 1,417,966 $ 1,443,194 $ 31,635 2.2%
16,021 13,094 28,756 2,927 22.4%
2,122 2,343 2,139 (221) (9.4%)
2,986 4,093 0 (1,107) (27.0%)
195 200 197 (5) (2.5%)
20,559 19,484 21,184 1,075 5.5%
1,305 1,735 760 (430) (24.8%)
43,188 40,949 53,036 2,239 5.5%
204,089 199,646 197,962 4,443 2.2%
54,965 53,660 42,604 1,305 2.4%
302,242 294,255 293,602 7,987 2.7%
1,097,644 1,064,484 1,094,580 33,160 3.1%
42,572 44,108 52,573 (1,536) (3.5%)
12,380 12,380 12,380 0 0.0%
(5,237) 2,739 (9,941) (7,976) (291.2%)
1,147,359 1,123,711 1,149,592 23,648 2.1%
$ 1,449,601 $ 1,417,966 $ 1,443,194 $ 31,635 2.2%




HALIFAX WATER

UNAUDITED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS - ALL SERVICES - NSUARB
APRIL 1, 2020 - FEBRUARY 28, 2021 (11 MONTHS)
ACTUAL YEAR TO DATE COMPLETE: 91.67%

Page 4 of 9

ACTUAL APR 1/20 APR 1/20 ACTUAL ACTUAL
YEAR TO DATE MAR 31/21 MAR 31/21 YEARTO DATE YEAR TO DATE
THIS YEAR LAST YEAR BUDGET FORECAST as % of as % of From Prior Year Budget to Forecast
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 BUDGET FORECAST $ Change % Change $ Change % Change
Operating revenues
Water $ 43717 $ 44,050 48,083 $ 48,010 90.92% 91.06% $ (333) (0.76%) (73) (0.15%)
Wastewater 63,958 64,820 70,365 70,166 90.89% 91.15% (862) (1.33%) (199) (0.28%)
Stormwater site generated service 5,565 5,630 6,047 6,004 92.03% 92.69% (65) (1.15%) (43) (0.71%)
Stormwater right of way service 3,515 3,515 3,835 3,835 91.66% 91.66% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
Fire protection (public and private) 7,510 7,289 7,958 8,410 94.37% 89.30% 221 3.03% 452 5.68%
Other services and fees 1,161 1,261 1,416 1,326 81.99% 87.56% (100) (7.93%) (90) (6.36%)
Late payment and other connection fees 252 496 520 342 48.46% 73.68% (244) (49.19%) (178) (34.23%)
Miscellaneous 408 367 391 411 104.35% 99.27% 41 11.17% 20 5.12%
126,086 127,428 138,615 138,504 90.96% 91.03% (1,342) (1.05%) (111) (0.08%)
Operating expenditures
Water supply and treatment 9,100 8,531 10,590 10,425 85.93% 87.29% 569 6.67% (165) (1.56%)
Water transmission and distribution 10,546 9,989 12,311 11,867 85.66% 88.87% 557 5.58% (444) (3.61%)
Wastewater collection 12,962 12,289 13,499 13,264 96.02% 97.72% 673 5.48% (235) (1.74%)
Stormwater collection 4,434 4,387 5,821 5,279 76.17% 83.99% 47 1.07% (542) (9.31%)
Wastewater treatment 18,624 18,339 21,413 20,223 86.98% 92.09% 285 1.55% (1,190) (5.56%)
Engineering and information services 8,337 8,819 9,204 9,083 90.58% 91.79% (482) (5.47%) (121) (1.31%)
Regulatory services 3,582 3,441 4,359 4,144 82.17% 86.44% 141 4.10% (215) (4.93%)
Customer services 4,460 4,675 5,413 5,201 82.39% 85.75% (215) (4.60%) (212) (3.92%)
Administration services 5,174 5,371 8,071 8,047 64.11% 64.30% (197) (3.67%) (24) (0.30%)
Depreciation and amortization 23,996 21,453 27,430 28,742 87.48% 83.49% 2,543 11.85% 1,312 4.78%
101,215 97,294 118,111 116,275 85.69% 87.05% 3,921 4.03% (1,836) (1.55%)
Earnings from operations before financial
and other revenues and expenditures 24,871 30,134 20,504 22,229 121.30% 111.89% (5,263) (17.47%) 1,725 8.41%
Financial and other revenues
Interest 202 473 87 226 232.18% 89.38% (271) (57.29%) 139 159.77%
Other 514 609 533 533 96.44% 96.44% (95) (15.60%) 0 0.00%
716 1,082 620 759 115.48% 94.33% (366) (33.83%) 139 22.42%
Financial and other expenditures
Interest on long term debt 6,527 6,542 8,823 7,261 73.98% 89.89% (15) (0.23%) (1,562) (17.70%)
Repayment on long term debt 18,634 17,063 21,880 20,663 85.16% 90.18% 1,571 9.21% (1,217) (5.56%)
Amortization of debt discount 195 170 228 220 85.53% 88.64% 25 14.71% (8) (3.51%)
Dividend/grant in lieu of taxes 5,417 4,655 6,114 5,953 88.60% 91.00% 762 16.37% (161) (2.63%)
Other 51 47 32 47 159.38% 108.51% 4 8.51% 15 46.88%
30,824 28,477 37,077 34,144 83.14% 90.28% 2,347 8.24% (2,933) (7.91%)
Earnings (loss) for the year $ (5,237) $ 2,739 (15,953) $ (11,156) 32.83% 46.94% $ (7,976) (291.20%) 4,797 (30.07%)




HALIFAX WATER
UNAUDITED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS - WATER - NSUARB

APRIL 1, 2020 - FEBRUARY 28, 2021 (11 MONTHS)

ACTUAL YEAR TO DATE COMPLETE: 91.67%

Page 5 of 9

ACTUAL APR 1/20 APR 1/20 ACTUAL ACTUAL
YEAR TO DATE MAR 31/21 MAR 31/21 YEAR TO DATE YEAR TO DATE
THIS YEAR LAST YEAR BUDGET FORECAST as % of as % of From Prior Year Budget to Forecast
'000 '000 '000 '000 BUDGET FORECAST $ Change % Change $ Change % Change
Operating revenues
Water $ 43,717  $ 44,050 $ 48,083 $ 48,010 90.92% 91.06% $ (333) (0.76%) (73) (0.15%)
Public fire protection 6,694 6,485 7,074 7,336 94.63% 91.25% 209 3.22% 262 3.70%
Private fire protection 816 804 884 1,074 92.31% 75.98% 12 1.49% 190 21.49%
Bulk water stations 309 292 303 330 101.98% 93.64% 17 5.82% 27 8.91%
Late payment and other connection fees 137 226 238 163 57.56% 84.05% (89) (39.38%) (75) (31.51%)
Miscellaneous 167 150 163 177 102.45% 94.35% 17 11.33% 14 8.59%
51,840 52,007 56,745 57,090 91.36% 90.80% (167) (0.32%) 345 0.61%
Operating expenditures
Water supply and treatment 9,100 8,531 10,590 10,425 85.93% 87.29% 569 6.67% (165) (1.56%)
Water transmission and distribution 10,546 9,989 12,311 11,867 85.66% 88.87% 557 5.58% (444) (3.61%)
Engineering and information services 3,734 3,716 4,162 4,112 89.72% 90.81% 18 0.48% (50) (1.20%)
Regulatory services 980 778 1,195 1,154 82.01% 84.92% 202 25.96% (41) (3.43%)
Customer services 2,307 2,388 2,758 2,650 83.65% 87.06% (81) (3.39%) (108) (3.92%)
Administration services 2,349 2,740 4,112 4,100 57.13% 57.29% (391) (14.27%) (12) (0.29%)
Depreciation and amortization 9,488 8,293 10,993 11,219 86.31% 84.57% 1,195 14.41% 226 2.06%
38,504 36,435 46,121 45,527 83.48% 84.57% 2,069 5.68% (594) (1.29%)
Earnings from operations before financial
and other revenues and expenditures 13,336 15,572 10,624 11,563 125.53% 115.33% (2,236) (14.36%) 939 8.84%
Financial and other revenues
Interest 119 205 39 134 305.13% 88.81% (86) (41.95%) 95 243.59%
Other 389 468 394 394 98.73% 98.73% (79) (16.88%) 0 0.00%
508 673 433 528 117.32% 96.21% (165) (24.52%) 95 21.94%
Financial and other expenditures
Interest on long term debt 1,855 1,674 3,127 2,116 59.32% 87.67% 181 10.81% (1,011) (32.33%)
Repayment on long term debt 4,877 4,303 6,465 5,542 75.44% 88.00% 574 13.34% (923) (14.28%)
Amortization of debt discount 68 58 84 77 80.95% 88.31% 10 17.24% (7) (8.33%)
Dividend/grant in lieu of taxes 5,039 4,655 5,654 5,497 89.12% 91.67% 384 8.25% (157) (2.78%)
Other 25 21 2 17 1250.00% 147.06% 4 19.05% 15 750.00%
11,864 10,711 15,332 13,249 77.38% 89.55% 1,153 10.76% (2,083) (13.59%)
Earnings (loss) for the year $ 1,980 $ 5534 $ (4,275) $ (1,158) (46.32%) (170.98%) $ (3,554) (64.22%) 3,117 (72.91%)




APRIL 1, 2020 - FEBRUARY 28, 2021 (11 MONTHS)

HALIFAX WATER
UNAUDITED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS - WASTEWATER - NSUARB

ACTUAL YEAR TO DATE COMPLETE: 91.67%

Page 6 of 9

ACTUAL APR 1/20 APR 1/20 ACTUAL ACTUAL
YEAR TO DATE MAR 31/21 MAR 31/21  YEARTO DATE YEAR TO DATE
THIS YEAR LAST YEAR BUDGET FORECAST as % of as % of From Prior Year Budget to Forecast
'000 '000 '000 '000 BUDGET FORECAST $ Change % Change $ Change % Change
Operating revenues
Wastewater $ 63,958 $ 64,820 $ 70,365 $ 70,166 90.89% 91.15% $ (862) (1.33%) (199) (0.28%)
Leachate and other contract revenue 388 404 473 436 82.03% 88.99% (16) (3.96%) (37) (7.82%)
Septage tipping fees 436 474 505 505 86.34% 86.34% (38) (8.02%) 0 0.00%
Overstrength surcharge 0 14 30 15 0.00% 0.00% (14) (100.00%) (15) (50.00%)
Airplane effluent 28 77 105 40 26.67% 70.00% (49) (63.64%) (65) (61.90%)
Late payment and other connection fees 109 177 176 116 61.93% 93.97% (68) (38.42%) (60) (34.09%)
Miscellaneous 146 131 136 142 107.35% 102.82% 15 11.45% 6 4.41%
65,065 66,097 71,790 71,420 90.63% 91.10% (1,032) (1.56%) (370) (0.52%)
Operating expenditures
Wastewater collection 12,962 12,289 13,499 13,264 96.02% 97.72% 673 5.48% (235) (1.74%)
Wastewater treatment 18,624 18,339 21,413 20,223 86.98% 92.09% 285 1.55% (1,190) (5.56%)
Engineering and information services 4,147 4,389 3,769 3,701 110.03% 112.05% (242) (5.51%) (68) (1.80%)
Regulatory services 1,243 1,308 1,537 1,446 80.87% 85.96% (65) (4.97%) 91) (5.92%)
Customer services 1,913 1,967 2,352 2,253 81.34% 84.91% (54) (2.75%) (99) (4.21%)
Administration services 2,430 2,269 3,405 3,395 71.37% 71.58% 161 7.10% (10) (0.29%)
Depreciation and amortization 13,221 12,216 15,072 15,770 87.72% 83.84% 1,005 8.23% 698 4.63%
54,540 52,777 61,047 60,052 89.34% 90.82% 1,763 3.34% (995) (1.63%)
Earnings from operations before financial
and other revenues and expenditures 10,525 13,320 10,743 11,368 97.97% 92.58% (2,795) (20.98%) 625 5.82%
Financial and other revenues
Interest 51 177 39 58 130.77% 87.93% (126) (71.19%) 19 48.72%
Other 125 141 139 139 89.93% 89.93% (16) (11.35%) 0 0.00%
176 318 178 197 98.88% 89.34% (142) (44.65%) 19 10.67%
Financial and other expenditures
Interest on long term debt 4,045 4,313 4,772 4,443 84.77% 91.04% (268) (6.21%) (329) (6.89%)
Repayment on long term debt 12,110 11,421 13,442 13,287 90.09% 91.14% 689 6.03% (155) (1.15%)
Amortization of debt discount 110 100 124 123 88.71% 89.43% 10 10.00% (1) (0.81%)
Dividend/grant in lieu of taxes 322 0 398 388 80.90% 82.99% 322 0.00% (10) (2.51%)
Other 26 26 30 30 86.67% 86.67% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
16,613 15,860 18,766 18,271 88.53% 90.93% 753 4.75% (495) (2.64%)
Loss for the year $ (5,912) $ (2,222) $ (7,845) $ (6,706) 75.36% 88.16% $ (3,690) 166.07% 1,139 (14.52%)




HALIFAX WATER

UNAUDITED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS - STORMWATER - NSUARB

APRIL 1, 2020 - FEBRUARY 28, 2021 (11 MONTHS)
ACTUAL YEAR TO DATE COMPLETE: 91.67%

Page 7 of 9

ACTUAL APR 1/20 APR 1/20 ACTUAL ACTUAL
YEAR TO DATE MAR 31/21 MAR 31/21 YEAR TO DATE YEAR TO DATE
THIS YEAR LAST YEAR BUDGET FORECAST as % of as % of From Prior Year Budget to Forecast
'000 '000 ‘000 '000 BUDGET FORECAST $ Change % Change $ Change % Change
Operating revenues
Stormwater site generated service 5,565 $ 5630 $ 6,047 $ 6,004 92.03% 92.69% $ (65) (1.15%) (43) (0.71%)
Stormwater right of way service 3,515 3,515 3,835 3,835 91.66% 91.66% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
Late payment and other connection fees 6 93 106 63 5.66% 9.52% (87) (93.55%) (43) (40.57%)
Miscellaneous 95 86 92 92 103.26% 103.26% 9 10.47% 0 0.00%
9,181 9,324 10,080 9,994 91.08% 91.87% (143) (1.53%) (86) (0.85%)
Operating expenditures
Stormwater collection 4,434 4,387 5,821 5,279 76.17% 83.99% 47 1.07% (542) (9.31%)
Engineering and information services 456 714 1,273 1,270 35.82% 35.91% (258) (36.13%) 3) (0.24%)
Regulatory services 1,359 1,355 1,627 1,544 83.53% 88.02% 4 0.30% (83) (5.10%)
Customer services 240 320 303 298 79.21% 80.54% (80) (25.00%) (5) (1.65%)
Administration services 395 362 554 552 71.30% 71.56% 33 9.12% (2) (0.36%)
Depreciation and amortization 1,287 944 1,365 1,753 94.29% 73.42% 343 36.33% 388 28.42%
8,171 8,082 10,943 10,696 74.67% 76.39% 89 1.10% (247) (2.26%)
Earnings from operations before financial
and other revenues and expenditures 1,010 1,242 (863) (702) (117.03%) (143.87%) (232) (18.68%) 161 (18.66%)
Financial and other revenues
Interest 32 91 9 34 355.56% 94.12% (59) (64.84%) 25 277.78%
32 91 9 34 355.56% 94.12% (59) (64.84%) 25 277.78%
Financial and other expenditures
Interest on long term debt 627 555 924 702 67.86% 89.32% 72 12.97% (222) (24.03%)
Repayment on long term debt 1,647 1,339 1,973 1,834 83.48% 89.80% 308 23.00% (139) (7.05%)
Amortization of debt discount 17 12 20 20 85.00% 85.00% 5 41.67% 0 0.00%
Dividend/grant in lieu of taxes 56 0 62 68 90.32% 82.35% 56 0.00% 6 9.68%
2,347 1,906 2,979 2,624 78.78% 89.44% 441 23.14% (355) (11.92%)
Earnings (loss) for the year (1,305) $ (573) $ (3,833) $ (3,292) 34.05% 39.64% $ (732) 127.75% 541 (14.11%)




HALIFAX WATER

UNAUDITED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS - REGULATED AND UNREGULATED ACTIVITIES - NSUARB
APRIL 1, 2020 - FEBRUARY 28, 2021 (11 MONTHS)

ACTUAL YEAR TO DATE COMPLETE: 91.67%

Page 8 of 9

ACTUAL APR 1/20 APR 1/20 ACTUAL ACTUAL
YEAR TO DATE MAR 31/21 MAR 31/21 YEARTO DATE YEAR TO DATE
THIS YEAR LAST YEAR BUDGET FORECAST as % of as % of From Prior Year Budget to Forecast
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 BUDGET FORECAST $ Change % Change $ Change % Change
REGULATED ACTIVITIES
Operating revenues
Water $ 43717 $ 44,050 48,083 $ 48,010 90.92% 91.06% $ (333) (0.76%) (73) (0.15%)
Wastewater 63,958 64,820 70,365 70,166 90.89% 91.15% (862) (1.33%) (199) (0.28%)
Stormwater 9,080 9,145 9,882 9,839 91.88% 92.29% (65) (0.71%) (43) (0.44%)
Public fire protection 6,694 6,485 7,074 7,336 94.63% 91.25% 209 3.22% 262 3.70%
Private fire protection 816 804 884 1,074 92.31% 75.98% 12 1.49% 190 21.49%
Other operating revenue 934 1,134 1,206 1,060 77.45% 88.11% (200) (17.64%) (146) (12.11%)
125,199 126,438 137,494 137,485 91.06% 91.06% (1,239) (0.98%) (9) (0.01%)
Operating expenditures
Water supply and treatment 9,086 8,503 10,562 10,397 86.03% 87.39% 583 6.86% (165) (1.56%)
Water transmission and distribution 10,546 9,989 12,311 11,867 85.66% 88.87% 557 5.58% (444) (3.61%)
Wastewater collection 12,919 12,266 13,388 13,153 96.50% 98.22% 653 5.32% (235) (1.76%)
Stormwater collection 4,434 4,387 5,821 5,279 76.17% 83.99% 47 1.07% (542) (9.31%)
Wastewater treatment 18,145 17,677 20,571 19,635 88.21% 92.41% 468 2.65% (936) (4.55%)
Engineering and information services 8,337 8,819 9,204 9,083 90.58% 91.79% (482) (5.47%) (121) (1.31%)
Regulatory services 3,582 3,441 4,359 4,144 82.17% 86.44% 141 4.10% (215) (4.93%)
Customer services 4,410 4,639 5,373 5,161 82.08% 85.45% (229) (4.94%) (212) (3.95%)
Administration services 5,160 5,334 7,933 7,909 65.04% 65.24% (174) (3.26%) (24) (0.30%)
Depreciation and amortization 23,980 21,437 27,349 28,724 87.68% 83.48% 2,543 11.86% 1,375 5.03%
100,599 96,492 116,871 115,352 86.08% 87.21% 4,107 4.26% (1,519) (1.30%)
Earnings from operations before financial
and other revenues and expenditures 24,600 29,946 20,623 22,133 119.28% 111.15% (5,346) (17.85%) 1,510 7.32%
Financial and other revenues
Interest 202 473 87 226 232.18% 89.38% (271) (57.29%) 139 159.77%
Other 33 149 40 40 82.50% 82.50% (116) (77.85%) 0 0.00%
235 622 127 266 185.04% 88.35% (387) (62.22%) 139 109.45%
Financial and other expenditures
Interest on long term debt 6,527 6,542 8,807 7,261 74.11% 89.89% (15) (0.23%) (1,546) (17.55%)
Repayment on long term debt 18,634 17,063 21,860 20,663 85.24% 90.18% 1,571 9.21% (1,197) (5.48%)
Amortization of debt discount 195 170 228 220 85.53% 88.64% 25 14.71% (8) (3.51%)
Dividend/grant in lieu of taxes 5,417 4,655 6,114 5,953 88.60% 91.00% 762 16.37% (161) (2.63%)
30,773 28,430 37,009 34,097 83.15% 90.25% 2,343 8.24% (2,912) (7.87%)
Earnings (loss) for the year - Regulated $ (5,938) $ 2,138 (16,259) $ (11,698) 36.52% 50.76% $ (8,076) (377.74%) 4,561 (28.05%)




HALIFAX WATER

UNAUDITED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS - REGULATED AND UNREGULATED ACTIVITIES - NSUARB
APRIL 1, 2020 - FEBRUARY 28, 2021 (11 MONTHS)
ACTUAL YEAR TO DATE COMPLETE: 91.67%

Page 9 of 9

ACTUAL APR 1/20 APR 1/20 ACTUAL ACTUAL
YEAR TO DATE MAR 31/21 MAR 31/21 YEARTO DATE YEAR TO DATE
THIS YEAR LAST YEAR BUDGET FORECAST as % of as % of From Prior Year Budget to Forecast
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 BUDGET FORECAST $ Change % Change $ Change % Change
UNREGULATED ACTIVITIES
Operating revenues
Septage tipping fees 436 474 505 505 86.34% 86.34% (38) (8.02%) 0 0.00%
Leachate and other contract revenue 388 404 473 436 82.03% 88.99% (16) (3.96%) (37) (7.82%)
Airplane effluent 28 77 105 40 26.67% 70.00% (49) (63.64%) (65) (61.90%)
Miscellaneous 35 35 38 38 92.11% 92.11% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
887 990 1,121 1,019 79.13% 87.05% (103) (10.40%) (102) (9.10%)
Operating expenditures
Water supply and treatment 14 28 28 28 50.00% 50.00% (14) (50.00%) 0 0.00%
Wastewater treatment 479 662 842 588 56.89% 81.46% (183) (27.64%) (254) (30.17%)
Wastewater collection 43 23 111 111 38.74% 38.74% 20 86.96% 0 0.00%
Sponsorships and donations 64 73 68 68 94.12% 94.12% (9) (12.33%) 0 0.00%
Administration services 0 0 110 110 0.00% 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
Depreciation and amortization 16 16 81 18 19.75% 88.89% 0 0.00% (63) (77.78%)
616 802 1,240 923 49.68% 66.74% (186) (23.19%) (317) (25.56%)
Earnings from operations before financial
and other revenues and expenditures 271 188 (119) 96 (227.73%) 282.29% 83 44.15% 215 (180.67%)
Financial and other revenues
Other - leases and rentals 285 313 308 308 92.53% 92.53% (28) (8.95%) 0 0.00%
Other - energy projects 196 147 185 185 105.95% 105.95% 49 33.33% 0 0.00%
481 460 493 493 97.57% 97.57% 21 4.57% 0 0.00%
Financial and other expenditures
Other 51 47 68 47 75.00% 108.51% 4 8.51% (21) (30.88%)
51 47 68 47 75.00% 108.51% 4 8.51% (21) (30.88%)
Earnings for the year - Unregulated $ 701 $ 601 $ 306 $ 542 229.08% 129.34% $ 100 16.64% 236 77.12%
Total earnings (loss) for the year
(Regulated and Unregulated) $ (5,237) $ 2,739 $ (15,953) $ (11,156) 32.83% 46.94% $ (7,976) (291.20%) 4,797 (30.07%)




‘(J(J/ Halifax ITEM #5.1

11 Water Halifax Water Board
Halifax Regional Water Commission March 25, 2021
TO: Craig MacMullin, MBA, CPA, CGA, Chair, and Members of the Halifax

SUBMITTED BY:

Regional Water Commission Board

H Digitally signed by Jamie
Jamie Hannam
Date: 2021.03.18
Hannam 17:24:36 -03'00"

Jamie Hannam, P.Eng.
Director, Engineering and Information Services

Digitally signed by Allan

jﬂ@&@,@ cter S021.03.18 On behalf of

08:14:48 -03'00"

Louis de Montbrun, CPA, CA
Director, Corporate Services/CFO

Cathle gl;gri;illlél signed by Cathie
APPROVED: OToole Rorr07 01300
Cathie O’Toole, MBA, FCPA, FCGA, ICD.D
General Manager
DATE: March 19, 2021
SUBJECT: Capital Expenditures and Forecast for the Eleven Months Ended
February 28, 2021
ORIGIN

Capital expenditure and forecast reporting.

BACKGROUND

The Halifax Regional Water Commission (Halifax Water) Board is required to review periodic
financial information throughout the year.

DISCUSSION

The Engineering and Information Services department has been actively updating forecasted
capital expenditures to the end of the 2020/21 fiscal year based on actual expenditures year to date
and knowledge of project timelines and contract pricing. Below is the breakdown by asset class
and project status for the eleven (11) months ending February 28, 2021.

Page 1 of 3



ITEM #5.1

.
Halifax Water Board
March 25, 2021
. .
Capital Expenditure and Forecast Report
Total
Total Expenditures to
Expenditures to February 28, 2021
Total Total February 28, as a Percentage of
Expenditures Total Forecasted Forecasted 2021asa Total Forecasted
April 1, 2020 to i ining Budget Ii i to inil ge of i to
Total Budget Expenditures to February 28, to February 28, Available as of to March 31, the End of the Budget Total Budget the End of the
Budget Category 1l March 31, 2020 2021 2021 February 28, 2021 2021 Project il il Project
Active
Water $ 73,287,268 § 11,316,132 § 27,313,992 § 38,630,124 § 34,657,144 § 49,374,445 § 63,891,735 § 9,395,533 52.7% 60.5%
Wastewater 49,170,986 7,100,956 20,258,219 27,359,175 21,811,811 30,420,344 40,719,768 8,451,218 55.6% 67.2%
Stormwater 9,185,873 499,878 3,631,262 4,131,140 5,054,733 5,505,846 8,425,293 760,580 45.0% 49.0%
131,644,127 18,916,966 51,203,473 70,120,439 61,523,688 85,300,635 113,036,796 18,607,331 53.3% 62.0%
Pending
Water 22,046,440 27,888 - 27,888 22,018,552 - 11,592,440 10,454,000 0.1% 02%
Wastewater 28,776,000 - - 28,776,000 1,260,000 8,329,000 20,447,000 0.0% 0.0%
Stormwater 784,238 - - - 784,238 - - 784,238 0.0% 0.0%
51,606,678 27,888 - 27,888 51,578,790 1,260,000 19,921,440 31,685,238 0.1% 0.1%
Closed
Water 94,628 94,628 - 94,628 - - 94,628 - 100.0% 100.0%
Wastewater - - - - - 0.0% 0.0%
Stormwater - - - - - - - - 0.0% 0.0%
94,628 94,628 - 94,628 - - 94,628 - 100.0% 100.0%
$ 183,345433 $ 19,039,482 $ 51,203,473 §$ 70,242,955 $ 113,102,478 $ 86,560,635 $ 133,052,864 $50,292,569 38.3% 52 8%

The Total Budget Available of $183.3 million represents total approved budgets for pending and
active projects as at the end of March 31, 2021.

Total Expenditures to February 28, 2021 of $70.2 million include expenditures of $19.0 million
incurred prior to April 1, 2020 and expenditures of $51.2 million in the current fiscal year. This
results in a Remaining Budget Available as of February 28, 2021 of $113.1 million.

Project Managers have forecasted that total expenditures to the end of the 2020/21 fiscal year will
be $86.6 million. Based on the forecast, $16.3 million will be spent in March 2021.

The Total Project Forecast represents the total expenditures on capital projects expected by the
time of project completion. For multi-year projects, expenditures relating to future year budgets
are excluded.

Remaining Budget Available is the Total Budget Available less the Total Forecasted Expenditures
to the End of the Project. Halifax Water is forecasting to be underspent on capital projects relative
to the approved budgets. In the Active project category, there is approximately $18.6 million that
may be able to be reallocated to existing projects or used to fund future projects. In the Pending
project category, there is $19.9 million that is awaiting approval and $31.7 million that have been
deferred or cancelled. For projects that are deferred or cancelled, there will be funding available
that could be reallocated to existing projects, if required, or used to fund future capital budgets. A
strategy is currently being developed to reallocate this funding.

As projects are completed, they will be moved to the closed category. This will occur throughout
the year, however, most projects are closed in the last quarter of the fiscal year.

Page 2 of 3



ITEM #5.1
Halifax Water Board

March 25, 2021

ATTACHMENT

Project details by category and status

e Digitally signed by Alicia
AlICIa Scallion
H Date: 2021.03.18
Report prepared by:  Scallion 21:27:27 -0300

Alicia Scallion, CPA, CA, Manager, Accounting, (902)-497-9785

Page 3 of 3



Total Expenditures to
February 28, 2021 as a
Total Expenditures to | Percentage of Total
Expenditures April 1, Remaining Budget Total Forecasted Total Forecasted February 28, 2021 as a Forecasted
Total Budget Expenditures to 2020 to February 28, Total Expenditures Available as of Expenditures to Expenditures to the Ri Budget F of Total Expenditures to the
Status Service Asset Category Available March 31, 2020 2021 to February 28, 2021 February 28, 2021 March 31, 2021 End of the Project Available Budget Available End of the Project
Active w Water - Land 215,000 307,599 37,676 345,275 (130,275) 341,000 341,000 (126,000) 160.6% 101.3%
Water - Transmission 3,948,274 461,962 800,928 1,262,890 2,685,384 2,993,000 4,017,000 (68,726) 32.0% 31.4%
Water - Distribution 6,277,600 105,572 3,071,831 3,177,403 3,100,196 4,102,000 5,012,080 1,265,520 50.6% 63.4%
Water - Structures 24,945,455 2,022,975 12,611,148 14,634,123 10,311,331 19,621,248 23,428,214 1,517,241 58.7% 62.5%
Water - Treatment Facilities 2,991,982 - 265,585 265,585 2,726,397 741,000 1,618,000 1,373,982 8.9% 16.4%
Water - Energy 170,000 - - - 170,000 - 170,000 - 0.0% 0.0%
Water - Security 50,000 - 72,355 72,355 (22,355) 78,000 78,000 (28.,000) 144.7% 92.8%
Water - Equipment 8,170,278 1,413,848 3,523,456 4,937,303 3,232,975 5,488,849 6,930,000 1,240,278 60.4% 71.2%
Water - Corporate Projects 26,518,679 7,004,176 6,931,012 13,935,189 12,583,491 16,009,348 22,297,441 4,221,238 52.5% 62.5%
W Total 73,287,268 11,316,132 27,313,992 38,630,124 34,657,144 49,374,445 63,891,735 9,395,533 52.7% 60.5%!
ww Wastewater - Trunk Sewers 500,000 - 6,841 6,841 493,159 15,000 15,000 485,000 1.4% 45.6%
w - Coll 1 System 26,139,927 4,089,113 11,092,040 15,181,153 10,958,773 14,298,064 18,959,000 7,180,927 58.1% 80.1%
Wastewater - Forcemains 550,000 13,117 72,957 86,073 463,927 70,000 70,000 480,000 15.6% 123.0%
w - Structures 7,709,000 1,652,847 2,229,757 3,882,605 3,826,395 5,482,000 7,396,000 313,000 50.4% 52.5%
Wastewater - Treatment Facility 8,001,065 741,391 3,256,808 3,998,200 4,002,865 5,806,983 7,536,935 464,130 50.0% 53.0%
w - Energy 176,500 108,785 255,173 363,958 (187,458) 399,555 508,057 (331,557) 206.2% 71.6%
Wastewater - Security 400,000 147,664 255,113 402,777 (2,777) 400,000 400,000 - 100.7% 100.7%
w - Equipment 1,284,000 229,505 503,768 733,273 550,727 551,953 933,177 350,823 57.1% 78.6%
Wastewater - Corporate Projects 4,365,494 80,745 2,585,762 2,666,507 1,698,987 3,359,000 4,856,600 (491,106) 61.1% 54.9%
w - Unregulated 45,000 37,788 - 37,788 7,212 37,788 45,000 - 84.0% 84.0%
WW Total 49,170,986 7,100,956 20,258,219 27,359,175 21,811,811 30,420,344 40,719,768 8,451,217 55.6% 67.2%
sw Stormwater - Pipes 3,070,000 90,904 553,213 644,118 2,425,882 1,596,300 2,054,247 1,015,753 21.0% 31.4%
Stormwater - Culverts/Ditches 2,915,000 255,010 2,436,100 2,691,110 223,890 3,189,000 3,286,000 (371,000) 92.3% 81.9%
Stormwater - Structures 2,378,000 155,455 57,722 213,177 2,164,823 180,000 2,279,000 99,000 9.0% 9.4%
Stormwater - Corporate Projects 822,873 (1,491) 584,226 582,735 240,139 540,546 806,046 16,827 70.8% 72.3%
SW Total 9,185,873 499,878 3,631,262 4,131,140 5,054,734 5,505,846 8,425,293 760,580 45.0% 49.0%
Active Total 131,644,127 18,916,966 51,203,473 70,120,439 61,523,688 85,300,635 113,036,796 18,607,330 53.3% 62.0%
Pending w Water - Land 580,000 - - - 580,000 - 450,000 130,000 0.0% 0.0%
Water - Transmission 3,912,400 - - - 3,912,400 - 2,675,000 1,237,400 0.0% 0.0%
Water - Distribution 34,000 - - - 34,000 - - 34,000 0.0% 0.0%
Water - Structures 2,300,000 - - - 2,300,000 - 2,000,000 300,000 0.0% 0.0%
Water - Treatment Facilities 9,949,000 - - - 9,949,000 - 4,470,000 5,479,000 0.0% 0.0%
Water - Energy 455,000 - - - 455,000 - 330,000 125,000 0.0% 0.0%
Water - Corporate Projects 4,816,040 27,888 - 27,888 4,788,152 - 1,667,440 3,148,600 0.6% 1.7%
W Total 22,046,440 27,888 - 27,888 22,018,552 - 11,592,440 10,454,000 0.1% 0.2%!
ww Wastewater - Collection System 8,149,000 - - - 8,149,000 1,260,000 3,541,000 4,608,000 0.0% 0.0%
Wastewater - Forcemains 60,000 - - - 60,000 - - 60,000 0.0% 0.0%
Wastewater - Structures 10,674,000 - - - 10,674,000 - 3,000,000 7,674,000 0.0% 0.0%
Wastewater - Treatment Facility 7,975,500 - - - 7,975,500 - 1,738,000 6,237,500 0.0% 0.0%
Wastewater - Energy 1,662,500 - - - 1,662,500 - 50,000 1,612,500 0.0% 0.0%
Wastewater - Security 100,000 - - - 100,000 - - 100,000 0.0% 0.0%
Wastewater - Equipment 150,000 - - - 150,000 - - 150,000 0.0% 0.0%
Wastewater - Corporate Projects 5,000 - - - 5,000 - - 5,000 0.0% 0.0%
WW Total 28,776,000 - - - 28,776,000 1,260,000 8,329,000 20,447,000 0.0% 0.0%:!
sw Stormwater - Pipes 381,238 - - - 381,238 - - 381,238 0.0% 0.0%
Stormwater - Culverts/Ditches 280,000 - - - 280,000 - - 280,000 0.0% 0.0%
Stormwater - Structures 93,000 - - - 93,000 - - 93,000 0.0% 0.0%
Stormwater - Corporate Projects 30,000 - - - 30,000 - - 30,000 0.0% 0.0%
SW Total 784,238 - - - 784,238 - - 784,238 0.0% 0.0%!
Pending Total 51,606,678 27,888 - 27,888 51,578,790 1,260,000 19,921,440 31,685,238 0.1% 0.1%!
Closed w Water - Equipment 94,628 94,628 - 94,628 - - 94,628 - 100.0% 100.0%
W Total 94,628 94,628 - 94,628 - - 94,628 - 100.0% 100.0%
Closed Total 94,628 94,628 - 94,628 - - 94,628 - 100.0% 100.0%
Grand Total 183,345,433 19,039,482 51,203,473 70,242,955 113,102,478 86,560,635 133,052,865 50,292,568 38.3% 52.8%|

ITEM# 5.1

Halifax Water Board

March 25, 2021
ATTACHMENT

Page 1 of 1




(J’(J/ “d] ifax ITEM #5.2
l l \\EJ lC‘ I Halifax Water Board

Halifax Regional Water Commission March 25. 2021
9

TO: Craig MacMullin, MBA, CPA, CGA, Chair, and Members of the
Halifax Regional Water Commission Board

H Digitally signed by Jamie
Jamle Hannam

SUBMITTED BY: Hannam Ay

Jamie Hannam, P.Eng., Director, Engineering & IS

H Digitally signed by Cathie
Cathle O'goolz ¢ g

APPROVED: O'Toole 2 o

Cathie O’Toole, MBA, FCPA, FCGA, ICD.D, General Manager
DATE: March 17, 2021

SUBJECT: Williams Lake Road Wastewater Pump Station Rehabilitation
(Construction Phase)

ORIGIN

2019/20 & 2020/21 Capital Budgets and operational requirement to maintain system
integrity.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended the Halifax Water Board approve the construction phase of the Williams
Lake Road Wastewater Pumping Station Rehabilitation project in the amount of
$3,190,000, for a revised total project cost of $3,400,000.

BACKGROUND & DISCUSSION

The Williams Lake Road pump station was constructed in the mid 1960’s and has an
existing firm capacity of approximately 151 l/s conveyed by two extended shaft dry-pit
pumps and two close coupled dry-pit pumps. The station received partial
mechanical/electrical upgrades in the early 1980°s and in the mid 1990’s but this equipment
is nearing the end of its useful lifecycle and requires replacement. Access to the dry-well
side of the station is by ladder and Operations staff have identified the need for improved
access/egress.

Page 1 of 3



ITEM #5.2

Halifax Water Board
March 25, 2021

Work at the station will include replacement of mechanical and electrical equipment,
installation of stair access to the station’s drywell and repairs or replacement of any
deficiencies identified through the inspection and design process.

This pump station rehabilitation is a priority based on the Wastewater Pump Station asset
management plan.

In late 2019, Engineering Services were awarded to CBCL limited. The design report has
since been completed and the drawings are presently at the 90% review stage. Based on
the construction estimate in the CBCL design report, the estimated total project cost is
$3,400,000 (see attached project cost estimate). Funding in the amount of $210,000 was
previously approved for design phase services.

The construction phase of this project was planned for the 2022/23 and 2023/24 fiscal years
with the amount of $3,190,000 proposed for the two capital budget years respectively (as
detailed within the current Five-Year Capital Plan).

In parallel, within the Pump Station asset class, construction funding in the amount of
$3,000,000 was allocated in the 2020/21 Capital Budget for the Autoport Pump Station
Replacement project. However, due to a delay in finalizing the required land acquisition,
the construction phase of the Autoport project will not proceed until the summer of 2022
at the earliest.

To continue positive progress within the Pump Station renewal program, it is proposed to

undertake the Williams Lake project utilizing the funding availability from within the
Autoport project and complete the work in 2021/22 and 2022/23 fiscal years.

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS

The total estimated project cost for the Williams Lake Road Wastewater Pump Station
project is $3,400,000. With $210,000 previously approved, the balance of required funding
is $3,190,000.

The Autoport Wastewater Pump Station project has $3,000,000 in available funding, from
the 2020/21 Capital Budget. The Autoport project requires $250,000 to complete the land
acquisition process. Thus, $2,750,000 is available for the Williams Lake Road project. The
construction phase of the Autoport project will be included within a near term future capital
budget.

$440,000 will be included within the 2022/23 Capital Budget to align with the second year
of the construction phase of the Williams Lake Road project.

Page 2 of 3



ITEM #5.2

Halifax Water Board
March 25, 2021

The proposed expenditure meets the “No Regrets — Unavoidable Needs” approach of the
2012 Integrated Resource Plan. The proposed work meets the NR-UN criteria of
“Required to ensure infrastructure system integrity and safety”.

ALTERNATIVES

None

ATTACHMENT

Project Cost Estimate

Original signed by

Report Prepared by: Greg Rice, P.Eng.

Wastewater Stormwater Infrastructure Engineer

Financial Reviewed by: LO "l J f{@ MO n ﬁb rin

Louis de Montbrun, CPA, CA
Director, Corporate Services/CFO, 902-490-3685

Page 3 of 3




ITEM #5.2

Halifax Water Board
March 25, 2021

ATTACHMENT 11-Mar-2021
Williams Lake Road PS Upgrade
Project Cost Estimate

Item Total Cost
Construction (See attached Engineer's estimate) * $2,400,000
Consultant Costs (Construction Phase) $135,000
Construction Contingency (15% of above) $380,250
Consultant Costs (Design Phase) $215,000
Sub-total $3,130,250
Net HST (4.286%) $134,163
Sub-total $3.264,413
Halifax Water Staff and Related Expenses $30,000
Sub-total $3.,294.413
Interest & Overhead (1%) $32,944
Total Project Cost Estimate $3,400,000

* Includes contractor O/H & Profits and Escalation




EEE! OPINION of PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COSTS

William's Lake Pump Station, Halifax NS
Lift Station Upgrades

DATE:

August 10, 2020

CBCL FILE No.:

201004.00

PREPARED BY:

PG/AT

EST. DESCRIPTION :

Class D Estimate

No. DESCRIPTION COST Ratio
ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION COSTS
Civil Work S 46,000
Demolition & Removals S 26,000
Reinforced Concrete S 198,000
Masonry and Walls S 32,000
Roof Structure and Roofing S 19,000
Miscellaneous Metals $ 68,000
Building Finish S 11,000
Temporary Works S 32,000
Pump Equipment S 382,000
Process Mechanical S 428,000
Material Handling and Building Equipment S 10,000
Process Integration (instrumentation & control) S 60,000
Building Mechanical S 192,000
Electrical S 519,000
SUB-TOTAL COSTS (Excluding below contingencies, allowance and factors) S 2,023,000
General Contractor, Fees, Overheads and Profit 15% S 304,000
-Design-Develepment-Ceontingeney—Note s 26% S 466,000
Escalation / Inflation (Based on 2021 dollars) - Note 3 2% S 55,860
Locatior-FactertBchrdirg-Processtauipment—Notes 188 S
Construction-Contingeney-(Exeluding-Process-Eatipment—Note2 s -
TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COSTS (A) $2,849,000
Taxes (HST) 15% S 427,350
TOTAL ESTIMATE OF PROBABLE COST c/w HST $3,277,000

THIS OPINION OF PROBABLE COSTS IS PRESENTED ON THE BASIS OF EXPERIENCE, QUALIFICATIONS, AND BEST JUDGEMENT. IT HAS BEEN PREPARED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH ACCEPTABLE PRINCIPLES AND PRACTICES. MARKET TRENDS, NON-COMPETITIVE BIDDING SITUATIONS, UNFORESEEN LABOUR AND
MATERIAL ADJUSTMENTS AND THE LIKE ARE BEYOND THE CONTROL OF CBCL LIMITED. AS SUCH WE CANNOT WARRANT OR GUARANTEE THAT ACTUAL COSTS
WILL NOT VARY FROM THE OPINION PROVIDED.

Note 1
Note 2
Note 3
Note 4

* A Design Development Contingency is to allow for increases of qty's; material costs; as the work is better defined
** A Construction Contingency is to allow for cost of additional work over and above the contract Awarded price.
*** The Escalation/Inflation allowance is for increases in construction costs from time the budget to Tender Call
**** The Location Factor is for variances between constr. costs at the location of the project & historical costs data

Form CBCL 035.Rev2




'(J(J/ Halifax ITEM # 6

l l \\EJ lC I’ Halifax Water Board

Halifax Regional Water Commission March 25, 2021
TO: Craig MacMullin, MBA, CPA, CGA, Chair, and Members of the Halifax
Regional Water Commission Board
He|d| gi:%:leacillyéfigned by Heidi
SUBMITTED BY:  Schedler  Dae20210s1
Heidi Schedler, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary
Cath|e gilg_iéilllg signed by Cathie
APPROVED: O'Toole 105501 0300

Cathie O’Toole, MBA, FCPA, FCGA, ICD.D, General Manager

DATE: March 1, 2021
SUBJECT: Corporate Governance Manual
ORIGIN

January 28, 2016 approval of the Halifax Water Corporate Governance Manual.

September 27, 2018 approval of public Board meetings.

March 20, 2019 approval of the Board Meeting Protocol — Public Meetings.

September 24, 20202 approval of the updated Halifax Water Corporate Governance Manual.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Halifax Water Board approve the revisions to the Corporate
Governance Manual, as attached.

BACKGROUND

On September 24, 2020, the Board approved its updated Corporate Governance Manual and terms
of reference for each of the Board committees.
DISCUSSION

The 2020 update to the Corporate Governance Manual (Manual) approved by the Board was done
to ensure that the Board policies remain relevant and in keeping with principles of good governance.

The Board committed to reviewing the Manual for further updates at least annually. The attached
redlined version of the Manual sets out revisions that include:

Page 1 of 2



ITEM # 6

HRWC Board
March 25, 2021

- Addition of policy surrounding the position of staff representative on the Board,
- Additions of language confirming the applicability of FOIPOP legislation, and

- Revisions to the terms of reference for committees surrounding composition to allow
committees composition to be developed without being restricted by public versus private
representative Commissioners.

ATTACHMENT

Halifax Water Corporate Governance Manual - Approved September 24, 2020

He|d| Digitally signed by Heidi
Schedler
Report Prepared by: Schedler Date: 2021.03.19

10:55:52 -03'00"

Heidi Schedler, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary

Page 2 of 2



ITEM#6

Halifax Water Board
March 25, 2021
ATTACHMENT

‘(J(J/Ilalil'a_\'
171 Vater

Halifax Water
Corporate Governance Manual

Approved September 24, 2020

............................
............................

.......................................................... I STRAIGHT from

............................................................................... the SOURCE




Halifax Water
Corporate Governance Manual Approved September 24, 2020

Table of Contents

1. INTRODUCTION 1
1.1 LegiSIative AUTNOTITY ... iciiieiieeee ettt et ettt et e et rae e sae e et ee e es e nin e nbae i 1
A - 1ol 7= o 0Ty T PR OUPSR 1
1.3 PUrpose Of this IManUal......cci ittt ettt eb et e e e e et et erenan 1
1.4 Approval of the Corporate Governance Manual .......cc..ceieieiieiienieenenenie e 1

2. OBJECTIVES AND ACCOUNTABILITY 1
2.1 ODbjJECtiVES FOr BOVEIMANCTE .....itieuiceeiueeiteiteite ettt ettt ekt e e et see e ebees et e b enesaesae e e e esbanen 1
A Yo oo T¥ 111 o111 Y2 SRS 2
2.3 GOVEINANCE STYIE ettt e et b e b et et sae e sae et eb e e e nre e e e 2

3. BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 2
3.1 Appointment and Term of COMMISSIONEIS. .....cciuiieiieiiees ettt e etie e e e e er e erae s e ereesneee e 2
3.2 Role and Responsibilities of the Board of COMMISSIONETS .......cc.ivviveiiererierieniesic e e 2
3.3 Appointment of Chair and ViCe-Chail.........cciieiiiieiiieeiieiet ettt e eb e ene e 3
3.4 Role and Responsibilities of the Chair ......cccci i e 3
3.5 Role and Responsibilities of the Vice Chair......c.ccciccieciiieces e e e e 3
3.6 Role and Responsibilities of COMMISSIONETS ......ccuieciieiiecieees et 3
3.7 B0ard COMMITIEES ..ottt e e e 4
3.8 Role and Responsibilities of Board Committee Chairs ..........cccoeieierieriniesicieiee e e 4
3.9 Commissioner Code Of CONTUCE .....c.cciiriiiiiiiiiei it e s 4
3.10 Confidentiality Of INFOrMAatioN ...c..coiuiiiriiei ettt et aene e 4
3.11 Conflict OF INTEIEST ..ottt bbb 5

4. GENERAL MANAGER, SECRETARY AND TREASURER 5
4.1 Role and Responsibilities of the General Manager..........ccciciiieeieeniieine ettt e 5
4.2 Limitations of the GENeral Manager........cccocieiiiieieriiee sttt et sb et eee e e 5
4.3 APPOINTMENT O SECIETAMY ..eiiuiiiti ettt et e s s ee e s e e e e et e asbeesees seeenneeneensean 6
4.4 Role and Responsibilities Of the SECrETAry ......c.ciiiieririri e ettt st 6
4.5  APPOINTMENT O TIrEASUIET .eeitei et it ietietie et eetes et s eas et e st e et e e e eesaeesanea s aense et aeesbeeseesseeenneennsensen 6
4.6 Role and Responsibilities Of the TreasUrer . ... e et et sb et e e 6

5. PENSION GOVERNANCE 7

L. [STRAIGHT from

. . . s .
L T R T R N ] t he sou RCE
T T T T



Halifax Water

Corporate Governance Manual Approved September 24, 2020
6. OPERATIONS 7
[ T T T o Y <=1 o o - 1 USSP 7
(ST |V == o [ =PTSRS 7
6.3 ANNUAL GENEIAl IMIEETING ...t iictieieei ettt et e et e s et e et e b e e be e e e e saeesnee s aansaesbeesbessnesseeans 8
6.4 OPEN BOArA IMEETINGS ....ivietieieeiieeitee sttt ettt et ettt e b e e e e esae e sae e ees et e es e nseesnne e 8
6.5 1N Camera BOArd IMEETINGS ...vecieiieeiiee i it te st et e s e e see s saeesas st et e aeteeste e ee s e saeesnseansaesensbeastesnneese 8
6.6 BOard COMMITIEES ....cuiiuiiiiici i e e e s 9
Lo A VU1 Vo g 1A o I o T o [ PTRPSR 9
LR O T Lo ¥ o o TN 9
6.9 ATEENAANCE ... oot e e e s 9
Lo L0 1Y 1= g Y= e Y Yo [ ot USSR 9
L3 R 1V T4 o o - T o ANV 4 [ = USSP 9
6.12 MEETING IMAtEIIAIS ..veeiei ettt et e et e e e sae e ateeae et e et be s e e s e snnesnnennseenses 10
B.13 IMIINUTES 1.ttt e e e e b e e e e e e e e e aas e e st e s 10
6.14 Commissioner Orientation.......cccc i e 10
6.15 Commissioner EAUCAtION .....c..coiiiiiiiiiiiii i 10
6.16 RemuNeration and EXPENSES .....cc.iccieierieerieiiet it asteateeer et et e seeesee e seas et e et e sieesees e eaneereeaneen 10
6.17 POSt-APPOINTMENT. ... ettt e e e s ra s e s 11
Appendix I: Commissioner Code of Conduct 13
Appendix II: Executive Committee Terms of Reference 17
Appendix IlI: Audit and Finance Committee Terms of Reference 20
Appendix IV: Environment, Health and Safety Committee Terms of Reference 23
Appendix V: Enterprise Risk Management Committee Terms of Reference 26
Appendix VI: Template Board Meeting Business Cycle 29
Lol [STRAIGHT from
. [the SOURCE



Halifax Water
Corporate Governance Manual Approved September 24, 2020

INTRODUCTION

1.1 Legislative Authority

Halifax Water is a corporation continued by the Halifax Regional Water Commission Act, S.N.S.
2007 c. 55, as amended (Act) for the purpose of acquiring, owning and operating water,
wastewater and stormwater systems, facilities and utilities. In accordance with the Act, Halifax
Water is governed by a Board of Commissioners appointed by Halifax Regional Municipality
(HALIFAX) Council.

1.2 Background

Halifax Water has provided potable water and fire protection services to the residents of the
former City of Halifax since 1945. In 1996, in conjunction with the Halifax metro municipal
amalgamation, the utility took on a regional mandate with the transfer of water assets from the
City of Dartmouth and the Halifax County Municipality to Halifax Water. On August 1, 2007,
HALIFAX transferred its municipal wastewater and stormwater assets to Halifax Water, at which
time these services became regulated under the Public Utilities Act, R.S.N.S. 1989, c. 380, as
amended.

1.3 Purpose of this Manual

The purpose of this Corporate Governance Manual (Manual) is to ensure that Halifax Water has
effective corporate governance systems to guide the organization in achieving its corporate
objectives. This Manual is a supplement to the Act and the common law principles of corporate
governance.

1.4 Approval of the Corporate Governance Manual

The Halifax Water Board of Commissioners (Board) is the approving authority for this Manual and
will review it annually or as the Board considers necessary.

2. OBJECTIVES AND ACCOUNTABILITY

2.1 Objectives for governance

Halifax Water’s objectives for governance are to ensure that:

a. the Board is representative of and accountable to its stakeholders;
accountability, consultation, respect and transparency are reflected in the
governance of Halifax Water; and

c. Commissioners are accountable, qualified and possess the necessary skills to direct
and guide Halifax Water to effectively manage its opportunities, risks, and ongoing
needs.

Page 1 of 29

................................................................... [STRAIGHT from

® & s = s = s = & & % & ® = = ® o w8 w s o s " = ®om oo o ow o= w
L T T T T T the sOURCE
L L T T I T T T B




Halifax Water
Corporate Governance Manual Approved September 24, 2020

2.2 Accountability

The Board is accountable to stakeholders for fulfilling the roles and responsibilities set out in the
Act and this Manual.

2.3 Governance Style

The Board of Commissioners will govern in accordance with the Act and this Manual. In carrying
out its roles and responsibilities pursuant to the Act and this Manual, the Board and the
Commissioners shall consider the following:

All interactions are respectful, courteous, and civil,

Respect confidentiality of people and transparency of process,
Be accountable for your actions and behaviours,

Provide a safe, accessible work environment,

Promote an inclusive environment,

Treat employees and customers equitably,

Lead by example, and

Be positive and collaborative.

S PO Q0T

Commissioners, including non-voting Commissioners, shall participate in discussion as equals and
dissenting points of view shall be encouraged for full exploration of an issue. Commissioners shall
participate respectfully and productively in any discussion.

3. BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

3.1 Appointment and Term of Commissioners

Commissioners of the Board are appointed and hold office in accordance with the Act.

3.2 Role and Responsibilities of the Board of Commissioners

Further to the Act, the Board has the following governance responsibilities:

a. Oversee and approve, as appropriate:

i. the financial management, including setting the budget and appointing auditors,

ii. organizational performance measures and objectives,

iii. the mission, vision, and values,

iv. strategic plans and budgets,

v. the development of by-laws and policies,

vi. organizational performance measures and objectives

vii. the budget for the Board and its Committees,

viii.the remuneration and expenses policy for Commissioners,

ix. standards for Commissioner conduct and ethics, including this Manual,

X. the creation of and terms of reference for Board Committees,

xi. protocols, registers, policies for the identification and management of risks,
b. Appoint:

Page 2 of 29

L. [STRAIGHT from

LR s s s s e . . .
L T T T T T the sOURCE
L L T T I T T T B




Halifax Water
Corporate Governance Manual Approved September 24, 2020

i. the Board Chair and Vice-Chair;
ii. the Secretary and Treasurer;
iii. the General Manager;

c. Approve and adjust as appropriate the terms of employment and remuneration of the
General Manager, as negotiated and recommended by the Executive Committee;

d. Review and evaluate the General Manager’s performance annually;

e. Delegate to the General Manager, Committees or others such powers and duties as
deemed necessary to assist in fulfilling these responsibilities.

3.3 Appointment of Chair and Vice-Chair

It has been customary that the Chair is appointed from among the private resident
Commissioners and the Vice Chair from the HALIFAX Council Commissioners. The term of office
of the Chair and Vice Chair are as approved by the Board.

3.4 Role and Responsibilities of the Chair

Further to the Act, the Chair of the Board has the following responsibilities:

a. Lead, facilitate and encourage fulfillment of the various roles and responsibilities set
out in this Manual,

b. Set the time and place for all meetings of the Board, in consultation with the Board
and the General Manager,

c. Ensure that all business set out in the agenda of the Board meetings is discussed and,
if necessary, brought to resolution, and

d. Make all Commissioners aware of the General Manager’s terms of employment and
annual evaluation,,

/{

Deleted: , and

J

3.5 Role and Responsibilities of the Vice Chair

Further to the Act, the Vice Chair has the following responsibilities:

a. Exercise the roles and responsibilities of the Chair during an absence or vacancy in the
office of the Chair, and
b. Provide support to the Chair as needed,,

Deleted: <#>Sit as Chair of the Executive Committee of
the Board.q

/{

Deleted: , and

3.6 |Role and Responsibilities of the HALIFAX Staff Commissioner

Further tothe Mct\, the Commissioner appointed as HALIFAX staff representative has the following

responsibilities:

a. Act in accordance with the Commissioner Code of Conduct (Appedix I), including
acting in the best interest of Halifax Water and reporting conflicts as they arise,

b. Attend all Board meetings, unless otherwise provided leave of the Board,

c. _Provide notification to the Chair or the Secretary of any absence from a meeting as
soon as possible in advance of that meeting,

Page 3 of 29

ﬁ

Commented [HS1]: This is the section we discussed
previously — adding in some policy relating to the role of the
staff representative.

Deleted: <#>Sit as Chair of the Audit and Finance
Committee of the Board.

Commented [HS2]: To be hyperlinked.

elelelelele el OO I I [STRAIGHT from

. s s s e . LR . . .
L T T T T T th e SOURC E
L L T T I T T T B




Halifax Water
Corporate Governance Manual Approved September 24, 2020

d. Participate in training and development, as appropriate, including attendance at
workshops, conferences and seminars relevant to governance, and

e. Sharing information between the Board and HALIFAX, as needed and without
breaching confidentiality, for the purpose of facilitating operations of either Halifax
Water or HALIFAX.

3.7 Role and Responsibilities of Commissioners

Further to the Act, Commissioners have the following responsibilities:

a. Act in accordance with the Commissioner Code of Conduct (Appendix 1), including
acting in the best interest of Halifax Water and reporting conflicts as they arise,

b. Act as an agent and trustee of Halifax Water in the execution of its mandate and the

protection of its assets,

Participate respectfully in deliberations with fellow Commissioners,

Support final decisions and/or motions adopted by the Board,

Review all briefing material sent out prior to all meetings,

Attend all Board meetings and all Committee meetings, unless otherwise provided

leave of the Board,

g. Provide notification to the Chair or the Secretary of any absence from a meeting as
soon as possible in advance of that meeting,

h. Sit on Board Committees, as required and approved by the Board,

i. Maintain confidentiality of corporate information as required and/or directed, and

j. Participate in training and development, as appropriate, including attendance at
workshops, conferences and seminars relevant to governance.

oo o0

3.8 Board Committees
The Board approves following committees and their attached terms of reference:

Executive Committee (Appendix I1),

Audit and Finance Committee (Appendix Ill),

Environment, Health and Safety Committee (Appendix IV), and
Enterprise Risk Management Committee (Appendix V).

Qo0 oo

3.9 Role and Responsibilities of Board Committee Chairs

Further to the terms of reference for each Board Committee, Committee Chairs have the
following responsibilities:

Preside over Committee meetings,

Establish meeting agendas in consultation with the General Manager,

Fill any vacant position(s) on the Committee in a timely manner;

Report to the Board the activities, decisions and recommendations of the Committee.

Qo0 oo

3.10 Commissioner Code of Conduct

Page 4 of 29

. s s s e LR . . .
® s s = % = 8 =+ % ® T B P B B B B B B B OB P B P OB O ® B OB OB OE T oL R oo oW the SOURCE
T T T R T )




Halifax Water
Corporate Governance Manual Approved September 24, 2020

The Commissioner Code of Conduct (Appendix 1), shall be reviewed and signed by each
Commissioner following appointment or re-appointment and otherwise annually.

3.11  Confidentiality of Information

Halifax Water is subject to the freedom of information and protection of privacy provisions of

the confidentiality of information received through the Board, including, but not limited to: Lovelace during the December/January workshop. Act

Part XX of the Municipal Government Act. Commissioners and the Board shall uphold and protect Commented [HS3]: This addition was requested by
name to be hyperlinked.

The content of any Halifax Water customer file, Formatted: Font: Italic

In camera deliberations and/or decisions,
Personnel matters, and
Sensitive commercial information.

o0 oo

Any disclosure of non-confidential information should be limited to such individuals as are
necessary to assist Commissioners in effectively carrying out their functions as Commissioners.

3.12 Conflict of Interest

Where a conflict of interest, as defined in the Commissioner Code of Conduct (Appendix 1), is
declared by a Commissioner or the Chair, the conflicted Commissioner must refrain from voting
on and participating in any way in any matter directly or indirectly related to the subject matter
of the conflict. This includes refraining from any attempt to influence decision making on any
such matter.

4. GENERAL MANAGER, SECRETARY AND TREASURER

4.1 Role and Responsibilities of the General Manager

The General Manager is accountable to the Board and shall be evaluated in accordance with the
General Manager performance management process established by the Board of
Commissioners.

Further to the Act, the General Manager is conferred with full authority, scope and executive
powers by the Board to carry out the following responsibilities:

a. Actin the best interest of Halifax Water,
Provide strategic leadership and vision to Halifax Water,

c. Supervise and manage the day-to-day operations of Halifax Water in a responsible
and sustainable manner, including effectively staffing the organization,

d. Develop and implement appropriate plans and budgets,

e. Encourage and facilitate effective relationships with stakeholders, including
development of an effective communications strategy,

f.  Ensure policies and procedures are developed, maintained, disclosed and updated as
appropriate,

g. Promote a culture of integrity, accountability, respect and civility,

h. Ensure legal, regulatory and environmental compliance,

Page 5 of 29

Lelelelelelele el NI o [STRAIGHT from

LR LR . . .
L T T T T T the SOURCE
L L T T I T T T B




Halifax Water
Corporate Governance Manual Approved September 24, 2020

i. Advise the Chair and/or the Board in a timely manner of any risks, issues, events or
pending matters that may impact the Board’s roles or responsibilities,

j.  Recommend organizational performance measures to the Board,

k. Attend all Board and Board Committee meetings in a non-voting, ex officio capacity,

|.  Presenttothe Board an annual succession plan for key positions within Halifax Water,
which includes a plan for temporary acting capacity,

m. Delegate such duties and responsibilities as appropriate to ensure effective day-to-
day operations, and

n. Any such other duties as the Board may direct or delegate from time to time.

4.2 Limitations of the General Manager

The General Manager shall not cause or allow any practices, activity, decision or organizational
circumstances which are contrary to an approved motion of the Board, unlawful or in violation
of commonly acceptable business or professional ethics.

The General Manager is not authorized to utilize funds in @ manner contrary to the law or
regulatory requirements.

4.3 Appointment of Secretary

The Board appoints General Counsel of Halifax Water as Secretary to the Board, who shall hold
this position until such time as the Board, by resolution, determines otherwise.

4.4 Role and Responsibilities of the Secretary

The Secretary reports to the Chair and Committee Chairs on matters relating to the Board or
Board Committees and to the General Manager for day-to-day operational matters.

Further to the Act, the Secretary has the following responsibilities:

a. Notify Commissioners of meetings and communications as directed by the Chair or
the General Manager,
Attend all Board and Board Committee meetings in a non-voting, ex officio capacity,

c. Provide advice to the Board, Chair and/or Board Committees on governance or other
issues, as needed,

d. Maintain all official results of the Board and Board Committees, including policy
decisions and minutes of all official meetings,

e. Distribute to Commissioners all relevant Board materials and documents as directed
by the Chair, the Committee Chairs, or the General Manager,

f. Organize logistical support for Board and Board Committee meetings, including
training and development events,

g. Provide other support functions to the Board and the Chair, as needed;

h. Provide support to the General Manager and Treasurer, as needed.

4.5 Appointment of Treasurer

Page 6 of 29

L. [STRAIGHT from

LR s s s s e . . .
L T T T T T the sOURCE
L L T T I T T T B




Halifax Water
Corporate Governance Manual Approved September 24, 2020

The Board appoints the Chief Financial Officer of Halifax Water as Treasurer to the Board, who
shall hold this position until such time as the Board, by resolution, determines otherwise.

4.6 Role and Responsibilities of the Treasurer

The Treasurer reports to the Chair and Committee Chairs on matters relating to the Board or
Board Committees and to the General Manager for day-to-day operational matters.

Further to the Act, the Treasurer has the following responsibilities:

Manage the finances of Halifax Water,

Implement appropriate systems of internal financial controls,

Manage organizational risk, from a financial perspective,

Develop long term financial plans and rate strategies to ensure adequate cash flow,
Administer the Halifax Water Employees’ Pension Plan and support the Board in their
role as Administrators and Trustees of the Pension Plan,

Treasury operations and controls,

Manage daily cash balances,

Track and analyze actual revenues and expenses against the annual budget,

Liaise with bankers, auditors and regulators, as appropriate,

Provide reports to the Board relating to the finances of Halifax Water,

Attend all Board and Audit and Finance Committee meetings in a non-voting, ex officio
capacity,

I. Inform the Board of key financial events, trends, concerns, and fiscal health, and

m. Report any fraud, significant policy violations or legislative non-compliance to the
Chair of the Audit Committee and General Manager.

Poo oo

=~ TS o oth

5. PENSION GOVERNANCE

The Board is responsible for the administration of the Halifax Water Employees’ Pension Plan,
including establishing the Pension Plan’s governance framework and policies. The Board is
responsible for approving amendments to the Pension Plan text, the trust agreements,
contribution rates and funding, the audited financial statements, actuarial valuations and
assumptions.

6. OPERATIONS

6.1 Board Agendas

Board meeting agendas shall be established in consultation with the Board Chair and Vice Chair,
the General Manager and Secretary.

The Board approves the meeting agenda at the commencement of each meeting.

Sufficient time shall be allocated for the meeting as a whole and for individual agenda items to
enable all views to be heard and considered before a decision is taken.

Page 7 of 29

'''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''' [STRAIGHT from

« s s s s s s T . .
® s s = % = 8 =+ % ® T B P B B B B B B B OB P B P OB O ® B OB OB OE T oL R oo oW the sOURCE
I T L T I R I N R )




Halifax Water
Corporate Governance Manual Approved September 24, 2020
Items requested by Commissioners may be added to the agenda with the approval of the Board.

Such items may be discussed at the meeting introduced, deferred to another meeting, and/or
referred to staff.

The Chair or the Board may refer any matter on the agenda to a Board Committee, as
appropriate.

6.2 Meetings

At the discretion of the Chair, and in consultation with the General Manager, a minimum of five
Board meetings shall be held each fiscal year, not including the annual general meeting. These
meetings may follow the Template Board Meeting Business Cycle (Appendix VII).

The Board and Board Committees may meet and/or render decisions in person, virtually, by
telephone or via other forum that allows for effective meetings and decision-making.

6.3 Annual General Meeting

The Board shall hold an annual general meeting (AGM) once per year, which shall be open to the
public. The agenda of the AGM shall include presentation of strategic initiatives, major capital
initiatives, and year-end financial results.

6.4 Open Board Meetings

Halifax Water promotes a high degree of openness and transparency to maintain the confidence
of stakeholders. Halifax Water Board meetings are open to the public, which is accomplished by
allowing members of the public to attend in-person meetings, live-broadcasting meetings where
possible, and/or posting audio/video recordings of Board meetings on the Halifax Water website
in a timely manner.

All Board meeting agendas and materials will be available to the public via the Halifax Water
website.

Only at the AGM will members of the public be provided an opportunity to speak and/or ask
questions of the Board or Halifax Water staff. At all other public meetings of the Board, members
of the public are permitted to observe only. Members of the public may request meetings with
Halifax Water staff at any time.

Meetings of Board Committees are not open to the public.

6.5 In Camera Board Meetings

Board meetings are open to the public, with the exception of the following matters, which shall
be discussed and deliberated in camera:

a. Acquiring or disposing of property,
b. Personnel matters,
c. Labour relations issues,

Page 8 of 29

................................................................... [STRAIGHT from

® & s = s = s = & & % & ® = = ® o w8 w s o s " = ®om oo o ow o= w
L T T T T T the sOURCE
L L T T I T T T B




Halifax Water

Corporate Governance Manual Approved September 24, 2020
d. Specific customer case files,
e. Contract negotiations,
f. Litigation and potential litigation,
g. Legal advice,
h. Security, and
i

Other confidential matters designated by the Board of Commissioners.

In camera meetings may be attended by the General Manager, Secretary and Treasurer. The
Board may meet without Halifax Water staff, as necessary and approved by the Chair of the
Board.

Minutes or motions of any Board in camera sessions shall be kept separate from published Board
minutes and motions.

6.6 Board Committees

The Board may establish standing or ad hoc committees as required to fulfill its responsibilities.
Board Committees shall have terms of reference approved by the Board, setting out, among
other things, the composition of the Committee.

6.7 Authority to Preside

The Chair of the Board shall preside at all meetings of the Board, except when absent or unable
to preside.

Where the Chair is absent or is unable to preside at any meeting of the Board, the Vice Chair shall
preside at that meeting of the Board.

Where the Chair and Vice Chair are absent or unable to preside any meeting of the Board, the
Chair shall appoint a Commissioner of the Board to preside at that meeting.

6.8 Quorum
In accordance with the Act, a quorum of the Board is four voting Commissioners.
6.9 Attendance

Commissioners are expected to attend all Board or Committee meetings. In accordance with the
Act, a Commissioner of the Board shall cease to be a Commissioner after absence from three
consecutive meetings without leave of the Board.

A Commissioner participating virtually or via conference call is deemed present at the meeting.

Any Commissioner unable to attend a Board meeting shall give prior notice to the Chair and/or
the Secretary.

The Chair or the Board, in consultation with the General Manager, may invite stakeholders or
experts to Board or Board Committee meetings, whether in camera or open to the public.

Page 9 of 29

[STRAIGHT from

® s s = s = s s & & * = = = = 8 = 8 = o4 o s o+ = w w2 ow o= o ow . .
L T T T T T the SOURCE
L L T T I T T T B




Halifax Water
Corporate Governance Manual Approved September 24, 2020

6.10 Meeting Conduct

The Board shall use Robert’s Rules of Order to conduct its proceedings.

6.11 Motions and Voting

Motions require a mover and a seconder from the voting Commissioners.
Motions are carried by majority vote.

Commissioners may only abstain from a vote in a case of a conflict of interest recognized by the
Chair.

6.12 Meeting Materials

The Secretary shall ensure distribution of all available materials relevant to the meeting agenda
to all Commissioners.

6.13  Minutes

The Secretary or staff designate shall record minutes of all Board and Board Committee meetings,
which shall include:

the date and location of the meeting,

attendance of Commissioners, staff and any other presenters,

decisions including approval of agenda, previous minutes and motions,

any specific reference, comment or discussion point requested for inclusion by a
Commissioner, and

e. action items for follow up.

o0 oo

Minutes of in camera sessions and Board Committee meetings are confidential.

6.14 Commissioner QOrientation

Each new Board Commissioner shall receive, as soon as practicable upon appointment, an
orientation to the Board and Halifax Water, which may include items such as:

the Act, other relevant legislation and regulations,

an overview of Halifax Water including relevant financial, statistical and operational
information,

this Manual,

the Commissioner Code of Conduct,

an overview of the General Manager evaluation process and remuneration,

the Halifax Water Employees’ Pension Plan and the Board’s role as Administrator and
Trustee of the Pension Plan, and

g. other material, as appropriate.

T Q@

S oo o0

Page 10 of 29

Lelelelelelele el NI o [STRAIGHT from

LR LR . . .
L T T T T T the SOURCE
L L T T I T T T B




Halifax Water
Corporate Governance Manual Approved September 24, 2020

6.15 Commissioner Education

The Board recognizes the importance of providing ongoing training, development and education
for its Commissioners on water, wastewater and stormwater issues as well as governance roles
and responsibilities.

To facilitate ongoing education, Halifax Water may, from time-to-time, retain membership in
relevant professional organizations providing educational opportunities. Commissioners are
encouraged to participate in opportunities relevant to the work of the Board identified by the
Chair and/or the General Manager.

6.16 Remuneration and Expenses

Commissioners are compensated in accordance with approved polices of the Board.

The per diem rate shall be reviewed and approved by the Board annually, based on a comparison
group of similar boards.

Commissioners shall be reimbursed by Halifax Water for reasonable expenses incurred on Board
business in accordance with Halifax Water’'s Employment Expense Reimbursement Policy, which
shall be reviewed and confirmed by the Treasurer.

6.17 Post-Appointment
Commissioners agree:

a. within six months after leaving office, to not accept appointment to a board of
directors with which Halifax Water has had dealings during the six-month period
immediately prior to leaving office (excepting employment unrelated to the business
of Halifax Water);

b. to not act for, or on behalf of, any person or entity, in respect of any ongoing
negotiations before the Board; and

c. to not draw on privileged information, or on the services of Halifax Water’s
employees, in an effort to secure future employment.

Page 11 of 29

[STRAIGHT from

® s s = s = s s & & * = = = = 8 = 8 = o4 o s o+ = w w2 ow o= o ow . .
L T T T T T the SOURCE
L L T T I T T T B




Halifax Water
Corporate Governance Manual Approved September 24, 2020

Appendix |

Commissioner Code of Conduct

Page 12 of 29

.....................................
.....................................

............................................................................ [STRAIGHT from

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo th e SOURC E
----------------------------------------




Halifax Water
Corporate Governance Manual Approved September 24, 2020

Halifax Water
Commissioner Code of Conduct

Purpose

The purpose of this code of conduct is to set Halifax Water’s expectation for Commissioners to conduct
themselves in an ethical and businesslike manner.

Commissioners are expected to exercise their duties and responsibilities set out in the Halifax Regional
Water Commission Act (Act) and in the Halifax Water Corporate Governance Manual (Manual) honestly,
in good faith, in the best interests of Halifax Water, which supersedes the personal interest of any
individual Commissioner.

This code of conduct provides guidance to Commissioners on appropriate behaviours and on recognizing
and properly managing conflicts of interest fairly and expeditiously.

Key Responsibilities

Commissioners are expected to:
a. conduct themselves in a manner that instills public confidence in the conduct of Halifax Water,
b. exercise their duties and responsibilities with the degree of care, diligence and skill expected of a
competent and prepared director of a board of a public entity,
act with honesty and integrity,
be respectful of others and their opinions,
be independent and impartial,
not be influenced by self-interest, outside pressure, expectation of reward or fear of criticism,
owe primary business loyalty to Halifax Water,
avoid conflicts of interest,
disclose any perceived or real conflicts of interest to the Chair of the Board or the Secretary,
work collaboratively with the Chair of the Board to resolve and/or manage conflicts of interest,
and
k. comply with all other relevant policies and governance documents.

T T Fm e a0

Conflict of Interest
A conflict of interest arises when a Commissioner is placed in a situation where their personal or financial
interest, or that of a family member or a close, personal contact, conflicts with the interests of Halifax

Water or with the Commissioner’s responsibility to Halifax Water.

Conflicts can be actual, potential and/or perceived.

Page 13 of 29

[STRAIGHT from

® s s = s = s s & & * = = = = 8 = 8 = o4 o s o+ = w w2 ow o= o ow .
L T T T T T the sOURCE
L L T T I T T T B




Halifax Water
Corporate Governance Manual Approved September 24, 2020

The standard that will be applied to determine whether a conflict of interest exists is that of an
independent observer who might reasonably question whether the Commissioner’s actions or decisions
are determined by or could result in a gain or benefit to the Commissioner, family member or close,
personal contact.

A conflict of interest depends on the situation, and not on the character or actions of the Commissioner.

Duty to Disclose

Commissioners must make written, full, timely and ongoing disclosure of conflicts of interest to the Chair
of the Board or the Secretary.

This code and the attached acknowledgement form must be reviewed and completed by every
Commissioner upon being appointed to the Board. Thereafter, ongoing, written disclosure must be made
by Commissioners as conflicts of interest arise.

Early disclosure of conflicts of interest is key to successful resolution.
Deemed Conflicts
A conflict of interest will arise in the following situations:

- When the Commissioner has a financial interest, beyond any compensation approved by the
Board, in the outcome of a decision of Halifax Water.

- When the Commissioner is related to, in a close relationship, or in a financial relationship with a
supplier or contractor conducting business with Halifax Water.

- When the Commissioner accepts a gift, payment or service in connection with their position on
the Board that exceeds $250 in value.

- When the Commissioner uses information gained from their position on the Board for personal
gain.

- When the decision of the Board relates to a family member and/or close, personal contact of a
Commissioner.

- When the Commissioner offers or accepts monetary or other gifts or payment from an external
source in connection with their position on the Board.

Any other situation that could lead to a conflict of interest must be disclosed by the Commissioner, in
accordance with this policy, and discussed with the Board Chair or the Secretary.

Page 14 of 29

[STRAIGHT from

® s s = s = s s & & * = = = = 8 = 8 = o4 o s o+ = w w2 ow o= o ow .
L T T T T T the sOURCE
L L T T I T T T B




Halifax Water

Corporate Governance Manual Approved March 25,2021 [ Deleted: september 26,2020

Commissioner Code of Conduct Acknowledgment

| (print name), have read and understand the
Commissioner Code of Conduct.

| confirm that | have declared and/or will declare any and all actual, potential and/or perceived conflicts
in accordance with the Commissioner Code of Conduct.

| agree to:

1. Exercise the powers of my office and fulfil my responsibilities honestly, in good faith and in the best
interests of Halifax Water.

2. Carry out my duties and responsibilities as a Board member in a diligent, reasonable and prudent
manner.

3. Keep confidential all information which comes to my attention and possession in my capacity as a
Board member unless the Board of Directors determines such information to have a status other than

confidential.

4. Conduct myself respectfully, having respect for others, their opinions and the collective decisions of
the Board.

5. Declare any conflict of interest immediately upon it coming to or being brought to my attention.

6. Offer my resignation as a Board member upon the Board resolving that | have breached the
Commissioner Code of Conduct.

Signature: Date:

Witness: Date:

Page 15 of 29

Lelelelelelele el NI o [STRAIGHT from

® s s = s = s s & & * = = = = 8 = 8 = o4 o s o+ = w w2 ow o= o ow . .
L T T T T T the SOURCE
L L T T I T T T B




Halifax Water

Corporate Governance Manual Approved March 25,2021 [ Deleted: september 26,2020

Appendix Il
Executive Committee

Terms of Reference

Page 16 of 29

.....................................
.....................................

............................................................................ [STRAIGHT from

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo th e SOURC E
----------------------------------------




Halifax Water

Corporate Governance Manual Approved March 25,2021 [ Deleted: september 26,2020

Halifax Water Board
Executive Committee
Terms of Reference

1. Role
The role of the Executive Committee (Committee) is to provide oversight over Halifax Water

Board (Board) governance and functions and to foster effective relationships between the Board
and Halifax Water senior management.

2. Composition and Operations

1. This Committee shall consist of the Chair of the Board, the Vice-Chair of the Board
and one member of the Board who shall be a public representative.

2. The General Manager and Secretary shall be non-voting, ex officio members of this
Committee. The Secretary shall act as recording secretary.

3. It is customary for the Chair of the Board to be the Chair of this Committee. The /{ Deleted: T
Committee _may appoint _any member as the Chair of this Committee, as \( Deleted: shall
appropriate.

4. Quorum for meetings shall be two voting members.

5. Members may attend meetings in person, via telephone or virtually.

6. The Committee shall meet at least four times per year. The Chair, in consultation

with the General Manager, may cancel a meeting at their discretion.

3. Duties and Responsibilities

In fulfilling its role, the Committee shall:

1. Oversee the governance of the Board, Board members and Board committees;

2. Monitor and assess the relationship between the Board and Halifax Water senior
management and make recommendations to the Board, where necessary, to
ensure the independence of the Board;

3. Review annually the performance of the Board, Board members and Board
committees;

4, Recommend and approve, where necessary, education for the Board and/or
Board members;

5. Oversee and make recommendations to the Board on the selection and

appointment of the Board Chair and a succession plan for the Board Chair;

Page 17 of 29

LR LR . . .
® s s = % = 8 =+ % ® T B P B B B B B B B OB P B P OB O ® B OB OB OE T oL R oo oW the SOURCE
T T T R T )




Halifax Water

Corporate Governance Manual Approved March 25,2021 (Deleted: september 24,2020
6. The Board members of the Committee will oversee and make recommendations

to the Board on the selection, performance management, and compensation of
the General Manager;

7. Set the schedule and agenda for Board meetings;

8. Liaise with external bodies, as necessary, such as Halifax Regional Municipality
(HRM);

9. Make recommendations to HRM regarding the recruitment and appointment of
Board members, including competency requirements;

10. Make recommendations to the Board regarding Board member compensation,
including the Board Chair and committee chairs.

11. Review and approve the Halifax Water Board member insurance policy;

In fulfilling its role and responsibilities, the Committee may:

12. Consult with stakeholders or experts, upon consultation with and in collaboration
with the General Manager.

4, Accountability
The Committee is accountable to the Board.
5. Review

The Committee shall review these terms of reference at least once annually and recommend any
changes to the Board for approval.

Page 18 of 29

........ [STRAIGHT from

LR . . .
® s s = % = 8 =+ % ® T B P B B B B B B B OB P B P OB O ® B OB OB OE T oL R oo oW the SOURCE
T T T R T )




Halifax Water

Corporate Governance Manual Approved March 25,2021 [ Deleted: september 26,2020

Appendix I
Audit and Finance Committee

Terms of Reference

Page 19 of 29

.....................................
.....................................

'''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''' [STRAIGHT from

.......................................
ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo the SOURCE
----------------------------------------




Halifax Water

Corporate Governance Manual Approved March 25,2021 [ Deleted: september 26,2020

Halifax Water Board
Audit and Finance Committee
Terms of Reference

1. Role

The role of the Audit and Finance Committee (Committee) is to assist the Halifax Water Board
(Board) in overseeing:

1. Halifax Water’s financial results, internal controls and independent auditors; and
2. The Halifax Regional Water Commission Employee’s Pension Plan (Pension Plan)
financial reporting and audit process.

2. Composition and Operations
1. This Committee shall consist of at least three Board members, /{ Deleted: and shall be comprised of a majority of
2. The General Manager, Treasurer and Secretary are non-voting, ex officio members public representative Board members
of this Committee.
3. The Committee shall elect a Chair from amongst its members. /{ Deleted: public resident
4. Quorum for meetings shall be two members. Members may attend meetings in
person, via telephone or virtually.
5. Halifax Water shall assign an employee as the staff liaison to the Committee, who
shall be a non-voting member of the Committee.
6. The Committee shall meet at least four times per year. The Chair, in consultation

with the staff-liaison, may cancel a meeting at their discretion.

3. Duties and Responsibilities

In fulfilling its role, the Committee shall:

1. Review and monitor the Halifax Water and the Halifax Water Employee Pension
Plan (Pension Plan) financial information, management certifications, internal
controls and other financial reporting for accuracy, fairness and appropriateness;

2. Review and recommend for approval by the Board any significant changes to
accounting policies or practices and/or internal control procedures;

3. Monitor the independent audit and recommend for approval by the Board the
associated financial statements relating to either Halifax Water or the Pension
Plan;

4. Identify and review any significant financial risks to Halifax Water, and report to

the Board as appropriate;

Page 20 of 29

Lelelelelelele el NI o [STRAIGHT from

LR LR . . .
L T T T T T the SOURCE
L L T T I T T T B




Halifax Water

Corporate Governance Manual Approved March 25,2021 [ Deleted: september 26,2020
5. Review and monitor the progress of plans developed in response to any internal

or external audits, and report to the Board as appropriate;

In fulfilling its role and responsibilities, the Committee may:

6. Investigate any matter relating to Halifax Water financial control processes or
internal controls;

7. Seek explanation from Halifax Water management of any significant financial
variance between reporting periods; and

8. Consult with stakeholders or experts, upon consultation with and in collaboration

with the General Manager.
4, Accountability
The Committee is accountable to the Board.
5. Review

The Committee shall review these Terms of Reference at least once annually and recommend
any changes to the Board for approval.

Page 21 of 29

" s s = 8 s s s 8 % s % = % = = = 8 = 8 3 4 % ® = = s = s w2 w = ow =W . .
® s s = % = 8 =+ % ® T B P B B B B B B B OB P B P OB O ® B OB OB OE T oL R oo oW the SOURCE
T T T R T )




Halifax Water

Corporate Governance Manual Approved March 25,2021 [ Deleted: september 26,2020

Appendix IV
Environment, Health and Safety Committee

Terms of Reference

Page 22 of 29

.....................................
.....................................

'''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''' [STRAIGHT from

.......................................
ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo the SOURCE
----------------------------------------




Halifax Water

Corporate Governance Manual Approved March 25,2021 [ Deleted: september 26,2020

Halifax Water Board
Environment, Health and Safety Committee
Terms of Reference

1. Role

The role of the Environment, Health and Safety Committee (Committee) is to monitor compliance
with and make recommendations to the Halifax Water Board (Board) on organizational policies,
standards and practices relating to the environment, occupational health and safety, and
organizational security.

2. Composition and Operations
1. This Committee shall consist of at least three Board members, Deleted: and shall be comprised of both public
2. The General Manager and Secretary are non-voting, ex officio members of this T representative Board members and council Board
Committee. members
3. The Committee shall elect a Chair from amongst itst members. /{ Deleted: public residen
4. Quorum for meetings shall be two members. Members may attend meetings in
person, via telephone or virtually.
5. Halifax Water shall assign an employee as the staff liaison to the Committee, who
shall be a non-voting member of the Committee.
6. The Committee shall meet at least four times per year. The Chair, in consultation
with the staff-liaison, may cancel a meeting at their discretion.
3. Duties and Responsibilities
In fulfilling its role, the Committee shall:
1. Review and monitor compliance with environmental, occupational health and
safety and organizational security related regulatory requirements, including
sufficiency of resource allocation;
2. Review quarterly and annual environmental, occupational health and safety and
organizational security reports;
3. Receive regular updates from the staff liaison and/or management relating to
environmental, occupational health and safety and organizational security issues
and/or incidents;
4. Review the results of environmental, occupational health and safety and
organizational security audits, whether internal or external;
5. Review the organizational Environmental Management System;
Page 23 of 29
L. [STRAIGHT from

LR LR . . .
L T T T T T the SOURCE
L L T T I T T T B



Halifax Water

Corporate Governance Manual Approved March 25,2021 [ Deleted: september 26,2020
6. Be aware of organizational controls in place to detect environmental,
occupational health and safety and organizational security weaknesses;
7. Recommend, where appropriate, internal or external investigation of
environmental and/or occupational health and safety issues;
8. Report to and make recommendations to the Board, as appropriate;

In fulfilling its role and responsibilities, the Committee may:

9. Consult with stakeholders or experts, upon consultation with and in collaboration
with the General Manager.

4. Accountability
The Committee is accountable to the Board.
5. Review

The Committee shall review these Terms of Reference at least once annually and recommend
any changes to the Board for approval.

Page 24 of 29

el el OO I I [STRAIGHT from

® s s = s = s s & & * = = = = 8 = 8 = o4 o s o+ = w w2 ow o= o ow . .
L T T T T T the SOURCE
L L T T I T T T B




Halifax Water

Corporate Governance Manual Approved March 25,2021 [ Deleted: september 26,2020

Appendix V
Enterprise Risk Management Committee

Terms of Reference

Page 25 of 29

.....................................
.....................................

'''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''' [STRAIGHT from

.......................................
ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo the SOURCE
----------------------------------------




Halifax Water

Corporate Governance Manual Approved March 25,2021 [ Deleted: september 26,2020

Halifax Water Board
Enterprise Risk Management Committee
Terms of Reference

1. Role

The role of the Enterprise Risk Management Committee (Committee) is to assist the Board in
fulfilling its oversight responsibilities of Halifax Water’s risk management practices, procedures

and policies.
2. Composition and Operations
1. This Committee shall consist of the chair of the Executive Committee, the chair of
the Environmental Health and Safety Committee, and the chair of the Audit and
Finance Committee.
2. The Committee shall elect a Chair from amongst its members.
3. The General lManager Treasurer and Secretary\ shall be non-voting, ex officio | Commented [HSA4]: | believe we want CFO on this
members of this Committee. committee as well. Correct me if | am wrong.
4. Quorum for meetings shall be two voting members.
5. Members may attend meetings in person, via telephone or virtually.
6. The Committee shall meet at least four times per year. The Chair, in consultation
with the General Manager may cancel a meeting at their discretion.
7. Halifax Water shall assign an employee as the staff liaison to the Committee, who
shall be a non-voting member and the recording secretary of the Committee.
3. Duties and Responsibilities

In fulfilling its role, the Committee shall:

1. Provide input to the General Manager regarding and recommend to the Board
approval of Halifax Water’s risk management policy and plan, including:
a. Risk assessment;
b. Risk appetite and tolerance;
c. Risk matrix;
d. Risk management framework;

2. Review Halifax Water’s risk management policy and plan at least annually;

3. Regularly monitor Halifax Water’s risk profile and exposure to risk, and advise the
Board as appropriate;

4. Review and assess the effectiveness of Halifax Water’s risk management

processes and recommend for approval by the Board any changes, as appropriate;

Page 26 of 29

'''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''' [STRAIGHT from

« s s s s s s T . .
® s s = % = 8 =+ % ® T B P B B B B B B B OB P B P OB O ® B OB OB OE T oL R oo oW the sOURCE
I T L T I R I N R )




Halifax Water

Corporate Governance Manual Approved March 25,2021 [ Deleted: september 26,2020

5. Promote open discussion of risk;

In fulfilling its role, the Committee may:

6. Request further information from the General Manager relating to any risk or
potential risk facing Halifax Water;

7. Request input from other Board committees; and

8. Consult with stakeholders or experts, upon consultation with and in collaboration

with the General Manager.
4. Accountability
The Committee is accountable to the Board.
5. Review

The Committee shall review these terms of reference at least once annually and recommend any
changes to the Board for approval.

Page 27 of 29

" s s = 8 s s s 8 % s % = % = = = 8 = 8 3 4 % ® = = s = s w2 w = ow =W . .
® s s = % = 8 =+ % ® T B P B B B B B B B OB P B P OB O ® B OB OB OE T oL R oo oW the SOURCE
T T T R T )




Halifax Water

Corporate Governance Manual Approved March 25,2021 [ Deleted: september 26,2020

Appendix VI

Template Board Meeting Business Cycle

Page 28 of 29

.....................................
.....................................

............................................................................ [STRAIGHT from

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo th e SOURC E
----------------------------------------




Halifax Water Template Board Meeting Business Cycle

June

September

November January March

Audited financial statements
Corporate balanced scorecard
results

Benefit plan renewals or
adjustments if required
Accountability report

Cost containment report
Lead service line renewal
program report

Capital cost contribution
program report

Completed capital projects for
previous fiscal year

Annual report

Fall debenture

Asset renewal management plan
report

Corporate balanced scorecard
targets
Spring debenture

Enterprise risk management Annual business plan
update (review of risks and risk
tolerance)

Special Utility and Review Board

Annual operating budget
Annual capital budget
Employee survey results
General Manager performance

Customer survey results
applications, if required Employee survey results

evaluation

Business Decisions and Key Information

Capital approvals
Quarterly operating results

New policies and amendment of existing policies requiring Board approval

Audited pension financial

Pension plan budget

c statements Assumptions to be used in
.g Actuarial valuation, if a valuation actuarial valuation, if a valuation
= year year
& Quarterly pension plan performance
Quarterly pension investment performance
° ‘2 Financial and capital budget updates
= § Bank balance
(-3 Quarterly compliance statement

Other Meetings:

AGM

Strategic initiatives
Major capital initiatives
Year-end financial results

July, or as otherwise scheduled by the Board

Other Meetings

Ratification of collective agreements
Special rate or regulatory applications

Commissioner training

Governance and strategy workshops

As needed in February, April, May, October or December.

Page 29 of 29




tI(I/ Halifax ITEM # 8

l l \\a l(\ I Halifax Water Board

. : : T March 25, 2021
Halifax Regional Water Commission
TO: Craig MacMullin, MBA, CPA, CGA, Chair, and Members of the
Halifax Regional Water Commission Board
Cath |e gi-thil:Z signed by Cathie
SUBMITTED BY: QO'Toole Date: 2021.03.19

11:52:36 -03'00"

Cathie O’Toole, MBA, FCPA, FCGA, ICD.D, General Manager

DATE: March 17, 2020
SUBJECT: Corporate Balanced Scorecard - 2021/22 Program
ORIGIN:

Annual Corporate Performance Measurement.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Board approve:

1. Corporate Balanced Scorecard targets for the 2021/22 fiscal year as detailed in the
attached Corporate Balanced Scorecard summary.

2. The Organizational Award Program tied to the outcomes of 12 Organizational
Indicators as detailed in the attached presentation.

BACKGROUND:

Halifax Water has been utilizing a Corporate Balanced Scorecard (CBS) to measure
performance since 2001. At that time, the CBS was viewed to be an excellent framework
to connect the mission of the utility with the everyday activities of staff. The CBS
development was very inclusive in 2001 and followed a process to identify Critical Success
Factors (CSFs) in support of the mission, establish Organizational Indicators (Ols) to
measure performance and set targets for continuous improvement. In March 2002, the
Board approved an organizational award program tied to eight Ols which were the most
objective and outward looking. This program was well received by staff and ensured that
rewards were linked to strategic outcomes. With the transfer of wastewater/stormwater
assets from HRM to Halifax Water on August 1, 2007, a broader mission, vision and CBS
were developed to ensure it was inclusive of all services provided by the utility.

Page 1 of 4



ITEM # 8

Halifax Water Board
March 25, 2021

DISCUSSION:

The mission of Halifax Water is “to provide world class services to our customers and
our environment”. The statement is simple, recognizes the connection between customers
and the environment with the “one-water” mandate, and places the responsibility on
employees to make Halifax Water a world class utility.

The vision statement for Halifax Water is:

*  We will provide our customers with high quality water, wastewater, and
stormwater services.

» Through adoption of best practices, we will place the highest value on public
health, customer service, fiscal responsibility, workplace safety and security,
asset management, regulatory compliance, and stewardship of the environment.

*  We will fully engage employees through teamwork, innovation, and professional
development

The vision statement expanded on the values and principles of a world class utility in
fulfilling its mission and captures the medium to long-term aspirations of Halifax Water.
With the vision statement developed, staff then selected the critical success factors that
support the mission, and through an interactive process, settled on the following:

High Quality Drinking Water
Service Excellence

Responsible Financial Management
Effective Asset Management

Safety and Security

Regulatory Compliance
Environmental Stewardship

ol B A G ol o

Motivated and Satisfied Employees
There are Ols established for each CSF to enable performance measurement and

establishment of targets. Each year, the Ols are reviewed and refined based on operational
objectives and approved budgets.

Page 2 of 4



ITEM # 8

Halifax Water Board
March 25, 2021

Changes proposed for 2021/22 OI Targets

1. The Customer Satisfaction target is recommended to increase from 90% to 95%. A
customer satisfaction rating of 96% has been achieved in each of the past two years,
but maintaining the current level of customer satisfaction will be challenged by
stormwater service expansion, a cost of service hearing, and a potential rate
application.

2. It is recommended that the target percentage of public health and environmental
regulatory infractions be simplified to focus on infractions resulting in a summary
offense tickets. It formerly included written Ministerial Orders (Warnings or
Directives) or Prosecutions. The rule set and process for summary offense tickets
is clearly defined and captures issues which may also result in Ministerial Orders
or Prosecutions.

3. Itisrecommended that the target for 21/22 capital expenditures (% of budget spent
by end of fiscal year) be adjusted downward from 80%-90% to 70% -80%. The
capital budget expenditures in 20/21 were impacted by the timing of the Cogswell
redevelopment and deferral of some integrated projects with the municipality. The
final results for 20/21 will not be finalized until the end of the fiscal year. It is
recommended that the target for 21/22 be set at a more realistic level given
uncertainty of some projects, the on-going pandemic, and some review of what
percentage of spend other municipalities or municipal utilities are achieving.

The attached Corporate Balance Scorecard Summary identifies the CSFs and Ols for
2021/22, as well as a projection of actual results for 2020/21. Final results will be available
after completion of the 2020/21 fiscal year audit, and will be reported to the Halifax Water
Board at the June Board meeting.

Consistent with prior years and the methodology approved by the Halifax Water Board,
the most objective Ols have been considered for the organizational award program. Of the
30 OlIs detailed in the attachment, 12 are recommended for inclusion in the award program.
These 12 Ols are reflective of seven CSFs which are critical to our mission and the most
objective and outward looking. The recognition of an organizational award hinges on a
minimum score of 7.0 to give a passing grade out of a maximum score of 12.0. Funds for
the award program are connected to the operating expense to revenue ratio being below the
target for the fiscal year. In this regard, if the operating expense to revenue ratio is met,
funds are already embedded in the operational budget. The Operating Expense to Revenue
ratio OI has been modified this year to reflect a target that incorporates the equivalent of
$2 million in expense reduction.

The targets for these Ols are meant to be stretch goals, such that the utility is pushing for
both efficiency and effectiveness in its service delivery. In many cases, the improvements
in efficiency will realize enough savings to pay for the award program itself. The water
loss control initiative is a prime example of how the utility has realized gains in efficiency

Page 3 of 4



ITEM # 8

Halifax Water Board
March 25, 2021

with financial savings in the order of $650,000 per year. In keeping with the cost
containment theme, water and wastewater service cost per connection measures under
Responsible Financial Management have targets to realize 2% savings compared to the
approved operations budget. In addition, under the Environmental Stewardship theme, the
utility is expected to reduce energy consumption (and therefore greenhouse gas emissions)
as a result of capital improvements. The continuation of the organization award tied to the
outcomes of the CBS helps promote a high level of performance and will realize future
savings for the utility.

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS

Funds for the Award Program are available with the realization of the operating expense
to revenue ratio below the target amount. In this regard, funds would be embedded within
the 2021/22 Operations Budget. In many cases, meeting the OI targets will realize direct
savings to the utility, improved operational effectiveness, and/or improved customer
service.

ALTERNATIVES

None recommended.

ATTACHMENT

Summary Corporate Balanced Scorecard

Cathie g{gi;illlg signed by Cathie
Report Prepared by: O'Toole OToole e

11:53:08 -03'00"

Cathie O’Toole, MBA, FCPA, FCGA, ICD.D, 902-490-4840

Digitally signed by Allan

Campbell
Financial Reviewed by: JV ﬁ&ﬁ#_/ﬂ, Diafe: 2021.03.19 On behalf of

11:30:54 -03'00'

Louis de Montbrun, CPA, CA Director, Corporate Services/CFO
Service, 902-490-3685

Page 4 of 4



ITEM 8

Halifax Water Board
March 25, 2021
ATTACHMENT
Organizational Indicators 2019/20 2020/21 2020/21 21/22
Results Target Projected Target
Result
High Quality Drinking Water
Adherence with 5 objectives of Water Quality Master 82 80-100/100 80
Plan for all water systems - Percentage of sites achieving 7>
targets
Bacteriological tests - Percentage free from Total 99.9% 99.3% 99.9 99.9
Coliform
Customer satisfaction about water quality - Percentage 87% 85% 84% 85%
from customer survey
Service Excellence
Customer satisfaction with service - Percentage from 96% 90% 96% 95%*
customer survey *Note 1
Water service outages - Number of connection
hours/1000 customgers *Note 2 133 200 >200% 200
Wastewater service outages — Number of connection 1.64 8 0.59 4
hours/1000 customers
Average speed of answer — Percentage of calls answered 32% 70% 71% 70%
within 20 seconds.
Responsible Financial Management
Operating expense/revenue ratio percentage 78% 83.8% 82.2% 82%
Annual cost per customer connection — Water $469 $522 $518 $543
Annual cost per customer connection — Wastewater $718 $721 $715 $758
Effective Asset Management
Water leakage control — target leakage allowance of 160 176 160-170 190% 160-170
litres/service connection/day *Note 3
1&I reduction - Number of inspections to identify private 1086 450 1308* 900
property discharge of stormwater into the wastewater
system *Note 4
Peak flow reduction from wet weather management Data is hot 34-38 1/sec 70 I/sec* 5-10 I/sec*
capital projects *Note 5 available
Percentage of time GIS and Cityworks are available 99.88% 96-98% +98% 96-98%
Capital budget expenditures - Percentage of budget Data is not 80-90% 60-70% 70-80%
spend by end of fiscal year *Note 6 available approved
Workplace Safety and Security
Average score on internal safety audits e 85-95% 96% 85-95%
NS Labour and Advanced Education compliance - # of 0 0-2 0 0-2
Incidents with written compliance orders
Lost time accidents -Number of accidents resulting in lost 1.6 2.0-3.0 0.79 1.5-2.0
time per 100 employees
Safe driving - Number of traffic Accidents per 1,000,000 4.2 4 5.5 4
km driven (maximum of 5)

|STRAIGHT from

o [the SOURCE




Training - Number of employees trained or re-certified 81% 80-90% 59%* 80-90%
before due date *Note 7
Percentage of completed safety talks 81% 80-90% 63% 80-90%

Regulatory Compliance

Percentage of public health and environmental DS 0-2 0 0-2

regulatory infractions resulting in a summary offense
ticket *Note 8

Percentage of WWTFs complying with NSE approval 91.2% 95-100% 93% 95-100%
permits (Project for 20/21 at end of February)

Environmental Stewardship

Number of ICl properties inspected by Pollution 500 i 440 257 500
Prevention each year *Note 9 recommended
target
Energy management kwh/m3 reduction associated with 4.67% 3% +3% 3%
capital projects
Bio-solids residual handling - % of sludge meeting bio- 99.2% 92-97% 98.5% 92-97%
solids concentration targets
Motivated and Satisfied Employees
Number of arbitrations divided by total number of 0.07 0 0 0
grievances
Percentage of jobs filled with internal candidates 65% 80% 75% 80%
Employee satisfaction survey result B+ A B+
Average number of days absenteeism 7.54 <7 5.88 <7
Notes:

1.  The Customer Satisfaction target is recommended to increase from 90% to 95%. Maintaining the current level of customer satisfaction of
96% will be challenged by stormwater service expansion, a cost-of-service hearing, and a potential rate application.

2. Water service outage hours for 2020/21 are likely going to exceed the target, due to the significant Cobequid Road water main breaks in
2020. Final results will not be known until the end of the fiscal year.

3. Water leakage index for 2020/21 cannot be finalized until the end of the year and is difficult to project. Q1 was impacted by significant
additional flushing to maintain water quality in the distribution system in areas where flows were lower than normal due to the impact of
COVID-19 on water demand and changed consumption patterns. The COVID-19 related flushing will be removed from the final
calculation.

4. 1&I reduction target was lowered in 20/21 as it was thought that COVID-19 might impact the number of inspections on private property.
This was not the case, and there was a record setting number of inspections of private property discharge of stormwater entering the
wastewater system.

5.  Peak Flow Reduction 2020-21 Projected Result: The data from WWMP15AB demonstrated a reduction in the range of 70 I/sec (in a
significant 6 km portion, of the total 7.4 km lined sections). Data was compromised for 1.4 km of the lined section, therefore that data is
not included. 2021-22 New Target: Crescent Ave East 1.5 km Sewershed CIPP Lining — Target 5-10 L/sec peak flow reduction

6.  Capital budget expenditures (20/21) capital budget impacted by timing of Cogswell redevelopment and deferral of some integrated
projects with the municipality. % spend for 20/21 will not be finalized until the end of the fiscal year. Target for 21/22 adjusted to be
more realistic given uncertainty of some projects, the on-going pandemic, and some review of what % of capital budgets other
municipalities or municipal utilities are able to deliver.

7.  The number of employees trained and re-certified before due date will probably be higher once final year end reporting is complete.
Some areas have not yet reported.

8.  The target percentage of public health and environmental regulatory infractions has been simplified to focus on infractions resulting in a
summary offense ticket. It formerly included written Ministerial Orders (Warnings or Directives) or Prosecutions. The rule set and
process for summary offense tickets is clearly defined.

9.  The target for IC| properties inspected by Pollution Prevention was lowered in 20/21 as it was thought that COVID-19 might impact the
number of inspections.

ST A E R R s, TETRIGGHT Tram

| the SOURCE




Jd nanirax ITEM #9

l l \\EJ l(ﬁ']‘ Halifax Water Board

Halifax Regional Water Commission March 25. 2021
9
TO: Craig MacMullin, MBA, CPA, CGA, Chair, and Members of the
Halifax Regional Water Commission Board
Susheel Sushesl A
SUBMITTED BY: Arora e

Susheel Arora, M.A.Sc., P.Eng., Director, Wastewater and
Stormwater Services

H Digitally signed by Cathie
Cathle O'Toole

APPROVED: O'Toole Sy

Cathie O’Toole, MBA, FCPA, FCGA, ICD.D, General Manager

DATE: March 17, 2021
SUBJECT: Halifax Water Odour Strategy & Service Level
ORIGIN

Seasonal odour complaints within the wastewater and combined sewer collection systems.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Halifax Water Board endorse Halifax Water’s established
response and level of service to respond to odour complaints within the wastewater and
combined collection systems.

BACKGROUND & DISCUSSION

Developing a level of service related to odour complaints and a strategy to achieve the level
of service was one of the strategic objectives in the approved 2020/21 business plan.

Odour issues are ubiquitous in wastewater treatment processes and collection systems.
Halifax Water has historical experience and data regarding collection system odours,
complaints, and delivering odour control solutions and programs. Halifax Water’s effort
and level of service have increased progressively over time. Halifax Water’s current odour
management is a combination of preventative and reactive operational responses to areas
that have experienced recurring odour complaints.

Page 1 of 3



ITEM #9

Halifax Water Board
March 25, 2021

Halifax Water has 82,000 wastewater customers, serves a population of approximately
376,000, and receives approximately 150 odour complaints per year. Approximately 50%
of the 150 odour complaints are being addressed by internal plumbing maintenance.

When a customer complaint is received, it is triaged based on the details provided on one
of two paths, Category A or Category B operational response. The established level of
service for reactionary responses to odour complaints for each path is shown in the table
below.

Category A (Emergency)

Description of Problem| Required Action Customer communication Work Timelines
Odour Odour emanating from | Schedule flushing |Wastewater and Stormwater Services to contact Investigate problem and begin
amanhole, catchbasin, and/or repairs. within 2 hrs. Inthe event of arepeat callerora remediation within 4 hrs.
or other Halifax Water prolonged period of dry hot weather, item will
infrastructure be classified as a Category Bissue.
Category B
Odour Odour emanating from | Schedule flushing |Wastewater and Stormwater Services to contact| Investigate problem within 1week
amanhole, catchbasin, and/or repairs. next business day. and initiate repair/maintenance if
orother Halifax Water required within 2 weeks.
infrastructure

*Category B is for repeat callers on a similar issue/location within a short period of time.

Based on initial field investigation, staff can generally determine if any work is required to
resolve the complaint and act accordingly.

In addition to the complaint driven response, Halifax Water has regularly scheduled
preventative maintenance routines in place for problematic areas to prevent odour
complaints.

Further to the above efforts, Halifax Water staff maintain and regularly review the odour
complaint log, as these calls are treated as a high priority. If the above measures do not
provide a reduction in complaints, or if the issue causing the odour cannot be eliminated
or managed with the above measures, a long-term permanent solution may be required.
Further mitigative solutions such as liquid phase or vapour phase treatment methods
require consideration for funding, design, installation, operation and maintenance before
implementation. As a result of a previous consultant study and recommendation, Halifax
Water optimized liquid phase chemical dosing at a select location to minimize odours.

An internal review of Halifax Water’s management and response to odour complaints
within the collection system confirms consistency with industry best practices and a level
of service that at a minimum is consistent with other municipalities/utilities that were
engaged as part of the review. In particular, Halifax Water’s record keeping of odour
complaints provides the required basis for understanding and evaluating persistent odour
complaints in the future. The Executive Summary of the Halifax Water report is attached.

It is noteworthy that odours are inherently part of operating and maintaining wastewater
collection systems, and often due to the complexity, elimination of all isolated odour

Page 2 of 3




ITEM #9

Halifax Water Board
March 25, 2021

complaints is not feasible nor practical, and mitigation is the most realistic solution
available to the utility. This report finds the positioning of Halifax Water in its performance
of odour control to be positive relative to other municipalities/utilities. Therefore,
continuation of current activities, enhanced monitoring and targeted odour mitigation
measures are an appropriate response at this time. The extended dry summer periods and
low flows may result in a higher number of complaints in the future, if this occurs Halifax
Water will be exploring additional capital investments in its systems to mitigate odours.

This report summarizes Halifax Water efforts for odour issues related to Wastewater
Collection Systems only. Halifax Water also encounters odour complaints from its
Wastewater Treatment Facilities (WWTFs). All large and medium sized WWTFs are
equipped with multiple barrier odour control systems which perform to high standard. The
complaints have significantly reduced over time due to a combination of operational
optimization and capital investments. If there is an odour issue at a WWTF it is generally
attributed to a malfunction of mechanical equipment.

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS

Halifax Water currently operates chemical dosing to minimize odours at select locations
that experience persistent complaints in the collection system. This average annual cost of
approximately $150,000 is managed operationally. Further chemical and mechanical
odour control systems would be scoped and budgeted as individual capital projects as
required. There are no other additional budget implications at this time.

ATTACHMENT

Executive Summary, Level of Service — Odour Control Management Report (March
2021)

Report Prepared by: Original signed by

Josh DeYoung, P.Eng., Operations Engineer
Wastewater & Stormwater Services, 902-830-6540

Digitally signed by Allan

Campbell
Financial Reviewed by: MV /&&e@w@‘u Date: 2021.03.18 On behalf of

15:37:32 -03'00"

Louis de Montbrun, CPA, CA
Director, Corporate Services/CFO, 902-490-3685

Page 3 of 3




ITEM#9




Executive Summary

Level of Service — Odour Control Management Report

This report provides a synopsis of Halifax Water’s historical and prospective efforts to manage
and respond to odour complaints within the wastewater and combined collection systems.

Halifax Water is responsible for operating and maintaining municipal wastewater, stormwater &
combined systems from “drains back to the source again”. In this regard, Halifax Water has a
mandate to protect the environment while providing essential collection and treatment services to
its customers. Inherently in delivering this service, conditions arise that require investigation,
research and corrective action to address system operation inefficiencies. While the potential for
odours exists within many parts of the wastewater and combined collection systems, the focus of
this report is on odours inherent in the collection system and, as such, wastewater treatment
facilities (WWTF) are beyond the scope of this report.

Nuisance odours within the collection system are a sensitive but complex issue that present
concerns to the public and pose challenges to utility staff. By implementing practicable odour
control management, these concerns can be mitigated. Effective odour control management
requires cooperation with the community and developing confidence in Halifax Water’s efforts
with respect to collection system odour identification and the level of service provided to the
public.

Halifax Water has historical experience with collection system odours and delivering odour control
efforts at progressively increasing levels of service over time. Halifax Water’s current odour
management is a combination of preventative and reactive operational responses to areas that have
experienced recurring odour complaints.

Halifax Water received approximately 150 odour complaints per year since formal tracking of
odour complaints began with the implementation of Halifax Water’s computerized maintenance
management system, Cityworks in December of 2018. Historically, odours originating from inside
the building made-up approximately 50% of the complaints received. These were commonly
addressed by internal plumbing maintenance and required no further action by Halifax Water.

Based on the details provided in the customer complaints, Halifax Water’s Customer Care Centre
triages the complaint on one of two paths, Category A or Category B operational response. The
established level of service for reactionary responses to odour complaints for each path is shown
in the table below.

Page 2 of 5



Category A (Emergency)
Description of Problem | Required Action Customer communication Work Timelines
Odour Odour emanating from | Schedule flushing [Wastewater and Stormwater Services to contact| Investigate problem and begin
a manhole, catchbasin, and/or repairs. within 2 hrs. Inthe event of a repeat callerora remediation within 4 hrs.
or other Halifax Water prolonged period of dry hot weather, item will
infrastructure be classified as a Category B issue.
Category B
Odour Odour emanating from | Schedule flushing |Wastewater and Stormwater Services to contact| Investigate problem within 1 week
amanhole, catchbasin, and/or repairs. next business day. and initiate repair/maintenance if
or other Halifax Water required within 2 weeks.
infrastructure

*Category B is for repeat callers on a similar issue/location within a short period of time.

Halifax Water staff maintain an odour complaint log (populated from Cityworks data) and review
the log on a regular basis to evaluate complaints. Based on initial field investigation, staff can
determine if any work is required to resolve the complaint and act accordingly.

In addition to the complaint driven response, an analysis of recurring complaints allows Halifax
Water to regularly schedule preventative maintenance routines for problematic areas to prevent
odour complaints. Often odour complaints may be received just prior to scheduled maintenance
activities, in which case the maintenance can often be fast-tracked when resources are available.

Quick response maintenance activities include but are not limited to:

. Investigation — identify the source (inside or outside the building, vent pipes, catchbasins
if it is a combined system, nearby pumping stations, etc.);

. Video (CCTV) inspection of the collection system;

. Clear any blockages in main, repair as required;

. Flush/clean mains or pumping stations with sewer jet/vacuum trucks;

. Jet (higher pressure) mains with sewer jet/vacuum trucks;

. Clean catchbasins/manholes;

. Install carbon filters or deodorant blocks within manholes or catchbasins;

. Meet with the customer depending on nature of complaint;

. Monitor H2S gas longer term with portable gas monitors

If the above measures do not provide a reduction in complaints, or if the issue causing the odour
cannot be eliminated or managed with the above measures, a long-term permanent solution may
be required. Liquid phase and vapour phase treatments are technologies that can assist in reducing
the formation of odours, improving health and safety and minimizing the potential for corrosion
of the infrastructure. Liquid phase treatment, as the name suggests, includes treatment of the
wastewater itself and vapour phase treatment considers treatment of the vapours within the
collection system. Further mitigative solutions such as liquid phase or vapour phase treatment
methods require consideration for funding, design, installation, operation and maintenance before
implementation.

Page 3 of 5



As aresult of a previous consultant study and recommendation, Halifax Water optimized chemical
dosing to minimize odours at select locations that experience persistent complaints in the collection
system. This average annual cost of approximately $150,000.00 is managed operationally.

A review and benchmarking exercise has determined that Halifax Water’s management and
response to odour complaints within the collection system is consistent with industry best practices
and a level of service that at a minimum is consistent with other municipalities/utilities in Canada
that were engaged as part of this report. In particular Halifax Water’s record keeping of odour
complaints provides the basis for understanding and evaluating persistent odour complaints in the
future.

It is noteworthy that odours are inherently part of operating and maintaining wastewater collection
systems, and often due to the complexity, elimination of all isolated odour complaints is not
feasible nor practical, and mitigation is the most realistic solution available to the utility. Due to
the nature of wastewater systems, odours are experienced by most if not all municipalities/utilities
with collection systems with high sewage residence times in the pipes.

This report finds the positioning of Halifax Water positive with respect to other
municipalities/utilities.

In summary, Halifax Water is in a respectable position with regard to receiving and responding to
odour complaints and overall odour management. To ensure odour concerns in the collection
system remain a high priority, recommendations on a few specific areas for improvement are
identified below.

Based on the review of current practices, recommendations discussed include but are not limited
to:

e Continue monitoring odours within the collections system based on odour complaints, with
an eye for improved monitoring technologies available.

e Document regularly scheduled odour related maintenance across the service area to
identify potential efficiencies in work plans.

e Explore the opportunity to add more odour related assets to Halifax Water’s computerized
maintenance management system (CMMS) Cityworks to more effectively track
installations and maintenance over time.

e Continue to share information between three operational regions within Halifax Water and
seek input from in-house staff with expertise.

e Add educational information to Halifax Water’s website and establish public outreach
through social media regarding general collection system odour and inform the public on
the importance of reporting odour concerns through Halifax Water’s Customer Care
Centre.

e  Work with Customer Care Centre to further develop scripts to improve the data collected
from an odour complaint call.

e Reassess existing level of service by end of 2025 (Five-year return period).

Page 4 of 5



This report also identifies the fact that the assessment has limitations. Some limitations include: a
focus solely on collection system odour complaints as Wastewater Treatment Facilities (WWTFs)
have engineered odour management systems installed as part of the infrastructure, external
municipality/utility input was limited to those responding as part of this report, and the odour
complaint records only date back to Halifax Water’s implementation of managing odour
complaints through the current CMMS, Cityworks in 2018.

Page 5 of 5



ITEM # 1-1

J(J/ Halifax Halifz;\)fl Wal:leSBg:;;(li
i arch 25,

“ atel Page 1 of 9

Halifax Reglonal Water Commission

TO: Craig MacMullin, MBA, CPA, CGA, Chair, and Members of the Halifax
Regional Water Commission Board

SUBMITTED BY: Louis de A
Date: 2021.03.17

Montbrun 14:32:31 0300
Louis de Montbrun, CPA, CA, Director, Corporate Services/CFO

Digitally signed by Reid
Campbell

. W Date: 2021.03.17
16:20:12 -03'00"

Reid Campbell, P.Eng. Director, Water Services

Digitally signed by
Susheel Susheel Arora

Date: 2021.03.17
Arora 13:53:08 -03'00'

Susheel Arora, M.A.Sc., P.Eng. Director, Wastewater & Stormwater Services
Digitally signed by Kenda

Kenda MacKenzie

H Date: 2021.03.17
MacKenzie 5oz os00

Kenda MacKenzie, P.Eng. Director, Regulatory Services

Cathie Digitally signed by Cathie
O'Tool
APPROVED: OToole Date: 2021.03.17

15:11:21 -03'00"

Cathie O’Toole, MBA, CPA, CGA, ICD.D, General Manager

SUBJECT: Financial and Operations Information Report
INFORMATION REPORT

ORIGIN:

Regular update.

This report provides a high-level overview of financial and operational performance for the utility.
Financial results are presented first, followed by indicators and statistics for water and wastewater.



ITEM # 1-1

Halifax Water Board
March 25, 2021
Page 2 of 9

FINANCIAL
HALIFAX WATER
UNAUDITED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
APRIL 1, 2020 - FEBRUARY 28, 2021 (11 MONTHS)
'000

Operating Revenues and Expenditures

$135,000
$130,000
$125,000 -
$120,000 -
$115,000 -
$110,000 -
$105,000 -
$100,000 -
$95,000 -
$90,000 -
$85,000 -
$80,000 -
$75,000 -

B YTD Actual
M YTD Budget
[ Prior YTD Actual

REVENUES EXPENDITURES

OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
YTD Actual  YTD Budget Prior YTD Actual % of Budget

REVENUES $126,086 $127,068 $127,428  90.96%
EXPENDITURES $101,215 $108,273 $97,294  85.69%
$24,871 $18,795 $30,134  121.30%
Revenues by Service
$70,000
$60,000
$50,000
$40,000 m YTD Actual
$30,000 M YTD Budget
$20,000 = Prior YTD Actual
$10,000
$0
WATER WASTEWATER STORMWATER OTHER

REVENUES BY SERVICE (METERED SALES AND SITE GENERATED CHARGE)
YTD Actual  YTD Budget Prior YTD Actual % of Budget

WATER $43,717 $44,078 $44,050 90.92%
WASTEWATER $63,958 $64,503 $64,820 90.89%
STORMWATER $9,080 $9,059 $9,145 91.88%
OTHER $9,331 $9,428 $9,413 90.72%

$126,086 $127,068 $127,428 90.96%




ITEM # 1-1

Halifax Water Board
March 25, 2021
Page 3 of 9
HALIFAX WATER
UNAUDITED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
APRIL 1, 2020 - FEBRUARY 28, 2021 (11 MONTHS)
'000
Core Water-WW-SW Expenses
$25,000
$20,000
$15,000
$10,000
W YTD Actual

$5,000
$0

M YTD Budget

M Prior YTD Actual

CORE WATER-WW-SW EXPENDITURES

YTD Actual  YTD Budget Prior YTD Actual % of Budget

WATER SUPPLY & TRTMNT $9,100 $9,708 $8,531 85.93%

WATER TRANS & DIST $10,546 $11,285 $9,989 85.66%

SW COLLECTION $4,434 $5,336 $4,387 76.17%

WW COLLECTION $12,962 $12,375 $12,289 96.02%

WW TREATMENT $18,624 $19,629 $18,339 86.98%

$55,666 $58,333 $53,535 87.48%

Other Department Expenses
(Incl. Dep'n)
$30,000
$25,000
$20,000
$15,000
$10,000
mYTD Actual
$5,000
HYTD Budget
30 = Prior YTD Actual
) A o rior Ctu
o & & \Oé &\O$
© S S N v
N g & 2 O
& & S < <
& & & $°& QSQ\
& < N R\ N
& & 9
S ha

OTHER DEPARTMENT EXPENSES (INCL DEP'N)

YTD Actual  YTD Budget Prior YTD Actual % of Budget
ENGINEERING & IS $8,337 $8,437 $8,819 90.58%
REGULATORY SERVICES $3,582 $3,996 $3,441 82.17%
CUSTOMER SERVICES $4,460 $4,962 $4,675 82.39%
ADMIN & PENSION $5,174 $7,399 $5,371 64.11%
DEPRECIATION $23,996 $25,145 $21,453 87.48%
$45,549 $49,939 $43,759 83.61%




ITEM # 1-1

Halifax Water Board
March 25, 2021
Page 4 of 9
Average Daily Water Production
Total System Input Daily Average
29,000,000
28,000,000
27,000,000
26,000,000
% 25,000,000
0
o
E
24,000,000
23,000,000
22,000,000
21,000,000
lan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct N [
Note: The latest graph point is a rolling
average for the current week (Sun-Sat) il 2001 000 w2019
Regional Water Main Break/Leak Data Water Accountability

Losses per Service Connection/Day
(International Water Association Standard)

Period Ending December 31, 2020

Current 12 Month Rolling

Year Total Breaks/Leaks | Total (up to February 28,
2021)

2019/20 191

2018/19 226

2017/18 206 171

2016/17 216

2015/16 226

Total 1071
Yr. Avg. 214.2

Real Losses: 196 litres

CBS Target: 160




ITEM # 1-1

Halifax Water Board
March 25, 2021
Page S of 9
Drinking Water: Bacterial Results
Percentage of Samples Absent of Total Coliform
B T R R E E E R R E RE E R E R R r X E B E FE
88888888 BBEEBEEEB8E B8B8E88ES
100% & £
" 8
29%
98%
97%
(7] (=] +. Ch o h [+, (=) (=] [+, o (] = = o = [ = (=] =] (=] =3 = —_ —_
= = 2 E 2 ¥ @ B = § 4 &H g 2 & ¥ = e o o
f3 25§53 28c288E£325583Fc2382¢8
——— Corporate Balance Scorecard Target 99 3% Absent
Water Quality Master Plan Objectives’
2020-2021 Q3
All Sites:
. - el e e
L. Total | % Sites Achieving 90th
Objective . . Awarded
Sites Target Percentile .
Pomts
<15 pg/L
Disinfection 63 97% -—- 17
Total Trihalomethanes 25 72% --- 0
Haloacetic Acids 21 100% -—- 20
Particle Removal 5 98% -—- 18
Corrosion Control 105 - 4.28 20
Summary Total 75
Score:  75/100



ITEM # 1-1
Halifax Water Board
March 25, 2021

Page 6 of 9

In this report each facility is assessed using monthly or quarterly averages, depending on the averaging period
specified in its Approval to Operate.

Wastewater Treatment Facility Compliance Summary
Rolling Averages - December 2020, January and February 2021
Wastewater CBODs TSS (i:;li / pH Ammonia [Phosphorous TRC D(i)s;;)glzle]d
Treatment (me/L) (me/L) 100mL) (mg/L) (mg/L) (me/L) (mg/L) Toxicity Trend
Facility Ilj;i Avg Iljii Avg. Ilj]ufi Avg. Iljii Avg. Iljji]i Avg. Eﬁi Avg. Iljlii Avg. Ilj;i Avg.
Halifax 50 [ 39 ] 40 | 29 |[s000| 0 | 69| 69 - - - - Noteewsly [ Continued
Dartmouth 50 [ 47 ] 40 | 42 [s000| 0 | 69| 67 - - - - Notsewsl | Tmproved
Herring Cove 50 | 25 | 40 | 19 |s000| o | 69| 69 - - - - NolEeuEl | Continued
Eastemn Passage | 25 | 10 | 25 | 11 ] 200 | 0 | 69 | 69 - - - - NotEewey | Continued
Mill Cove 25 | 16 | 25 | 17 | 200 | 18 | 69 | 66 - - - - NotEewey | Continued
Springfield 20 5 20 5 200 14 6-9 6.9 - - - - - Continued
Frame 20 5 20 2 200 10 6-9 7.1 - - - - - Continued
Middle Musq. 20 5 20 6 200 38 69 72 - - - - - Continued
Uplands 20 6 20 6 200 19 69 6.8 - - - - - Continued
Aerotech s 2 s |1 20| 0] eo | 72|30 09| 03| 00 - 65 | 11| MUY ] Continued
North Preston 10 9 10 29 200 10 6-9 6.7 3 0.2 1.5 1.0 - - - Declined
Lockview 20 5 20 11 200 10 1659] 69 | 80S 17 | 12S| 03 - - - Improved
Steeves (Wellington)| 20 5 20 1 200 10 | 659 68 |144S| 56 | 1.0S| 01 - - - Continued
BLT 15 ] 6 f 20 [ 20 Jao] ] eo]eo [N 0 [V [ 1 Joor| 0 . NotEeuel | rproved
Avg. of all Facilities 13 14 11 6.9 2.0 0.6 0.10 11.1
NOTES & ACRONYMS: LEGEND
CBOD:s - Carbonaceous 5-Day Biochemical Oxygen Demand NSE Compliant
TSS - Total Suspended Solids NSE Non-Compliant

* TRC - Total Residual Chlorine - Maxxam can only measure 0.10 mg/Lresidual; results of 0.1 mg/L are compliant

BDL - Below Detection Limit

W /S - Winter/ Summer compliance limits

NSE requires monthly averages be less than the NSE Compliance Limit for each parameter (Dartmouth, Eastern Passage, Halifax, Herring Cove, Mill Cove)
NSErequires quarterly averages be less than the NSE Compliance Limit for each parameter (Aerotech, Lockview, Mid. Musq., Frame, BLT, Uplands, North
Preston, Steeves, Springfield)

Continued - All parameters remain essentially unchanged since the last report

Improved - One or more parameter(s) became compliant since the last report

Declined - One or more parameters(s) became non-compliant since the last report



ITEM # 1-1

Halifax Water Board
March 25, 2021
Page 7 of 9
No. of CS0s and 550s - January 2021
77 Total Overflows
40 80
35 70
30 60
: 2
é 25 50 E
: 2
& 20 40 &
L) [ ] =
=] ]
s 15 30 &
4
10 20
5 [ [ ,
0 T T I T T H T T T II_|_I T H T ! T T T = T T H T T T T T T T T I-I T O
1 23 45 6 7 8 91011121314 1516 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31
m Overflows = Rainfall (mm)
NOTES & ACRONYMS: CSO - Combined Sewer Overflow SSO - Sanitary Sewer Overflow

e Rainfall data is from Halifax Water’s rain gauge at the Halifax WWTF.

e There were nine overflows on days when there was no recorded rainfall, as follows:

1.

2.

January 5: The CSO at Duffus St PS was due to a pump restriction from the Halifax WWTF.
January 12 and 13: The CSOs at Sackville St CSO were due to blockages caused by debris.
January 15: The CSO at King St PS & CSO was due to emergency repairs.

January 18: The CSO at Old Ferry Rd PS & CSO was due to reduced flow capacity at the Dartmouth
WWTF to accommodate scheduled maintenance and upgrades.

January 20: The CSO at Duffus St PS was due to a pump restriction from the Halifax WWTF.

January 29: The CSO at Maitland St PS & CSO was due to a blockage caused by debris.




ITEM # 1-1

Halifax Water Board

March 25, 2021

Page 8 of 9

No. of CSOs and S50s - Febrnary 2021
125 Total Overflows

40 g0

35 70

30 60
£ El
é 25 50 E
; 3
é 20 40 E

=]
s 15 30 M
P
10 20
5 - 10
0 T T T I T — T T T T i T T T T = T T T II T o T T l T T T T T I 0
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 1011 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28
m Overflows = Rainfall (mm)
NOTES & ACRONYMS: CSO - Combined Sewer Overflow SSO - Sanitary Sewer Overflow

e Rainfall data is from Halifax Water’s rain gauge at the Halifax WWTE,

e There were seven overflows on days when there was no recorded rainfall, as follows:

1.

2.

February 9: The CSO at Maitland St PS & CSO was due to a blockage caused by debris.
February 13 The CSO at Grove St CSO was due to a blockage caused by debris.

February 17: The CSO at Chain Rock PS & CSO was due to a blockage caused by debris.

February 19: The CSOs at Melva St PS & CSO and Lyle St CSO were due to reduced flow capacity at

the Dartmouth WWTF to accommodate scheduled maintenance and upgrades.
February 24: The SSO at the Mill Cove Surge Tank was due to rain on the previous day.

February 26: The SSO at the Mill Cove Surge Tank was due to rain on the previous day.




ITEM # 1-1
March 25, 2021
Page 9 of 9

Halifax Water Board

120T 991
1Z0T uer

0Z0T 221
0Z0T AON
0Z0T WO

0Z0T 1dog
omom any
0zoT ANy

0ZOT 994
OZOT uer
610T 99
610T AON

March 2019 to February 2021

610T PO
610z 1dag
6107 3ny
610T Anr
6 10T aunp
6107 AB
610T Ady

No. of CS50s and SSOs - Trend Chart

6LOT JEN

SMO[JI9A0) JO ¢




J(J/ Halifax ITEM #2-1

l l \\EJ l(ﬁ']‘ Halifax Water Board

Halifax Regional Water Commission March 25, 2021
TO: Craig MacMullin, MBA, CPA, CGA, Chair, and Members of the
Halifax Regional Water Commission Board
Jamle aigitally signed by Jamie
SUBMITTED BY: Hannam 1543 300"
Jamie Hannam, P.Eng. Director, Engineering & IS
Cath|e gigricl;lllé/ signed by Cathie
APPROVED: O'Toole h50:43 0800
Cathie O’Toole, MBA, FCPA, FCGA, ICD.D, General Manager
DATE: March 17, 2021
SUBJECT: Lake Major Water Supply Plant (WSP) — Clarifier Component

Replacement Project — Phase 11

INFORMATION REPORT

ORIGIN

The Halifax Water 2020/21 Capital Budget.

BACKGROUND

Halifax Water is planning to rehabilitate various treatment components at the Lake Major
WSP based on the recommendations of the Lake Major Water Supply Plant Process
Optimization Study (the Study) that was completed in 2016. The scope of the proposed
rehabilitation includes filters, pumping station, clarifiers, pre-oxidation, new mixers, and
related equipment. The sequence of this multi-year rehabilitation program has recently
been reviewed and agreed upon at the steering committee level and is part of the overall
Water Supply Enhancement Program (WSEP).

The Lake Major WSP is equipped with a dual train (two clarifiers with two cells per
clarifier) Degremont Ultrapulsator clarifier that promotes flocculation after chemical
mixing and prior to the water entering the filters. Each clarifier unit consists of a plate
settler system on the bottom and a tube settler system on top. The Study determined that
the tubes are no longer performing effectively. There have been various operational
challenges that have been brought on by the deterioration of these clarifiers. Additionally,
these tubes have sagged, and the Study noted concerns regarding the structural integrity of
the tubes and supports. As such, the replacement of the deteriorating clarifier components
has become an urgent requirement due to the risk of failure at any point in time.

Page 1 of 5



ITEM # 2-1

HRWC Board
March 25, 2021

The WSEP program schedule identifies the replacement of the clarifiers as a critical early
component. Even with a prioritized near-term start, the final completion and
commissioning of the new clarifier system will be well into 2026. Given the critical near
failure condition of the current clarifiers it is recommended to undertake a full like-for-like
replacement of the existing clarifier components to extend their service life to 2026 and
mitigate the critical risk of a clarifier failure.

The urgent nature of this work was envisioned in 2019, and $285,000 was approved (out
of 2018/19 budget year) in February 2019 to purchase the clarifier parts and have them on
site in case of a failure as these parts carry a significant lead time in manufacturing. The
clarifier replacement project has matured since then and Halifax Water currently has one
cell (half of a clarifier) worth of parts on site. A price to carry out the replacement of this
cell has been obtained through a public procurement process. The price to replace one cell
of clarifier equipment is approximately $100,000.

DISCUSSION

In planning the execution strategy for this project and after having further discussion with
various stakeholders, it was identified that it would be best to have all equipment on hand
(for all four cells) and continue with the rehabilitation process one cell at a time once the
rehabilitation begins in order to avoid significant schedule delays. Additionally, since the
equipment has a very long lead time, it is best to have it all on site and ready to be installed
at the start of the process.

As outlined above, one cell worth of equipment is on hand. The second cell’s equipment is

on order. Funding for the supply and rehabilitation of these first two cells was approved on
Oct 28, 2020.

The estimated total cost to replace the second full clarifier (2 cells) is detailed in the table
below:

Page 2 of 5



ITEM #2-1

HRWC Board
March 25, 2021
Iltem Total Cost

Design/Engineering and onsite inspection S 65,000
Equipment Cost S 366,000
Construction Cost (including equipment) S 200,000
Contingency (15%) S 94,650
Sub-total S 725,650
net HST S 31,101
Sub Total S 756,751
Int. and Overhead S 7,568
Total Project Cost Estimate=| $ 764,319
Total Project Cost Estimate (Rounded)=| $ 765,000

Based on this estimate and the previous approvals, the total estimated project cost for the
clarifier component replacement project is $1,530,000. The completion of this project will
provide five years of secure clarifier operation as the $38M new clarifier and pre-treatment
system is designed, constructed, and commissioned.

The clarifier replacement project is complex and poses some operational and therefore
customer, reputational, and regulatory risks. A multi-functional, cross departmental team
is engaged in the planning for the project to ensure continuity of service to customers and
adherence to water quality objectives.

A risk analysis has been conducted, and risk mitigation activities will be taken in alignment
with the risk appetite and tolerances that have been established through Enterprise Risk
Management Framework, and Halifax Water’s Risk Policy.

Planning to undertake this work has been ongoing for approximately 2 years. Continuity
of services to customers served by Lake Major will depend on employing a number of
back-up systems, including sending water from the Pockwock system across the
Macdonald bridge and use of the Lyle Street booster pumping station which is used to help
push water from the bridge line into the Dartmouth system.

The original plan was to conduct each of the four clarifier cell replacements in two 60-hour
shutdowns of the plant for a total of 8§ shutdowns. Because any use of backup systems and
changing flow patterns in the distribution system can risk discolored water, the project team
determined that the overall preferred approach would be to complete all four clarifier cell
replacements in one extended shut down lasting approximately four weeks. The following
activities have taken place or will take place to mitigate the risk of the shut-down:

e Several key components of the Lyle Street booster station have been replaced
including the pump motor, variable speed drive and control valving.

e Inthe coming weeks, several staged testing cycles of the Lyle Street Booster station
will be conducted.

Page 3 of 5



ITEM #2-1

HRWC Board
March 25, 2021

e In the Fall of 2020, a 60-hour simulation was conducted of the Lake Major plant
operating at reduced capacity to calibrate a hydraulic model of system performance
with one clarifier out of service.

e Prior to conducting the shutdown, the areas of the Dartmouth system will be flushed
to minimize the opportunity for discolored water. This will be followed with
several staged simulations to determine how the system will perform from a water
quality perspective.

e A portable stand by generator will be rented to support the Lyle Street station for
the duration of the shutdown.

e Staff have developed an application to allow customer water quality complaints to
be served to system managers on a map to better direct mitigative flushing measures
in the event of discolored water.

e The shutdown is tentatively scheduled for May. This allows time for preparatory
testing and flushing to take place in the absence of freezing temperatures and also
for the work to be completed prior to the complicating summertime factors such as
high demand or algal activity. If the work cannot be completed in May, it will be
scheduled in a similar Fall period.

e A detailed customer communications plan will be developed.

e We have begun outreach to Nova Scotia Environment to ensure they agree with our
operational plan.

e We have sought the cooperation of several large customers in the Lake Major
system who can put large demands on the system and in the case of CFB
Shearwater, use their system storage strategically.

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS

The additional funding, in the amount of $765,000, is available within the 2020/21 Capital
Budget under Lake Major WSP — Phase 1 — Temporary Side Stream. This project is not
proceeding, therefore, the current request of $765,000 can be reallocated from this project.

The funding has been approved by the General Manager and is subject to review and
approval by the NSUARB. This Information Report is provided to the Halifax Water Board
to inform of the importance of the project and the criticality to the continued delivery of
high-quality water to our customers.

The proposed expenditure meets the “NO REGRETS- UNAVOIDABLE NEEDS”
approach of the 2012 Integrated Resource Plan. The proposed work meets the NR-UN
criteria of “Firm regulatory requirement”, “Required to ensure infrastructure system
integrity and safety. The project meets these criteria based on the following: The current
equipment is failing due to age and end of life (Asset Management), causing treatment

Page 4 of 5



ITEM #2-1

HRWC Board
March 25, 2021

performance/operational issues (Infrastructure System Integrity), and/or regulatory
compliance failures (Firm Regulatory Requirement).

ATTACHMENTS

1. Lake Major Water Supply Plant Process Optimization Study (CBCL 2015)

Report Prepared by:  Original signed by

Tom Gorman, P.Eng., Manager, Water Infrastructure Engineering
902-490-4176

Page 5 of 5



. 450 Cowie Hill Road
| ]a li taX P.0. Box 8388 RPO CSC

7 1 Halifax, Nova Scotia
l l \\atcr Canada B3K 5M

ITEM # 2-1
Halifax Water
. Board
TO: Cathie O,TOOIC, MBA, FCPA, FCGA, ICD.D March 25, 2021
General Manager ATTACHMENT 1
Original signed by
SUBMITTED BY:
Jamie Hannam, P. Eng.
Director, Engineering & Information Services
DATE: Oct 9, 2020
SUBJECT: Lake Major Water Supply Plant (WSP) Clarifier Component Replacement
ORIGIN

The proposed Halifax Water 2018/19 Capital Budget.

RECOMMENDATION

The General Manager approve funding in the amount of $480,000 for the Lake Major WSP -
Clarifier Component Replacement project for a revised total project cost of $765,000.

BACKGROUND & DISCUSSION

Halifax Water is planning to upgrade various treatment components at the Lake Major WSP.
The scope of the proposed upgrades includes filters, pumping station, clarifiers, pre-oxidation,
new mixers, and related equipment. The sequence of this multi-year upgrade program is
currently being reviewed and is in the planning phase.

The Lake Major WSP is equipped with a dual train Degremont Ultrapulsator clarifier that
promotes flocculation after chemical mixing and prior to the water entering the filters. Each
clarifier unit consists of a plate settler system on the bottom and a tube settler system on top. The
2016 Optimization Study determined that the tubes are no longer performing effectively. There
have been various operational challenges that have been brought on by the deterioration of these

[STRAIGHT from

[the SOURCE




Lake Major Water Supply Plant Clarifier Component Replacement Page 2 of 3

clarifiers. Additionally, these tubes have sagged, and the study noted concerns regarding the
structural integrity of the tubes and supports. As such, the replacement of the deteriorating
clarifier components could become an urgent requirement at any point in time. It is
recommended that this work occur as soon as possible.

This urgent nature of this work was envisioned last year, where $285,000 was approved from the
2018/19 capital (in February 2019) to purchase the clarifier parts and have them on site in case of
a failure as these parts carry a significant lead time in manufacturing. Halifax Water currently
has enough replacement parts on hand to replace one cell (half of one clarifier). The price to
engage a contractor to replace the parts/components in one cell of clarifier is approx. $100,000.
This estimate is based on a recently completed public procurement process and is currently
pending award.

Based on the risk of the failure to the clarifiers, it is recommended to proceed in a staged
approach to replace the two cells in each of the two clarifiers (total of four cells). Based on
current quotes and estimates, the overall budget to replace one full clarifier (ie. two cells) is
detailed in the table below:

ltem Total Cost

Design/Engineering and onsite inspection S 65,000
Equipment Cost S 366,000
Construction Cost (including equipment) S 200,000
Contingency (15%) S 94,650
Sub-total S 725,650
net HST S 31,101
Sub Total S 756,751
Int. and Overhead S 7,568
Total Project Cost Estimate = | S 764,319

Total Project Cost Estimate (Rounded) = | S 765,000

Currently, Halifax Water has sufficient funding to engage the contractor to start work on the
higher priority cell of the clarifier. This report is requesting the remaining funding to complete
the recommended component replacements in the other half of the clarifier.

Based on the successful completion of the work, and subject to funding approval, it is staff’s

recommendation to continue with component replacements for the second clarifier in the next
fiscal year.

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS

Funding in the amount of $480,000 is available as follows:

..--..--....-...-‘..-‘..-'...'-...-‘..-‘..-'..-'.‘..-‘..--..--..-.-...-‘..--. [STRAIGHTfrom




Lake Major Water Supply Plant Clarifier Component Replacement Page 3 of 3

$285,000 is available within the 2019/20 Capital Budget under Lake Major WSP — Clarifier
Repair.

$75,000 is available from the existing LM WSP CLARIFIER UPGRADES project (CWO# 3-
2701) as this planned work is incorporated into a larger future project, and $120,000 is available
from the existing LM WSP-REPL LIME FEED & DELIVERY SYS project (CWO# 3-2947) as
this project will not be proceeding at this time.

The proposed expenditure meets the “NO REGRETS- UNAVOIDABLE NEEDS” approach of
the 2012 Integrated Resource Plan. The proposed work meets the NR-UN criteria of “Firm
regulatory requirement”, “Required to ensure infrastructure system integrity and safety. The
project meets these criteria based on the following: The current equipment is failing due to age
and end of life (Asset Management), causing treatment performance/operational issues
(Infrastructure System Integrity), and/or regulatory compliance failures (Firm Regulatory
Requirement).

ATTACHMENTS
1. Supplier Quote
2. Proposal from TISI to replace the equipment

Original signed by

Approval:

Cathie O’Toole, MBA, FCPA, FCGA, ICD.D.
General Manager

October 28, 2020
Date:

Report Prepared By: Original signed by

Tom Gorman, Manager, Water Infrastructure,
902-490-4716

Original signed by

Financial Approved By:

Louis de Montbrun, CPA, CA
Director, Corporate Services/CFO

............................................................................ [ STRAIGHT f]'om

---------------------------------------

....................................... lthe SOURCE

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo
ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo



J(J/ “d] ifax ITEM # 3-1
l l Water HRWC Board

Halifax Regional Water Commission March 25. 2021
9

PTO: Craig MacMullin, MBA, CPA, CGA, Chair, and Members of the
Halifax Regional Water Commission Board as Trustees of the
Halifax Water Employees’ Pension Plan

Digitally signed by Allan

SUBMITTED BY: . (00l Sooohca s o behalfof

10:50:03 -03'00"

Louis de Montbrun, CPA, CA,
Director, Corporate Services / CFO
Cath|e gl‘glgzlllél signed by Cathie

APPROVED: O'Toole Date: 2021.03.18

11:58:04 -03'00"

Cathie O’Toole, MBA, CPA, CGA, ICD.D
General Manager

DATE: March 17, 2021

SUBJECT: Halifax Regional Water Commission Employees’ Pension Plan
Financial Report Fourth (4th) Quarter, 2020

INFORMATION REPORT

ORIGIN

Financial reporting for the Halifax Regional Water Commission Employees’ Pension
Plan (hereinafter called the “Plan”).

BACKGROUND

The Board is required to review the periodic (quarterly) financial results of the Plan
throughout the year.

DISCUSSION

The attached statement of changes in net assets available for benefits (Appendix A) outlines
the annual budget for the Plan and actual financial performance for the Fourth Quarter
(January 1 to December 31, 2020). Favourable or unfavourable variances reported compare
actual results to annual budget amounts, for the twelve (12) month period in 2020. Yearend
audited results for 2018 and 2019 are shown for comparative purposes.

Page 1 of 3



ITEM # 3-1

HRWC Board
March 25, 2021

As shown on the statement of changes in net assets available for benefits, net assets
available for benefits have increased by $12.2 million for the twelve (12) month period
ending December 31, 2020. The annual budget for 2020 forecasted an increase in net assets
available of $6.8 million. Actual results for the period of $12.2 million compared to the
budget of $6.8 million result in a favourable variance in the amount of $5.3 million.

The annual budget forecasted revenue of $6.0 million. Revenue for the period totaled $11.1
million, which when compared to the budget of $6.0 million results in a favourable
variance of $§5.1 million. Revenue is affected largely by the performance of the HRM
Master Trust, and change tends to be more volatile compared to contributions and expenses
of the Plan. This variance is attributed directly to the actual increase in the fair value of the
investment assets being higher than expected. The increase for the period totaled $7.5
million compared to the budget of $3.0 million, a difference of $4.5 million or 151%.
Investment income for the period performed above expectations, showing a favorable
variance of $0.5 million or 16%.

Contributions of $6.4 million are on budget for the year with a slight underage of less than
0.5% or $22.5 thousand.

Expenses of $5.4 million for the year are lower than the annual budget of $5.6 million
resulting in a favourable variance of $0.2 million or (4%). The main contributors to this
favourable variance are termination payments and benefit payments both of which are
lower than the originally budgeted amounts. The remainder is related to administrative
expenses.

SERVICE STANDARDS

Tracking of Regulatory Filing Requirements, Administrative Reporting Requirements and
Service Standards for actuarial calculation requests is ongoing. The reports for Regulatory
Filing Requirements and Administrative Reporting Requirements are attached as Appendix
B and Appendix C respectively, and document administrative compliance within the
various levels of reporting for the period.

Service Standard results for the 4" Quarter (October 1 to December 31°, 2020) have been
attached as Appendix D. The intent of the service standards report is to set a standard
number of days for which calculations can be provided to members when actuarial
calculations are requested.

The results outlined for the 4™ Quarter as reported in Appendix D show, out of 6 requests,
5 were delivered, by the actuary, within the standard days proposed under the threshold
limits. Response time of the actuary continues to improve compared to prior reports
showing an average of 7.2 days for Termination Estimates compared to the standard of 11
days. There were no retirement requests in the 4" Quarter of 2020 to review for this

purpose.

Page 2 of 3



ITEM # 3-1

HRWC Board
March 25, 2021

Response time of administrative staff varies and shows 6 termination requests were past
the standard number of days initially proposed. This is an anomaly as staff responsible for
these requests were in the process of returning to regular duties after being seconded to the
VIP Payroll Project for the past 18 months.

ATTACHMENTS

APPENDIX A - Financial Report:
Statement of changes in net assets available for benefits, for the twelve
(12) month period ended December 31, 2020.

APPENDIX B — Regulatory Filing Requirements — 2020

APPENDIX C — Administrative Reporting Requirements — 2020

APPENDIX D — Service Standards Report - 2020

Digitally signed by

Heather Heather Britten
Report Prepared by:  Britten Date: 2021.03.18

10:34:08 -03'00"

Heather Britten, B.Comm, Quality Assurance Officer 902-490-1895

Page 3 of 3



Item 3-1
HRWC Board
March 25, 2021

Halifax Regional Water Commission Employees' Pension Plan Appendix A

Statement of changes in net assets available for benefits
For the twelve (12) month period ended December 31, 2020

Benchmark 100%
December 31, 2020
Variance Actual Actual
Actual versus Budget (Audited) (Audited)
2020 Favourable (Unfavourable) 2019 2018
Budget Actual $ %
Revenue
Net investment income:
Total investment income $3,240,000 $3,763,614 $523,614 16% $3,644,079 $2,939,026
Investment manager fees ($230,000) ($194,968) $35,032 (15%) ($202,574) ($165,670)
Increase (decrease) in the fair value of investment assets $3,000,000 $7,532,426 $4,532,426 151% $10,642,209 $1,763,098
$6,010,000 $11,101,072 $5,091,072 85% $14,083,715 $4,536,454
Contributions
Participants:
Current service (including additional voluntary contributions) $3,236,000 $3,246,717 $10,717 0% $3,463,328 $2,845,791
Sponsors:
Current service $3,155,000 $3,166,735 $11,735 0% $2,972,138 $2,578,842
Unfunded liability $0 $0 $0 0% $0 $825,200
$6,391,000 $6,413,451 $22,451 0% $6,435,466 $6,249,833
Expenses®
Benefit payments:
Benefit payments $4,642,000 $4,552,474 $89,526 2% $4,226,855 $3,848,218
Termination payments $800,000 $677,237 $122,763 15% $960,187 $79,849
Death benefit payments $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Administrative:
Actuarial & consulting fees $75,000 $43,843 $31,157 42% $118,659 $50,409
Audit & accounting fees $9,000 $8,647 $353 4% $8,530 $8,441
Bank custodian fees $25,000 $30,479 ($5.,479) (22%) $28,636 $32,303
Insurance $9,000 $8,760 $240 3% $8,760 $8,347
Miscellaneous $15,000 $16,724 ($1,724) (11%) $20,610 $16,195
Professional fees $15,000 $23,151 (88,151) (54%) $23,261 $13,440
Registration fees $3,000 $2,645 $355 12% $2,500 $2,337
Training (Trustees/ Administration/ Pension Committee) $2,000 $0 $2,000 100% $0 $0
$5,595,000 $5,363,959 $231,041 4% $5,397,997 $4,059,539
Increase (decrease) in net assets available for benefits $6,806,000 $12,150,564 $5,344,564 79% $15,121,184 $6,726,748
Net assets available for benefits, beginning of period $141,579,813 $141,579,813 $126,458,630  $119,731,882
Increase (decrease) in net assets available for benefits $6,806,000 $12,150,564 $15,121,184 $6,726,748

Net assets available for benefits, end of period $148,385,813 $153,730,377 $141,579,813  $126,458,630




Item 3-I

HRWC Board
March 25, 2021
Halifax Regional Water Commission Employees' Pension Plan APPENDIX B
Regulatory Filing Requirements - 2020
as at December 31, 2020
Report Regulatory Body Filing Deadline Date last filed C
1 Annual Form 3 - Summary of Contributions Superintendent of Pensions 60 days after the beginning of each fiscal year January 29, 2021 DB Plan Filed directly with the Trustee, Northern Trust, for the DB Plan.

January 29, 2021 DC Plan Filed directly with the Trustee, Industrial Alliance, for the DC Plan.

2 Pension Plan Income Tax Return (T3) Canada Revenue Agency March 31st March 1, 2021 DB Plan CRA requires Northern Trust as the custodian to prepare and file
T3 Income Tax Returns each year. Information obtained from
HRM Pension Plan quarterly report.
3 Pension Plan Audited Financial Statements  Superintendent of Pensions 6 months after the Plan's fiscal year end July 16, 2020 DB Plan Audited financial statements were completed and approved by
the HW Board on June 25th, 2020. (Extension granted in 2020)
July 16, 2020 DC Plan Audited financial statements are not prepared for this pension
plan. However, Industrial Alliance provides a Financial Report
detailing all pertinent details of the plan. This report is submitted
to the regulatory body prior to June 30th each year. (Extension
granted in 2020)
4 Annual Information Returns (AIR) Superintendent of Pensions June 30th July 16, 2020 DB Plan Extension granted in 2020
July 16, 2020 DC Plan Extension granted in 2020
5 Actuarial Valuation* Superintendent of Pensions September 30th September 27, 2019 Actuarial Valuation was conducted as of January 1, 2019.
Canada Revenue Agency September 27, 2019
6 Plan Amendments Superintendent of Pensions 60 days after the amendment approved by the Board September 27,2019 DB Plan Amendment #12 approved by the Board June 20, 2019;

Submitted to the Superintendent September 27, 2019. The
amendment was pursuant to the contribution rate change as

Canada Revenue Agency September 27, 2019 dictated by the Actuarial Valuation of January 1, 2019.
Superintendent of Pensions 60 days after the amendment approved by the Board n/a DC Plan All documents relating to the registration of the DC Plan were
Canada Revenue Agency received by the Superintendent October 6, 2017.

Actuarial Valuations are required at a minimum every three (3) years.
Notional Agreements were implemented during 2017 with an effective date for January 1, 2017. Notional Agreements are not registered therefore not subject to reporting requirements to a regulatory body.

*



Item 3-1
HRWC Board
March 25, 2021

Halifax Regional Water Commission Employees' Pension Plan APPENDIX C

Administrative Reporting Requirements - 2020

as at December 31, 2020

Report

Filing Deadline/ Recurrence

Date last filed/
Performed

Comments

Pensioners are paid the 1st of each month; no exceptions to report for the Fourth

1 Pensioners' Payroll Monthly March 1, 2021 Quarter 2020.
2 Contributions to the Trustee Monthly March 9, 2021 DB Plan Remittances due to Northern Trust within 30 days of month end; no exceptions to report
for Fourth Quarter 2020.
January 5, 2021 DC Plan Remittances due to Industrial Alliance within 30 days of month end; no exceptions to
report for Fourth Quarter 2020.
n/a Notional Agreement*
3 Pension Plan Financial Statements Quarterly March 25, 2021 DB Plan Fourth Quarter (October - December 2020)
n/a DC Plan Quarterly statements are not prepared for the Defined Contribution (DC) Plan. A
financial report is prepared by Industrial Alliance and that report is filed with the Annual
Information Return (AIR) to the regulator annually.
n/a Notional Agreement* Financial statements not required.
4 Investment Performance Review & Quarterly
Compliance with SIP&P March 25, 2021 DB Plan Fourth Quarter (October - December 2020)
Report prepared quarterly by administration staff for the HW Board of Directors, in
conjunction with the quarterly HRM Pension Plan Committee meeting documentation.
Statement of Investment Policies & Procedures (SIP&P) is reviewed annually and was
last reviewed and approved on December 10, 2020.
5 Annual Pension Statements to Members June 30th June 18, 2020 DB Plan Statements issued annually by June 30th.
Statements issued annually in conjunction with the Defined Benefit (DB) Plan
June 18, 2020 DC Plan statements. Members also have access to online, real-time reporting.
June 18, 2020 Notional Agreement* Statements issued annually in conjunction with the DB Plan statements.
6 Fiduciary Liability Insurance Annually November 25, 2020 DB Plan Reviewed and renewed annually by administration staff. The policy period expires

November 30 each year.

Notional Agreements were implemented during 2017 with an effective date for January 1, 2017. Notional Agreements are not registered therefore not subject to reporting requirements to a regulatory body.



Halifax Regional Water Commission Employees' Pension Plan

Service Standards Report - 2020

Item 3-1
HRWC Board
March 25, 2021
APPENDIX D

Quarter 4 (as at March 11, 2021) HW Staff
% within # Past % within | Average Service| Total Average
Trar d C d Ci Standard Days Service Days
Retirement Estimates 23 |Business Days 0 0% 0.0 0.0
Marriage Breakdown Calculations 33 |Business Days 0 0.0
Post-Retirement Death Letter 10 [Business Days 0 0.0
0

Pre-Retirement Death Benefit 33 |Business Days 0 0.0
Termination Estimates/ Calculations

- Standard 23 |Business Days 5 17% 24.2 31.3

- Non Standard (incl RTAs) 33 |Business Days 0 0.0

5 17% 24

# Past Stand.

% within Standard

Total (Eckler & Halifax Water)|




J(J/ H ﬁl] ifax ITEM # 4-1
l l \\EJ lC‘ I Halifax Water Board

Halifax Regional Water Commission March 25. 2021
9

TO: Craig MacMullin, MBA, CPA, CGA, Chair, and Members of the
Halifax Regional Water Commission Board as Trustees of the
Halifax Water Employees’ Pension Plan

i Digitally signed by Loui
Louis de Digtally signed by Lous
SUBMITTED BY: - Montbrun__'25 57

Louis de Montbrun, CPA, CA
Director, Corporate Services/CFO

H Digitally signed by Cathie
Cathle O‘%oolz o g

APPROVED: O'Toole Date: 2021.03.18

10:06:46 -03'00"
Cathie O’Toole, MBA, FCPA, FCGA, ICD.D
General Manager

DATE: March 17, 2021

SUBJECT: Halifax Regional Municipality Master Trust
Investment Performance, Fourth Quarter, 2020

INFORMATION REPORT

ORIGIN

The Halifax Regional Municipality Master Trust (the “Master Trust”) investment
performance is reported to the Commission periodically throughout the year.

BACKGROUND

None

DISCUSSION

The tables below and the attached Investment Report provide a performance update for the
Fourth Quarter of 2020 (October to December) for the Master Trust, of which Halifax
Regional Water Commission Employees’ Pension Plan (the “Plan”) is a part. The fair value
of the investment in the Master Trust is determined and updated at year-end, and the Plan’s
share in the Master Trust at December 31, 2020 was 6.4%, totaling $153.4 million.

Page 1 of 2



ITEM # 4-1

Halifax Water Board
March 25, 2021

The Master Trust returned 5.48% in the Fourth Quarter, which outperformed the policy
benchmark of'4.15% by 1.33%. The return for the 1-year period ended December 31, 2020
1s 7.59%, underperforming the policy benchmark of 7.92% by (0.33%). Other historical
returns are provided in Table 1 below.

Table 1 — Returns

Current Since
Quarter 3 -Year 4 - Year Inception
(Oct to Dec) 1-Year |Annualized| Annualized| (Oct 1999)
Fund Return 5.48% 7.59% 7.33% 8.20% 7.20%
Policy Benchmark 4.15% 7.92% 6.27% 6.91% 5.80%
Excess Return 1.33% (0.33%) 1.06% 1.29% 1.40%

The total fund returns are subject to investment management fees and plan expenses.

As at December 31%, 2020, the Master Trust was in compliance with the Statement of
Investment Policies and Procedures (SIP&P), and a summary of the asset mix is provided

in Table 2 below:

Table 2— Asset Mix, as at December 31, 2020

Policy
Asset: Actual |Benchmark
Cash & Equivalents 0.7% 0.0%
Canadian Equity 4.7% 5.4%
Global Equity 32.4% 29.1%
Fixed Income 31.7% 36.8%
Minimum Target Return 30.5% 28.7%

ATTACHMENT

2020 Fourth Quarter Halifax Regional Municipality Master Trust Investment Report

Heather

Report Prepared by:  Byitten

Digitally signed by

Heather Britten

Date: 2021.03.17

16:30:23 -03'00"

Heather S. Britten, B. Comm.
Quality Assurance Officer (902) 490 1895

Page 2 of 2




020¢ vO

}J10d 3y JUBWI}SDAU]

NUld
NOISN3d
WaH

T "ON W3} epuUadY 1UISUO)



I ed uejduoisuaduwy zo_%_mm_
WaH

"9,GZ 9 JO 8)el JUNOJSIP UIBdU0D Bulob B sewnssy "610Z ‘| Joquaoa( e se poday uonenjep J8pog Jad ,

‘LAl @Y1 40} suanias JedA sepuajed
9Y1 S9zIJewwns 3pI1|S IXaU ay3 Uo 3|ge1 3yl "%SZ’9 JO 91k JUN0ISIP wJia3-3uU0| S,ue|d
9y3 SuiwJogadino ‘pazijenuue %07 L pauJes 1IN @yl ‘(666T 4990310Q) uoildasul 2duUlS .
‘pazijenuue %6’ T Ag d4ewyouaq Adljod ayi Sulwiopadino ‘0zoz ‘TE 41oquada(
3ulpua poltad JealA- 3yl JON0 %(0Z°8 4O UJIN1aJ pazijenuue ue paulea JIAN 9Yl
"'0€€°0 Agq Y4ewyouaq Adijod ay1 Suiwaojiadiapun
%65/ pauJed A 94l ‘0Z0Z ‘T€ 4oqwadaqg Sulpud polad JesaA-sauo 9yl 104 .
"% €€ T Aq uiniad yJewyosuaq Adljod ayil Suiwioyadino ‘%8S pauded | IN Yl ‘YD Ul .

(so9} JO 19u) 9duew.i0j19d ISnJl 191SeA

« AI9N1303dS3I %17'€9 puB %8°T6
9J9M 0l1BJ J3JSUBI} PUE 0OI1BJ PapUN} UJDIUO0I U108 aY3 ‘6TOT ‘TE J19qWaI9Q 1B SY o

snjels papund
d’8dIS Y1 yum aoueljdwod ul sem (1|A]) ISnJL J31SeIA 9yl ‘0Z0C ‘TE J2quiadag e sy .
2oueljdwo)

Alewuwing aAIlN29X3



Z eo-uejduoisuaduwiiy zo_m_-ﬂm_
WaH

%EE0-  %IV0 %S8°C %W6'T  %Cr'0-  %CE'S %€0°T %E6'E %687  %09°0- %00 %SS'€ %LEO %C0'T %€0°0 %29°0 %LLO  BIET-  %ILO- %80°C %65°€ uIn}ay ss90x3
Jewyduag
%C6°L %80T %96°0 %16'8 %SS°S %LT'S %YL %10°L %L %IL'T %800T  %C6'0T %0CT'ST-  %8S'T %S8TCT  %9LTT %0S°6 %I6°ET %0S 7~ %9 %CT'L % Mu_ 10d

%6S'L  %690T  BIB'E  %SBOT  %ET'S  %6SOT  %LC6  %V6'0T  %IOTCT  %ITC  %CT'OT  %LVYT  %EBVI-  %09'C  %88TT  %BETCT  %LCOT  %09CT  %IT'S- %950~ %TL 0T uiniay pung

I R I R e e e e I R

0zoz 910¢ (4114 800¢ ¥00¢ 0002
- %091-

- %0'11-

UIN12Y SSIIXT el - %09

ylewyouag Adijod mmmm - %0°T-

UIn1ay pun mem o
- /0

- %06

- %011

(so3j Jo 12u)
suinlay Jepuaje)d

"'JU0) — Alewiwing 9AIINJDX]



¢ ed uejduoisuaduwy zo_%_mm_

WdH

‘s9l}lunluioddo Sulpua| 1034Ip PaJNIAS
J01USS 93Je| U0 PasSNI0} punj 1paJd a1eAlid |[eqo|3 e 03 UWQZ YNT PRRIWIWOD

‘punj Alinba |eqo|3 aAileliluenb e 01 UWQQT AVYD PRBRIWWOD) .
‘punj A}inba jeuoijeusalul ue 0} UWQOY AVYD PRIIWWOD

"S91114NJ3S 13)Jew Asuow ul palsaAuUlDl
pue Jodeuew puog a1eso0dio) uelpeue) SuUllSIXa JNO WOJ} UWOZ QYD P2WIpPayY .

sa1epdn YO

'%60°0- A1inb3 plaopn pue ‘9%/0°0- Alinb3 uelpeue)
‘%20°0- A1inb3 Su1disw3 ‘%10 0+ A1Inb3 SN ‘%<0 0+ A1Inb3 34v3 ‘%7 0+ 11paJ)
|BQO|D ‘%ES 0+ SPUOg 3SISAIUN ‘%/9°0+ UJINIDY 1931e] WNWIUIA :UoIINqLNY

"% €€ T Agq y4ewyouaq Adijod si pawaojsadino | |A 94l ‘020 4O YD Ul
aN|e\ Pappy

'JU09) — Alewuwing aAIlN29X3



v ed uejduoisuaduwy zo_%_mm_

WdH

Jodeuew 91e1sa |eaJ pasndo) adoing e apissuo|e

MN 9Y3 Ul Juswdo|aA3P 1UDJ-104 |BIFUDPISDI 9|gePIO}e UB Ul UWG gD POISaAU|
J9deuew ainjonJiseljul pasnio) adoin3 e apissuo|e

SSQUISNQ S9IAJIDS 4]} uelje}] ue Jo 91eAlad-aye1 3yl Ul uwg ¥YN3 paiwwo)
J9deuew Alinba alealid e apis3uoje puelq

SSQU|[9M pue SSO| JYSIam JOWNSU0I-03-103J1p Suipes| e ul UWE SN POISOAU|

J9gdeuew Alinba ajeand
POSNJ0} S91JEPUOIIS B dpIS3uo|e ssauisng s|edlznalewdeyd Jeajdnu ayj ul Japes)
}9)Jew [eqo|3 9yl 4O uoilezijelidedal 19sse 9|3UlS PaJ-dD e Ul UWG YN3 PIISaAU|

‘S911iunjioddo |eqo|3 uo pasndo4 Joseuew

Sa11epu023s Ajinba a1eAlud e y3m punj mau e ul UWST ASN dn-aJ e pals|dwo)
‘S911lunjyoddo |eqo|3 uo pPasnd0}

Jodeuew ai1njonJiseljul ue Yum punj Mau e ul UWSGT ¥YN3J 4o dn-aJ e para|dwo)

sa1epdn vO

'JU09) — Alewuwing aAIlN29X3



S eo-uejduoisuaduwiiy zo_m__ﬂm

WdH

sesuadxa pue S8 JO Jou UMOYS 8Je suinjal pun4

‘uinjay 18bie] wnuwiulp
%2/ 8Z + ©0ue}doddy siaueq YIUOW € %9 0Z + puog asioniun epeued XINL 3SLd %2 9L+ (NVO$) PHOM IOSIN %2 L1 + (NVO$) sioepy Bulbiows |DSIN %8 '€ + (NVO$)
x8pu| 34v3 10SIN %08 + (AVD$) xepu| pebpeH 005 d8S %L'9 + 09 XSL/dBS %6'L + X8pU| XSL1/d8S %S '€ S! Mewyouag Adljod 8y} ‘0Z0zZ ‘L€ Jequedsq dAloey]

%07'T %6C'T %90°'T %EE0- %EE'T uiniay $s99x3
%08°S %169 %LT9 %C6°L %ST'V ¥4ewyouag Adljod
%0¢C L %0C'8 %EEL %6G°L %81°S uJniay pund

(666T 1°0) pazilenuuy  pazijenuuy

uondasuj asuis JeIA-T JedA-€

0202 ‘TE 19qui23( Jo SY

SuJIn}ay 39N pun4 |ejol



9 eo-uejduoisuaduwiiy zo_m_-ﬂm_

WdH

‘uinyay 19bie | wnwiuipy
%/ 8¢ + 80ue}danoy sieueg YUON € %9°0Z + puog @siaaiun epeued XINL 3S1d %2 9L+ (NVO$) PHOM IDSIN %2 L1 + (NVO$) siesen Buibiswz 1DSIN %8°€ + (NVO$)
x8pu| 34v3 10SIN %08 + (AVD$) xepu| pebpeH 005 d8S %L'9 + 09 XSL/dBS %6'L + X8pU| XSL1/d8S %S '€ S! Mewyouag Adljod 8y} ‘0Z0zZ ‘L€ Jequedsq dAloey]

%8°9€
SawW0dU| paxiq

%T'6¢
Auinb3 jeqolo
%L'8C
uiniay
1984e] wnwiuln

%V°S
Aunb3 ueipeue)

0202 ‘T€ 49qwadaQ 0 sy
Ad1jod X1l 19SSV

%L'TE
awodu| paxiq

%V CE
Aunb3 |eqo|n %S°0€
uJiniay
198Je] wnwiulA
%L’V o/ /-
%L°0
Aunb3 ueipeue) sjuajennb3
pue yse)
(
0202 ‘T€ 12quiadaq jo sy
XIINl 19SSV

XI|N 19SSy



L

NU1d

eo-uejduoisuaduwiiy zo_m_ummn

-

}shi] UIBYHON :82In0S,

"SM3U 3UIdJeA ay) 01 anp Suo0Jls Ajjeldadsa JaqwanoN YHUM ‘4D ul pauled sanninbasn .
"9UI|UO SWED SIUBWSIUNOUUE JUIIIBA JO JBquNU e se $D Ul pauled sai3inba |eqo|D

($2 p14oM 1DSIN) Arinb3 plaom

%S6'TT %9T'TT %L8'ET %69'8
%8LTT %LL9 %ET 9T %9T V1 ($D N3 IDSN) s1evjJen Suidiewl
%EL'L %98t %C6'S %89°0T ($234v3 1DSIN) Avinb3 34v3
%LS VT %T8 VT %CEIT %969 ($2 005 d'8S) Avinb3 SN
%LS'9 %VLS %09°'S %L6'8 (xopu| a31sodwo) XS1/d8S) Arinb3 ueipeue)

pazijlenuuy  pazijenuuy

JeaA-p IBIA-€

020 ‘T€ 49quiad3(Q Jo sy

suJinj}ay jayie Alinbg



8 eo-uejduoisuaduwiiy zo_m__ﬂm
WaH

-

1SNJ1 UJBYMON :89IN0S,

%95°¢C- %CITT %90°6 %09°0-

%/LL9- %L8'ET %0T L %L8°0- %69'8 %C8 L Ayinb3 pliom
%E8°0- %ET 9T %0¥'ST %LE T %9T T %6L TT A1inb3 Suigiswiy
%SE0 %C6'S %LT'9 %E0°0- %89°0T %S9°0T Ainb3 34v3
%89°'T %6L°ST %LV LT %TT°0 %SL'TT %98°TT A inb3 sn
%S9°C- %65°S %E6'T %ES 0- %85'8 %S0'8 Ainb3 ueipeue)

9JUew.0}19d [ iewyouag 9JUew.0}19d | lewyouag 91epuelAl Aunb3
9AI1le|9Yy 9AI1le|9Yy

JedA auQ 17760)

(susmyai $) 0Z0Z ‘T€ 19qwialaQ Jo sy

‘'saninba

P|41OM pue Suidisaw3 Jo aduewdopadiapun o1 anp Ajluewiad ‘9090

AQ %0€°0T 40 uinlaJd yJdewyouaq Adljod Alinba ayl SulwJiopiadiapun
7o14enb syl Sulnp %0/°6 pauJnial oljojyiod Alinb3 S, 1IN 9yl

frewwng D - A3inb3 211qnd



eo-uejduoisuaduwiiy zo_m__ﬂm

WdH

-

1SNJ1 UJBYMON :89IN0S,

‘'Spoluad JeaA-y pue spoliad JeaA-¢ ‘spoliad JeaA-T ‘4D 9yl JOA0 3SI9AIUN
J9peoJq ayl pue Sspuog JUsaWuJaN0 pawioadino aAey spuoq 91e4o0dio) .

(91240dU0D) BSI9AIUN

%L S %06°S %VL'8 %08'T
epeue) XIAIL 3S14) spuog aiesodio) ueipeue)
1USWUJSAO0L) 3SJ3AIUN epeue.
%99 %TS'S %698 %TC0 A 9 ——
XL 3S14) Spuog JUSWUJIA0D ueipeue)
(puog assaniun
%€V %T9'S %898 %€9°0

epeue) XIALL 3S14) spuog asJaAlun uelpeue)

pazijenuuy  pazijlenuuy

JBAA-P JBIA-€

0202 ‘T€ 42qwiadaQ Jo sy

SuJIN}ay }9yJe\ puog



eo-uejduoisuaduwiiy zo_m__ﬂm

WdH

-

1SNJ1 UJBYMON :89IN0S,

%IV E %8V’ %06'L %6T'T %9€°0 %SS'T !

%810 %€8°0 %lET %SL°0 %CT°0 %80 uiniay a1n|osqy 11paJd |eqo|o
%SL°0 %69°8 %V1°6 %¢0°0- %120 %610 puog jusWu.IanoD
%SLL %VL8 %6191 %00°S %081 %089 puog s1eJodio) uelpeue)

dJUBWI0}I9d | YJewyduag 9JuUeW.I0}Iad | iewyduag
annedy anneRy

JedA auQ 710)
(suan3al $2) 020 ‘TE 1aquiala(q Jo sy

‘puog a3esodio) uelpeue) Jo aduewJlopadino
01 anp Ajuewnd ‘%612 AQ %9€°0 JO uINlaJ JJewydouaq S} pawaojiadino
U2IYM ‘% GG Z PaUIed 01/04140d SWOdU| paxXI PIJISISAIP S, 1IN YL

Aewwwng O — awoou| paxi4 a1jqnd



Ll eo'uejduoisuaduway zo_m__ﬂm

WdH

‘AlaAi0adsal %%t/ S1 2002 O} Joud PUE %G/°9 S ZL0Z-L00Z ‘%SZ'9 S! €L0Z ‘%S9 S! ¥L0Z ‘%SS'9 S GLOZ ‘%S9
S19L0Z ‘%Y'9 I LLOZ ‘%29 SI 8LOZ ‘%)'9 SI 6L0T ‘%SZ'9 S! 918l 0Z0Z UL "9)el Junodsiq uisduod Buio sy si oljojiod Juswisanul sjeaud ay) 1o suewyousq Aojjod sy

%C8'S %8C'V %LLE %600~ %SS°C uiniay $Sa9x3
%LV'9 %VC9 %819 %SC9 %9S'T sl Jewyouag Adljod
%60 CT %S0T %566 %919 %TITv uinisy Y1IN

(666T 100) pazilenuuy  pazijenuuy

uo1ldasuj adulg JeIA-P JBIA-€

(suan3ai1 §J) 020 ‘TE 13quiada( JO SsY

'%G5 ¢ Aq 8uiwio}49dlIN0 ‘949G T JO JJewyduaq e SNSIaA ‘YD Ul %TIT' v
pauJniaJ (01j0j110d Juawisanul leAlid) oijoj1iod uinlay 1934e] WNWIUIA 9YL

Aewwng yO — }J9)Je|\ 9leAlld



Zl ed uejduoisuaduwiy zo_%_mm_
WaH

"yimoJ3 pue Asanodad Joj Sulsedasd o3 suoljesado 3ulzijigels pue
“s1a Alipinbij/jeloueuly SuiSeuew ‘AlIAIIONPOId 92J043J0M WOJLS SNI0J 1IYS 0) paels 6T
-AINOD Ag 1y Ajineay 10U S10329S Ul S9ssaulIsng 1eAldd 3sow ‘Qz0C 4O Jjey puodas ayi u| e

"9pedsp e ueyl aJow ul 9ded JusawAo|dap 1saysiy Jno
S)yJew yariym ‘sasse|d 19sse areAlld ||e ssodde Qz0g Ul uwQOz avd< Suiisaaul ‘otweulp siyi
JO 93ejuenpe el 031 9|ge sem |AHH "S91}|13n pale|N3aJ pue Sa|gemausd ‘@injonJiseljul
|e1131p 31| S10323S Ul JUI|ISSJ paulewal AlIAI}oe |eSp pue suollen|eA ‘94n3dnJiseljul
ul AjJe[lwis "sa21AJaS |eloueul) 3y3i|-19sse pue aiedyljeay ‘ASojouydaal se yoans S10329S

ul Jaquwiaidas aouls ya11dn daeys e mes Alinba ajealud ul AlAloe |eap payoeq Josuods .

‘SuJniaJ 01joj3iod |e103 UIylm Q0ZOgZ Ul SiyJew

21|gnd Jo aduewJojiad 3uoJls aAlle|aJ 3yl JOo yanw ainiyded Suidjay (‘11 pue ‘uondnusip

19)Jew ay3 Jo agejueApe a¥e) 01 [esodsip Jno 1e (UwQQZS<) Japmod Aip Juediyiusis

3uiaey (1 ysnoaya ||am sisiud ayy a1esineu sn pad|ay sey 1ysiamiapun siyl "(3034e1 %0t

SA %TE~) SIUBWISaAU] 31eAld 1y3iamuapun Sulag 0Z0Z Pa491ua INYH ‘sieaA aAl) 1se| ayl
J9A0 ol|0j1u0d YA 9yl SsoJoe suoijezijeas 3uoJis AJSA 01 anp 1eYl 910U 9M USPUIWDI B SY

Aejuswiwion — sjayJe|) 9jeAlld



€l eo-uejduoisuadway zo_m__ﬂm
WaH

o4 UIbaiy 1824005
0ld Uthald :92unos

(uag) @niea 1eaq =21ebaabby—
(ug$) enjep 1eaq @1ebaibby— sjeag jo oNmEm

P1H4OM 30 152y BISY mm
0202 &L0Z 8L0OZ LLOZ 9102 SloC adoany mm ediJdauwy Yyllo N mmm
EEPEEEPEEEEEEEEEEREEERD 0Z0Z 6lL0Z  8LOZ £LlOZ  9L0Z  SlOZ
EODEOEDEOLDLOLDLDL DL DL DEDLOLDLDLODLDLDLOLDLC LD
D D COPO— oMY — O — - LOPR Y — O — OO —
_ — 0 0
m 05 002 &
s @ 0s 00s
w = =
=R N \/ 007 = = =
@ o s
> ¥ " 3 o0l ooo'L S
S 05l 009 = =] o
o & Z - B
% o S, 0SSl oos‘L @
5 002 008 @ o
3 = .
5 062 000°L <t ooZ ooo’'e
<
00€ 00Z'1 0Z0Z €D - SLOZ LD ‘uoibay Aq syeaqg

1noAng payjdpeg-Aiinbg ajeaAllad Ajdaaenp gL "bi14

0202 €D -SL0OZ LD
‘syeaq ainypnuisedju| Al4a11enp 1eqoy9 | 614

20 Ul y3noJ3 ay3 Ja1je ainyonJisedjul
pue Ajinba ajeAlud yioq ui AliAzoe |eap Joj €D Ul M213dn 8yl moys mo|aq SHeyd ayl

Aoy [eaQ — s1oqJe|N SjeAlld



v ed uejduoisuaduwiy zo_%_mm_

WdH

"SJUBWI1SIAU] Sed 1 |10 pue syiodJie ‘|ielad

JOWNSU0I ‘syueanelsad JO S10303S 1Y 1sapJey ay3 ul paJinbas sasam s3ujpoueuly anasal

9S9Y] "01|04140d |e10] 93 JO IX21U0J 3y} Ul [elaaleww] sem pasinbal junowe Jo wnjuenb
93 ysnoyyje soljojriod punj ui paidinbai 3ulaq saind Alinba Jo saduejsul usaq aneY 43yl .

"WJ3}-Wnipaw 03 Jeau ay3 ul papaau 9 ||Im aouedijiudis Aue Jo s3uldueulj andsaJ ou
Jeyl 9g 01 S9NUITUOI UOI3LeIDAXD JUBJINI JNQ * AIAQD 03 PISOdXD S10323S Ul SJUSWIISIAUI
||e JoHuow A[9S0|2 01 9NUIIUOI ||IM M ‘TZ0Z 01Ul pJeMIO} Y00| M SY "9Sed ay] ulewsal
0} panulluod sey Siyl 1eyl ajou 03 pasea|d aie ap\ "S24nd Alinba aJsinbaJ 03 sjusawilsaAul
-02 JNO JO SUOU Pa3123dXa am eyl pies am ‘SuilaWl 3913 IWWO0I QZ0Z dunfayl suung .

9oukUI4 9N2say/sain) Ajinb3g — s)jajJe|) 9jeAlld



Sl ed uejduoisuaduwy zo_%_mm_

WdH

-

"TZ0T Ul SJUSWISIAUI MU ew am se A1IA1109]9S JO 99439p Y31y e ujejuiew 03 aNUiU0I [[IM IMm ‘SAem|e Sy .

/86T 32UIS 2UISIXd Ul Wilf A1Inba a10ALId 13)10W 3IPPIW UMOU-[[dM D YIIM SDM SIY] ‘Ajjonidin

A1213]dwod paipnul buiaq diysuoiapjal auo Ajuo yim 0zoz ul spuawwwod fo asnd ybiy ayi uipjuipw o3 3|qb

Uuaaqg anpby am sp sn pad|ay anpy s140ffa buidainos punoqino an|3apo.id JNo 4aNaMOH ‘U0siad-ul wdif b Jo siaulipd ayl Jo
Aub 1oW 12A3U SDY INYH 41aYm $3aspd ul A|jp123adsa “A|jpniain sdiysuoiIpn|al 45 Mau 31piiul 03 19pIby SUIDWAJ 3] 49Yyldnd e

‘pl1OM 3y1 punodp subipdwnd uolpuIIDA SSBW Y3 Jo $S322ns 3yl uo Ajinbay buipuadap
4paA 3y Jo pua ayi spipbmoy jauuni ayi Jo pua ayi 1o 1ybi awos A|qissod yim 1z0zZ ZH 01Ul |[am sniin 3yl yim buijpap
aNuiuod 01 ANDY [[IM ISIAUI IM 3JYM SILIJUNOI ISOW 1DY] SI SJUSWISIAUI MAU 0] UOIID|AJ Ul MAIA 3SDI IsSDq ANO

'0J3U02 J3pun
21wapund ay) 196 03 SaINSLaW aNIssaibbp pajpubis sby uoIIpISIUIWPD U3aplg 3yl ybnoyi o aipis Aq Aioa 031 SanuIIUOI
SN 3Y1 ul uoIIBNIIS UMOPXI0| Ay “Aipbnubf / 13qUIa23J Ul SUMOP3I0| 313A3S Jo aAbM Jayroup 194 palajua poy adoing ul
$3143UN0J 1SO\ *SUOIII1JISAJ [dADJ] JUIDULIIS pub Mau pasodwil 3snf poy bppup) pub UMop20| o 31DIS D Ul SDM OLIDIUD
‘paipdaid buiag som uoiIpIU3saId Syl Sy apIm 33nb uIbWAJ |[13S S10123S SSAUISNG [DI3N3S UO SaW0IINO fo abun. ay |
'aaninf ayl ojul siAA [D13A3S J40f 313f aq 03 anupuoI [[IMm (Adualjisal uibyd Ajddns (H4/M) awoy-wof-3iom ‘uoiapziaibip)
SIS140 s1y3 Jo suoipaljdwi 3y} fo 3wWos 1py1 pub OZOZ O3 PAIDJOSI JUIAS UD 3G 10U [[IM 6T-AINOD oY1 03I ST 3| e

"S1a4pW 310A1Id Ul 193fJ3 UO-MOJjof b BUIIDIID ‘SI113dW [DUOIIIPD.]
Aubw Aq panjpniano Ajpb1auajod sy0o| pup 3sii 03 PaNUIIU0I dADY S1AYJoW 21jgnd ‘SipaA [DI13N3S IXaU Y] 1IN0

A191023.4 uanaun up aco{f |[IMm pub 6T-JINOD Aq pa1opdwi A|aA1Ipbau U3aq anbY AWOU0II |DAJ 3Y] JO SYIDMS ISDA I[IYAM

:$1030e} SUIMO[|0} BY3 03 NP JUSWUOIIAUS 13¥Jew S ,Aepoy ul snoianed
AjoWaJixa ulewal am ‘90¥ JO UOIIBIO||Ee 198.1.] JNO 0} SAOW 0} S1a¥Jew d1eAldd Ul ISSAUI 01 SNUIIUOD O} PUSIUI OM J[IYAM  »

doupyoeg 19)Jey LZ0Z — SI9XJely ajeAld



91 ed uejduoisuaduwiy zo_%_mm_

WdH

‘epeue) ul Ajjelnadsa ‘sanjiunlioddo Juswisanul
9dA1 (uinlas J9MoO| g ¥SIJ JaMO|) 2402 aJow Sulio|dxa Ag uiSiew ay3 1e oljojiod ayi Msid
-9p 03 sAem aJo|dxa 01 ue|d pue ainlonJisedjul Ul dded JUSWIISSAUI JNO BNUIIUOD ||[IM AN o

"‘6T-AINOD Aq paloeduwl Ajasianpe aq 031 pajdadxs aJe syuawisanul |edidulud Jno jo

9UOU ‘(SDWN|OA J14}eJ] ||eJ9A0 JOMO| 911dSap suiniad jel) paisod yaiym) peod ||03} uelpeue)

B Ul JUSWISSAU| Ue ueyl JaYlQ *(S19Mo01 |92 pue J3ql4 ‘SI91uld elep) S19sSe ainjonJiseljul

|e11S1p 1Yy31amian0o 01 8TQ Ul UOISII9p 1|11 OIjoj1iod e pue ‘sajgemauas pue saii|ian
pa31e|n3aJ Se Yyans SJ10123S Ul S9|es 39sse 3u0J3s 0} NP Ju3l|ISaJ paulewsal oljojuod a3yl

‘|dD uelpeue) Jano wniwaid ul sdq

€66 Ajdwi oS|e suini1al 0Z0Z YL "X3pU| 2JN10NJISBILU| |BCO|D d™8S 40} %TZE /- Pue Xapu|

931s0dw o) 94N1INJISEILU| [BQO|D P[31400.g SAUOf MOQ 104 %8T 0T- ‘05/0S 24N3NJISelu
940D |BqO|D 3S14 40} %6 - JO SIJIpUI PaIsI| Ul dduewopiad QyD 01 saJedwod SIYl e

"%€9°0T 40 suanias 3uiysod JeaA ayi 404 sse|d 39sse Sujwao4ad 159g JnO oS|e

SeM 2JN31oNJ3isesju| "o1j0j340d |e101 9yl UIyHM SJUSWISaAUL 1eAlid Joj 3oeduwl Juediiusdis
3sow 3yl SUIAUpP SNYL ‘(%SE~) 0Z0T 4104 Y1IA Ul uoiledo|je 1saysiy syl pey aJinidnJisedjul .

odnjonijseljuj — |iejog aduew.iolioad 0202



NU1d

Ll ed uejduoisuaduwy NOISN3d
WaH

‘90ed palesa|adde asow Aj3ysi|s e 1e sse|d 19sse ay) 01 aunsodxa Sulpjing jo Aem e se TgQg ul spuny
91e1S9 |eaJ papua-uado ‘paljISIaAIp J0|dxa 0} ue|d 9am ‘91e31Sa |ead Ul JYS3IOMISPUN SAIIR|DJ JNO USAID

JeaA ayi 1noysnouyl
soiadoud Ajlwe}-13jnw pue 321440 Yy1og ul (%06< Ajasow) saingdij uoi1d3||02 Juas 3uoJls pajsodal
si98euew JnQ "S|9310Y pue |1e1aJ JO S10}I3S PaIIDJ4e 1SOW Y] 01 S9JNSodxa [eujwou AJaA pey am

Jaymn4 ‘Ajjwej-1nnw ul 3ysiam Aneay e yum pue pasndoj epeue) sulewald 01j0j3iod 91e1s9 [ea4 JNQ .

"92J9WWO02-3 WOJ) SPUIM|Ie} UBAIZ paseaJdoul salladoud s213S130| pue S|eld3snpul Joj suolien|ep

JeaA 9y Sulinp 1ual|Isa) panosd a1e1sa |eas Ajlwel-13nw 4eaA ayi ul Jai4es JuswAojdwaun

J9y31y uani3 sjuaa Aed 031 Ajljige Jueual punoJe suollsanb aiam a9yl ysnoyl uang ‘0zoe ul

JeaA y3noj e a1esdineu 03 pey os|e 10323S 3I140 Yl ‘H4/W JO S9lepuew SpIM-P|JOM |BSIDAIUN JSOW|e

9yl UaAI9 ‘s3uluayles a3.e| paplone 9|doad se puaJil pJemumop Sl PaNUIIU0I 91e1SD |ead |1e}aJ JOJ
suollen|ep ‘sse|d 19sse ay3 Joj JeaA uidua|jeyd e sem jeym ui Jusl|isal ayinb paulewss oljojyuod ayy .

‘|dD ueipeue) J9AO
wniwaJid sdq ze€ e saljdwi asuewJsopiad 91e1s9 [ 0ZOZ 2YL "XSpu| [YL 19N epeue) 11aJeN Vid3
3S14 10} %E GT- pue xapu| 91e1s3 |y PIHOM IDSIA 10} %8'9- J0 duewopad qy) 01 saJedwod SIYyl

'9% 29 JO suinial paisod pue (%TE) 0Z0Z 4104 YL Ul Uolledo||e 1saySiy puodas ayl pey 21e1sa |edy

9}E]S |Edy — |Ie}o(  9duewlioliad 0202



8l ed uejduoisuaduwiy zo_%_mm_

WaH
‘paJedaud bulaq sem Liodal Siy) se pases|a. JaA Jou 98 ® AON J0J Siequinu ‘0z0z 120 0} S8jel AOA ‘Biequioolg :824n0S

"S9JIAJIS |e1dueul) 1ysij-19sse pue ASojouydal ‘@ueayijeay ojul 01j04310d 3yl SulAiSIaAIp
9|Iym uo1iedo||e 398.1e3 01 anow 03 Ayinba ajeald ul 3saAuUl Jayliny 03 sutewad Ajiolid Jno ‘sueah may 1xau ay3 JanQ .

"9A1309dsJad 01]|0j340d |10} B W04} 9A13ISOd 19U e 3q 03 A|j1] Mou S| 0z0Z 01Ul Sulo3 (Sse|d 3asse ay3 01 Suiysiam
Jamo| e pajjdwi yaiym) 3d 01 SJUSWHWWOI JO |9A3] JaMO| 9y3 ‘Wy3ispuly ujl “Suided juswiiwwod usaAsun 03} anp
Alnba a3eAlud ul suiniaJ 9|138|OA SJ0W 3k} 0} Pa3Iadxa am eyl sSulleaW 991 W WOo) Jold Ul pajedipul pey ap\

'0104340d 34 9yl UIYIM Sw} ISI|Ydiem Jo s3e|4 paJ Jofew ou aJe a49y3 ‘A[9s0|2 SulioyuoOwW aJe
M YdIYyM ‘403I3S |1B1aJ JSWNSUOD Y3 0} (Pasnd0j 9doJdng 13 SN) SIUSWISIAUI PUNS OM] UIYUM 24NSOdxXa ueyl JayiQ e

‘Ajlon11dadsal %'
pue %G € ‘%8 ¢ Aq pa1deJiuod uojun ueadosny ayl pue epeue) ‘SN Ul 44D S49YM JedA e ul duewJ0)49d I1njosge
aA131sod SuoJis 3sod 03 9|ge |[13S Sem 01|0J340d ay) ‘siayJew 2l gnd pad3e| souewuopad 34 9|Iym ‘Ajolesedas .

‘020 404 SWJd1 VI Ul %9°~ pPauUInial 00G d78S Y3 403103S AL oY1 Suipn|ax3 Suipeuy
Ul 1S9431U| |1B19J PASEIJIU| 03 DNP ‘QUIIXD JISSI| B 0} PUB SN|NWIIS JUSWUIIA0S ‘sa3ed 1saJalul 3ul|je} ‘saluedwod
ASojouyoal jo suollenjen Sulieos Agq UsAlIp 0Z0Z Ul paljjeJ s1ayJew Ayinba o1jgnd ‘Suizesw € 9yl Sulanp pajou sy .

"Xapu| ausodwo)

XS1/d'8S 93 40} %SG pUe Xapu| uiniay |e10] PIAOM IDSIA 4104 %0 T ‘00S d'8S Y3 104 %'9T 40 dduewlopad qyd 03
saledwod sIy| "%S€"/ JO suinial parsod pue (%6T~) 0Z0Z 404 YLIA Ul uoiledojje 1saysiy ,,€ ayi pey Alnba ajealid .

AJinb3 ajeAlld — |1ej}ag @2uewIodd 0202



6l ed uejduoisuaduwiy zo_%_mm_
WaH

"01|04340d SwW0odU| paxl} BY3 UIYHM }pa4d aieard
9dA} apeJ3 JuswiSaAUL )SIJ JOMO| Ul JBYlin} SullSIAUL 3[IYM %G ¢ 03 HPa4d 93eAlud Jo uolledo||e 1934e3 ay3 supnpal
Aq »|S1J 01]04140d ||B49A0 2INPaJ 03 SAem PaI4IIUSPI dABY M ‘0Z0T Ul PRIINPUOD 9M MIOM |ATV 9yl JOo 1ed sy«

‘'SpJepuels 1paJd Japud| Suluasoo|
‘Ajjuanbasuod pue Joineyaq Jamo410q aAIssau33e AjSuiseasoul Yapmod Aip Y3y AjswaJixe JO SUOIIeAI9S]O 19)Jew
JNO UO pPaseq Sse|d }19SSe ue se }PaJd 31eAldd SPJeMO] )00[IN0 SNOIINED B paulelulew dABY 9M ‘9T Q¢ 2DUIS 4dymng .

"94n1ny
Jeau ay3 ui os op 03 Ajy1jun Asan aue pue aouls s3oafoad ASiaus paseq uogJledolpAy ul paisaAul 30U aAey 3\ "STOT
U] SUOP JUBWIISIAUI-02 SUlpuUOdsaJi0d B pue €10 Ul 9pew JUaWiSaAUl puny e woJj SaWod ainsodxa ses 1 |10 Jno
Jo Ayaunnua ayi 1eyi ajoN dn yoid sswn|oA uoljeysodsuedy |eqo|s se uoziioy ayl uo Si (usaAaun aqie) Asanodal e
pue 0z0g O Ul s9214d |10 40 ySnouy e 31y am 1eyl S| juiod Siy3 1e SNSUaSU0D 19)Je|A "SIUSWISIAU] Ses 13 |10 snoiAaud
01 ainsodxa Aq paioajje Ajanizes3au sem 01]04140d 11paJsd 93eAld JNo ‘Swua) SAI1R|aJ Ul SUJN}aJ 3|qeidadde S|y

"X9pu| ueo] pasdetana

|BQO|D d'8S 9Y1 40} %S"€E pUe Xapu| OOT Ueo] padeJana] SN VLIS1/d8S 9y 404 %T'T ‘Xapu| Uiniay |e30] UeoT

pa3eJana 9ssING HpPaJ) 104 %T T 40 suiniad gy 03 paJedwod Jeah ayl 40} %89°Z JO Suanial paisod 1paJd aleAld
‘suJniaJ ue|d |e103 UO 1oedwi 31SOMO| 9yl Sey snyl pue (%t T) 0207 Ul LA Ul UOI1edO||e 1S9||ewsS Y3} S| 1PaJd 91BAld

JIpaJ) 9jeAlld — [le}aQ aduewIoLdd 0202



(Y4 eo-uejduoisuadway zo_m__ﬂm

WdH

SJUBW)SBAUI WUl paxly pue Ajinba paped; Ajo1gnd e sepnjou] "L.Z0zZ ‘vZ Alenige4 je se sjuswisaaul pinbi

Tv99'T S s|ied [eyide) — s9|es 93BAlld + SIUSWISaAuU| pInbiy + ) [€10L
0'96 S- s|jed |eyde) 19N |en1oy
0'90T S suoIINQLIISI 19N |eNOY
9'GE9T S LSIUBWISAAU| pinbr]
S'81 S 4] 19N [enuuy [ej0]L
0’8 S- sasuadxy
6'ETT S- sjuawaAed 11jouag
v'0 S awodu| JaY10
6°€ET S aW0dU| 1S3J31U|
69T $ 9WO02U| UoIINQLISIQ '3 PUBPIAIQ
¢'60T S SuU0IINQLIIU0)D

(ujw §) saunowy

0¢0¢ 1eny




(J’(J/ H d] ifax ITEM # 5-1
l l \\EJ lC‘ I Halifax Water Board

Halifax Regional Water Commission March 25. 2021
9

TO: Craig MacMullin, MBA, CPA, CGA, Chair, and Members of the
Halifax Regional Water Commission Board

Digitally signed b

Susheel  shdios

Date: 2021.03.19

SUBMITTED BY: Arora 05:10:16 0300

Susheel Arora, M.A.Sc., P.Eng. Director, Wastewater and
Stormwater Services

H Digitally signed by Cathie
Cathle O‘gl'oolg ¢ g

APPROVED: O'Toole 10.36.44 0300
Cathie O’Toole, MBA, FCPA, FCGA, ICD.D, General Manager

DATE: March 17, 2021
SUBJECT: Update on Wastewater Research Program - Dalhousie
University
INFORMATION REPORT
ORIGIN

2018/2019 Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between Dalhousie University and
Halifax Water that directs research initiatives for the advancement of wastewater effluent
quality for the protection of public health and the environment.

BACKGROUND

Halifax Water partnered with Dalhousie University through a Natural Science and
Engineering Council of Canada (NSERC) Collaborative Research & Development (CRD)
Grant, expanding Halifax Water’s existing collaboration with Dalhousie University to
strategically approach wastewater service and compliance challenges faced by Halifax
Water. Considering the Wastewater System Effluent Regulations and the 2040 timeline
for compliance, the research initiative is titled:

“Horizon 2040: Wastewater Treatment Innovation for Continuous Improvement of
Effluent Quality”

The 2019 Compliance Plan and the 2019 Infrastructure Resource Plan provided an updated
and more detailed plan to achieve compliance with future requirements in keeping with the
WSER and to address some ongoing exceedances in order to meet current NSE regulations.

Page 1 of 3



ITEM # 5-1

HRWC Board
March 25, 2021

It was identified that the three Harbour Solutions Treatment Facilities required short and
long-term upgrades to meet these regulations. To further investigate the best way to
achieve the effluent requirements, it was determined that the first priority was to investigate
optimization and process changes to existing infrastructure that could allow Halifax Water
to consistently meet national effluent quality standards, and potentially avoid or mitigate
the cost associated with extensive upgrades.

The current research plan is a three phased approach to improve effluent quality:

1. Bench, pilot, and full-scale optimization of coagulation/flocculation processes,
2. Application of innovative UV disinfection technology, and
3. Assessment of contaminants of emerging concern.

In addition, this partnership enhanced research capacity for wastewater treatment and
analysis and will result in the training of highly qualified personnel in the wastewater
sector, as well as a fully functioning wastewater research laboratory at Dalhousie
University to provide robust capacity to emerging wastewater challenges.

Several additional projects have been established through the partnership between Halifax
Water and Dalhousie University including SARS-CoV-2 research to monitor for the virus
at several wastewater treatment plants in HRM and to learn more about the prevalence of
COVID-19 infections in the area. Other projects include the sewer grid application of
specialized bacterial cultures and bioaugmentation to assist the Timberlea WWTF in
meeting ammonia discharge requirements and assisting the Mill Cove WWTF in
troubleshooting process issues.

This report and the attached presentation provides an overview of the progress made to
date for the various projects outlined in the awarded NSERC CRD grant (e.g. optimization
of coagulation/flocculation processes, application of innovative UV disinfection
technology, assessment of contaminants of emerging concern), as well as for the SARS-
CoV-2 wastewater research and the additional projects that have been established as result
of the partnership between Halifax Water and Dalhousie University.

DISCUSSION

The attached presentation report highlights the work completed to date as well as outlines
future activities. Generally, the tasks identified in the research program endorsed by
NSERC and Halifax Water are on schedule except for procurement activities of the pilot
plant. Halifax Water anticipates an acceleration in all activities in 2021-22 subject to lifting
of some Covid 19 restrictions by the health authorities. The project is under budget at this
time however, we believe that Dalhousie University is adequately resourced to meet all
objectives of the project and leverage all approved funding from NSERC and Halifax
Water over the next two years.

Page 2 of 3



ITEM # 5-1

HRWC Board
March 25, 2021

ATTACHMENT

Progress Research Update — Horizon 2040: Wastewater Treatment Innovation for
Continuous Improvement of Effluent Quality

Report Prepared by:  Original signed by

Chris Fahie, P.Eng.
Superintendent Wastewater Treatment, Phone 902-802-9732

Page 3 of 3



IN3INHOVLLV

1202 ‘GC ydien
pJeog 19)ep\ XejljeH
I-G # N3 LI

3DUNOS 3Y3 |

wolj LHOIVYLS

%rﬂmmM—\wHZD w
AISNOH'TIVA

Ajlenp usny3
JO JuswaAoJdw| SnoNUIIUOY 10J UOIJBAOUU|

Juswiieal] Jajemalsep) 00z UozloH
mﬂm_cc_ N Yoieosay
ssalboid

1998

XeJI[EH %



JNSH)
| JUISN
pue ‘uJaouoo bulbiawo

JO SjuBUIWEIUOD JO JUBWISSOSSY an0D
BulLusH pue yinowleq ‘xejljeH
ul sS4 MM uawieal) Alewiid
pasueyua Ajjeaiwayd aaiy)
ay) wouj Ajjenb juanjys aAoiduwi

saljlunjioddo yoieasalu 1ayjo snolep

:ABojouyoa) uonosyulsip
AN @AljeAouUl Jo uoljeolddy

‘s9559820.d UOI}1B|N220|}/Uoie|NBE0?

10 uoneziwndo 0] Juels) (gyD) uswdojerag
9|eos-||ny pue -jo|id -youag 8 Yolessay aAljel0qe[|o)
(OY3SN) epeued 4o |1unod
Y1O0AA JO SNDO04 Buliesulbug pue aousiog |einjeN

diysiaulied yosieasay AjisiaAlun aisnoyjeq

...ﬂ.__u____gﬂ“_.“ \TT —\




diysisuped siy} Jo saAlenul
yoleasal ay] 1oddns 0] pasn

" Lg0g Aenuged
ul sndwe) uoixag sAlsiaAiun
alsnoyje( 1e pals|dwod sem
Alojeloge] ubise( pue juswieal |
Jajemalsep) Le-ay)-jo-ale1s

Anoe4 Bunsay AiojesoqeT ysiiqeis3

JOEM
,..:,___:__\EH ¢




sjoedwl 98Ss 0] 9|eos

||} SynsaJ Bunuswajdwi Jels jue|d
SOIoUBIDIYS |BAOWIBI SZIWIXEeW

0] SuonIpuod Buisop paysi|gelsy
s|eolwayo buisoplapun AjjeoliolsiH

sBuipui4 Areuiwijaid

H41MM
yinowe ayj 1e saiousiolye |eaowal [ewindo aAsiyoe 0) palinbal si Asiwayo
JeyM aulwie)ep pue (SS ] pue gog) siuswadinbal jiwiad 0] pa)ejal spiepue)s
Juanye Buinoidwi Joy suonipuoo jewndo Ajnuapl 0) 0Z0Z [|e4 @duls s)sa) Jel ajeos
-youaq Gg JOA0 pPajonNpuod aAeY Jels M\H pue AjisiaAlun aisnoyje WoJj sjuspnis

uoljedljddy ajeoasg ||n4 0} salpn}g a|eas youag

...#.__w____m“_.“ \TT m



SjusA9 ue|d @oueldwo) ay)
Jayjeam 1am woudy Alanodal Jaiseq (7 Ul peLuap! Sem Apnis 1o SN0
ABojouyos) I .
Bunsixa pawliopuadino waisAs (|

‘wia)sAs juawieal; Alewnd
sbuipuly Areujwijoig JuUs.InN9 ay) 0] |9|jeted ul wolsAs
uoIIB|NJ20|} palse||eq aAljeuId)|e
ue Jo aduewlouad ay] ajen|eAs
O} 19pJ0o ul 020C¢ 10 |[ed/sswwng
oy} ul 41 MM\ yinowiied
ay] 1B po)So) Sem W)SAS
uoneoljLe|o pajse|jeq a|eos 10|id y

41 MMAa ®© bunsa] sjess jojid

...#.__w____m“_.“ \TT .V



suolneoljdde ajeas-||n} jo ubisep

ple 0} paJinbal yolieasal jeuonippy (£
aAljoadslad

ABJaua — |eoiwouods alow si 37 (2
S}|NsaJ UoI}08juISIp swes

analyoe ued Abojouyosl AN a3 (1

UOI}08JUISIP J0J
ABojouyoay 37 buisn paulwex]

Juswijeal) 1o} suolIpuod
lewndo ay) auiwlialep pue sadAy
Juswijeal); AN aledwod o} |nydjeH

sBuipui4 Areuiwijaid

sa|dwes Ja)jemalsem
ul (1109 3 "6°8) swsiuebiooiolw
J0J sa)el uoljeAljoeul pue
asop AN aulwlialap 0] Juswdinba
|eanAjeue mau pazijiin aisnoyjeq

41MM Yinowyiie( je uoljeziwidQ uonoauisigq AN

I

é____,,___\“umu g




‘JUBWIUOIIAUS INO 0] UJB2UO0D
Buibisws JO sjueUIWEBIUOD

‘sisAjeue sonseld
10} spoyjaw Buidojaasp Jo sseooid ay) Ul 9Say] saAOWal O} pue
9Je pue juswdinbs sy} uo paulel} ussq aney sayoeolidde juswieal; ysijgelss

(19Beuepy ge1 SYMI) 2uuneq JayjeaH pue 0} PASN 84 |[IM UDIUM JOJeMa)SeM
(mo]|24 |el10320(Q 3s0d) @10 auAjaAg Qg

ul sonsejdoueu pue solsejdotoiw
"1.20Z Aieniga4 ul sisnoyjeq 1e Joo)8p 0} spoyjew bBuidojpasQ
pa||eIsul usaq sey yoiym ‘welsbolid yoseasal
SIy) Joj Juswdinba jeonAjeue Aay ay; sI
(STVIN) waeisAs buuspeos Jyb s|bueninw v

uJ1aduon buibiawg Jo sjueuiwelIUO0)

...ﬂ.__u____gﬂ“_.“ \TT @




"SUOIO1I}S8J OILIOUO0IS pUB |BID0S
Jo Bunyl ajes ay) Buiwiojul pue sniA
3y} JO saAeM Juanbasgns JO uoneolluapI
Allea ‘enoog eAON Ul UOI08JUI JO JUBIXD
JO uoneolnuapl se yons Buyew uoisiosap
yieay olignd Joj Ajuoyiny yjjesH enoog
BAON 9y] 0] B]Ep JO UOIBIIUNWWOD
pue Ajuoyiny yjjesH eiodS eAON

SUOI]0111Sal 2IWOUOID puk |BId0S
uo sj0o0jo.id A)ajes pue uonosep
AlJea ‘SN Ul UoIodjjUI JO JUBIXD
ay) bulAjpuapl 0} paje|al suoisioap
yjieay olignd Buiyew ui ply

BIJ0OS BAON 9pPISINO WO [9AB)
wouJ} }nsal Aew jey) aousjeaaud

2-N\O0D-SHVS Jo solweulp
ysijgelsa 0} ejep auijaseq Jayjeo

‘ABojoiwapide paseq-lajemalsem
ybnouyy uonejndod uaAIb B ul suonoajul
61-QINOD Jo @ousjeaald ay) sauiwlis}ep

0} ¢-\OD-SHVS J10J palojiuow aq
Aew Jajemalsem ‘Yons Sy "Saljiunwiwiod

Ul UOISSIWSUEJ} pUuB 82Us1IN200
61-AIAOD Jo Buipuelsiapun Jjoddns
0] |enpuajod 8y} sey Jajemalsem ul Z-A0D
-SYVS JO 9oUB||I9AINS |BJUSWUOIIAUT

sBuipui4 Areuiwijaid

Hels
alsnoyjeq Aq pazAjeue pue paAlgodal UBaq aAeY
(sJeuned Jaylo pue Js)ep\ XelljeH Wo.l) SPIjosoIq

pue Jajemalsem Jo Bunsisuod) sajdwes g0z 19A0

ZAOD-SHVS — Y21easay [euonippy

I

,_N____,___\“Jmu L



‘sopelbdn aAIsus)xe
UJIM PO]BIDOSSE 1S02 3] PIOAR
Ajlenusajod pue ‘spiepuels Alljenb

saljIj10.} Jusw)ea.) Juaniya |euoljeu bupeaw ul Jayep)

Ja)ep\ XejljeH [euonippe 0} sseso.d xejlleH djay p|nod ABojouyos} siyL
Buisop ayj puedxa 0] |enuajod
'020¢ Isnbny

Ul pasuawwod Buisop aouis 4 | MMM
Bajlaquwil] ay} 1e juan|ys pajeal)
3y} Ul uoleuUadUod usbouiu
-eIUOWIWE Ul 8SB3a108p 9|geadljou

B Sl 818y} ey} sieadde 1l ‘|jelanO

‘J|Josu Ayljioe) juswiealy ayy bulsjus
0] Jouud pajeau) SI Jajemalsem
9y} }jNSaJ B Se pue 1ojoealolq e se
10B 0] YJom}au ay) Buisned Jo |eoo)

‘POYSIomMas
BajJoquil] 8yj Ul SUoneIo|
o16a)e.)s ul swisiuebiooldiw buiso(

sBuipui4 Areuiwijaid

uoljejuswbneolg — Yyoieasay [euonippy

...ﬂ.__u____gﬂ“_.“ \TT w




41LMM BA0D |IIIN
ay) 1e sJalliejo Azewnd ay) ul

Bulmas Jood ay) 0} bunnqgluod
aq p|noo sindul 8say)

‘Bunngluoo
os|e sI (uonjew.oy a)Ans "6°9)

Jusuodwod |eaibojoiq e Jayjaym jo Aue Ji aujwislep 0} sadoy

1O ‘ainjeu ul |esiwayo/jeoisAyd ale ul Juejeusadns pue ‘ajeJjuad
sJale)d Atewd ay) ul paoualiadxa ‘uanpul Atewnd ‘Jajemalsem
sanssl ay} Jayjaym uo jybisul Buiwooul ayj uo jenuajod

OAID [|IM sjuswainseaw 8say] - B)oZ eIA sIsAjeue abieyo
wJopad o) welboud Buldwes

sbuipuly Areuiwijaid e pajeliul aAeY ANSIaAIUN

alsnoyje( pue Jsjep\ xejlieH o

4LMM 9109 [lIIN Je Bunjooysg ajqnoi] — Yyoieasay |euollippy

...ﬂ.__u____gﬂ“_.“ \TT @



sweJlbo.id uonejuswbneolq puedx3y .
41 MAMQ 1e Ajjioe) 101d UOISSILIWOD pue d)eolge e

juauodoud paaisjaud 108198 — 41 MMA
1e }Jing 8q 0] Jo|id ajeos-ab.e| ay) Joj s|oo0jo.d pue siayeweled ubisap
ay) padojanap 0] diysiauyied Joj }saislu| JO uoissaldxg ajeal) — D4y -

9|eos ||n} 0] sabueyd Jno [joJ4 pue Buljsa) 8|edas Yyouag anuinuoy)
¢¢0¢2/120¢ S™1IADY ainjng

I

,..:,___:__\“JT Ol



	Agenda-25March2021 V2-APPROVED
	Minutes
	Item 4.1
	Item 5.1
	Item 5.2
	Item 6-Halifax Water Governance Manual-APPROVED
	Item 8-CorpBalScorecard-2021-22-APPROVED
	Item 9-Halifax Water Odour Strategy and Service Level-APPROVED
	Item 1-I-Information Report-APPROVED
	Item 2-I-Lake Major WSP - Clarifier Component Replacement Project - Phase 2-APPROVED
	Item 3-I-HRWC EPP 2020 Q4 Financial Rept-APPROVED
	Item 4-I-2020 Q4 HRM Pension Plan Investment Report-APPROVED
	Item 5-I-Update on Wastewater Research Program - Dalhousie-APPROVED



